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Management report

Anheuser-Busch InBev s a publicly traded company (Euronext ABI) based in Leuven, Beigium, with secondary tistings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL" ANB) and South Afnica (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with Amenican Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream 1s 1o bring paople together for a better world. Beer, the ongmal social network, has been bringing peaple
together for thousands of years. We are commutted to buriding great brands that stand the test of bme and to brewing the best beers using
the finest natural mgredients. Qur diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella
Artois®; multi-country brands Beck's®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Hoegaarden® and Leffe®, and loca! champions such as Aguila®,
Antarctica®, Bud Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Cnstal®, Harbin®, Jupiier®, Michelob Ultra®, Modelo Especial®, Quimes®, Victora®,
Sednn® and Skol® Our brewing hentage dates back mere than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European
roats at the Den Hoorn brewery in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneenng spirt of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US To the crealion
of the Castle Brewery in South Africa dunng the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohermia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified
with a balanced exposure to developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 175 000 employees
based 1n nearly 50 countnes worldwide. For 2018, AB InBev's reported revenue was 54 6 billion US dollar {excluding joint ventures and
associates)

The following management report should be read v conjunction with Anheuser-Busch inBev's audited consolidated financial statements

In the rest af this document we refer to Anheuser-Buseh InBev as “AB InBev” or “the company”

Selected financial figures

To faciitate the understanding of AB InBev's underlying performance, the comments n this management report, unless othermse
indicated, are based on orgamc and normalzed numbers "Organic”™ means the financials are analyzed ghminating the impact of changes
In currencies on translation of foreign operations, and scopes. Scapes represent the impact of acquisiions and divestitures, the start-up
or termination of acuvities or the transfer of actwhes between segments, curtaiiment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in
accounting estimates and other assumphons that management does not consider part of the underlying performance of the business The
impact of adopting hypernfiation accounting in Argentina effective 1 January 2018 1s presented as a scope change

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per region for the penod ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 n
the format up to Normalized EBIT level that 1s used by management to monttor perfermanca The results of the former SAB Central and
Eastern European Business were reported as “Results from discontinued operations”™ until the completion of the disposal that took place
on 31 March 2017 and the results of Distell were reported as share of results of associates until the completion of the sale that occurred
on 12 Apnl 2017, and accordingly, are exciuded from normalized EBIT and EBITDA On 4 October 2017, the company completed the
transition of its 54 5% equity stake in Coca-Cola Beverages Africa ("CCBA") and stopped consolidating CCBA I s cansohdated financial
statements as of that date Furthermare, on 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes'
existing Russia and Ukraine businesses Following the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia
and Ukraine are combined under AB InBev Efes The combined business is fully consclidated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts As
a result of the transaction, AB InBev stepped censolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev
Efes as results of associates as of that date.

Whenever used in this report, the term “normalized” refers o performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before
nen-recurming items and discontnued operations Non-recurnng iterms are erther income or expenses which do hot occur regularly as part
of the normat activities of the company They are presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying
sustainabie performance of the company due to their size or nature. Normalized measures are addiional measures used by management.
and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the company's performance, but rather
should be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS measures.
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The tables below set out the components of AB InBev's operating income and operating expenses, as well as the key cash flow figures

Millien US dollar

Revenue'
Cost of sales

Gross profit
SG&A
Other operaling mcome/{expenses)

Normalized profit from operations (Normalized EBIT)
Non-recurring items

Profit from operations (EBIT)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Normalized EBITDA
EBITDA

Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Profit from continuing eperations attributable to equity holders of
AB InBev

Profit attributable to equity holders of AR InBev

Million US dollar

Operating activities
Profit of the penod
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit

20138

54 619
(20 359)

34 259
(17 118)
680

17 821
(715)

17 108
4 260
22 080
21 366

6793

4368
4368

%

100%
3%

63%
3N%
1%

33%

M%

8%
40%
9%
12%

8%
8%

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions

Change mn working capital

Pension contnbutions and use of provisions
Interest and taxes (paid)received
Dividends received

Cash flow from operating activities

Investing activities

Net capex

Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures

Acquisition and sale of subsidianes, net of cash acquired/disposed of
Proceeds from the sale/(acquisstion) of investment 1n short-term debt secunties
Other

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings

Other (including purchase of non-controlling interests)
Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/{tdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2017

56 444
(21 386)

35058
(18 099)
854

17 814
(662)

17 152

4270
22 084
21 429

T 967

7 968
7 996

2018

5691
15870
21 561

512
(488)
{7 064)
141

14 863

(4 649)
(430)
145
1296
(327)
(3 955)

(7 761)
{4 707)

(1477
(13 945)

(3 247)

Yo

100%
38%

62%
2%
2%

32%

30%

8%
39%
38%

14%

14%
14%

2017

9183
12 484
21 667

219
(616)
(5982)
142

15 430

(4 124)
8 248
(556)
4337

(51)
7854

(9 275)
(9 981)
(1 748)

(21 004)

2 280

! Tumover less excise taxes |n many jurisdicions, excise taxes make up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to the company's customers



Financial performance

AB InBev is presenting its resulls under six regions' North Amernica, Latin America West, Lalin Amenca North, Latin Amenca South, EMEA
and Asia Pacific

The tables 1n this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 In
the format down to Normalized EBIT level that 1s used by management to monitor performance

The tables below provide a summary of the perfarmance of AB InBev for the penod ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 (in milhon US
dollar, except volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the retated comments are based on organic numbers

Currency Qrganic Qrganic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE translation growth growth %
Volumes 612572 {47 185) - 1679 567 066 0.3%
Revenue 56 444 (2 600) (18186) 2591 54619 4.8%
Cost of sales (21 386) 1373 592 (938) {20 369) 47)%
Gross profit 35058 (1227) (1 224) 1653 34 259 4.9%
SGRA (18 099) 603 443 (65) {17 118) (0 4)%
Other aperating income/(expenses) 854 (112) 48) (17) 680 (2.2%
Normalzed EBIT 17 814 (738) (827) 1570 17 821 9.0%
Normalized EBITDA 22 084 751) (954) 1702 22 080 7.9%
Normalized EBITDA margin 39.1% 40.4% 118 bps

In 2018, AB InBev delivered normalized EBITDA growth of 7 9%, while its normalized EBITDA margin increased 118 bps, reaching 40.4%
Consolidated volumes grew 0.3%, with own haer volumes growing 0.8% and non-beer volumes decreasing 3.6%

Consahdated revenue grew 4.8% 1o 54 619 m US dollar, with revenue per hectolter increasing 4 5% On a constan! geographic basis
{1 e eliminating the impact of faster growth in countnes with lower revenue per hectoliter), revenue per hectoliter grew by 4 7%. Combined
revenues of the three global brands, Budweiser, Stella Artois and Corena grew 9 0% and 13 1% outside of their respective home markets
Budweiser generated strong results in China, Brazi and the UK, as well as many new markets following the brand's activation as the
global sponsor of the 2018 FIFA World Cup Russia™, with 5.3% revenue growth globally. Stella Arteis conhinued its long-term trajectory,
with revenue growth of 5.2% dnven by sales in Brazil, Argentina and the UK, Corona grew by 17.6% globally, led by Mexico, China,
Colombia and Westem Europe

Consolidated Cost of Sales (CoS) increased 4.7%, or 4.3% on a per hectoliter basis On a constant geographic basis, CoS per hectoliter
ncreased by 4.6%

VOLUMES

The tahle below summarzes the volume evolution per region and the related comments are based on organmic numbers. Volumes mnclude
not only brands that AB InBev cwns or licenses, but also third party brands that the company brews as a subcontracior and third party
products that it sells through AB InBev's distnbution network, parbiculary in Europe. Volumes sold by the Global Export busness, which
ingludes the company’s global headguarters and the export businesses which have not been allocated to the company's regions, are
shown separately

Organic Qrganic
Thousand hectoliters growth growth %
North America 113 496 76 (2 846) 110 726 (25)%
Latin Amenca West 110 825 71) 4922 115 476 4.5%
Latin Amenca Narth 119 374 (232) (4172) 114 969 {3 5)%
Latin Amenca South 34 062 238 (325) 3975 (1.0)%
EMEA 131 692 (46 445) 1929 87 176 23%
Asia Pacific 101 986 g5 2185 104 266 2.1%
Global Export and Holding Companies 1336 (846) (13) 478 2.6)%
AB InBev Worldwide 612 572 (47 185) 1679 567 068 0.3%

North America total volumes decreased 2.5% The company estmates that the United States ndustry beer saies-to-retailers adjusted
for the number of selling days deciined by 1 8% On the same basis, the company estimates that its shipment volumes in the United States
and its beer sales-to-retallers dechned by 2 6% and 2 7% respectively The above cora brand portfolio performed well, and the strategy
o prermumize the portfolio continues to be supported by the growth of Michelob Ultra, which solidified its position as the largest share
ganer in the United States over the past four years, and aiso by several successful innovations, mcluding Michelot Ultra Pure Gold, Bud
Light Orange and the Budweiser Reserve senes The core and core light segments remain under pressure, as consumers select higher
pnce tiers within the industry, which contributed to Bud Light and Budweser Josing 80 bps and 35 bps of total market share Overall, the
company estimates a decline in total market share in the United States of approximatety 40 bps, its best annual share trend performance
since 2012, and estimates a share loss of 20 bps in the last quarter.

In Canada, total volumes decreased by low single digits as a result of a weak industry and industry segment mix shift, due to increased
competitive dynamics in the value segment The trade up strategy 1s delivering strong results, with the High End Company growing ahead
of the industry, led by doubls-digit volurne growth for the local craft brands, and share gains from Corona and Stella Artois The focus core
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and core plus brands also continue to deliver strong results, with both Bud Light and Michelob Ultra among the fastest-growing brands in
Canada

Latin America West total volumes increased 4 5% The company delivered strong resuits in Mexico, with volumes increasing high single
digits. Throughout the year the company focused on developing its porifolio In ine with the category expansion framework to clearly
differentiate the brands The company's core brands are leading the way for growth with different regional approaches, enabling Corona
to grow at an accelerated pace in the Narthern region and Victona to deliver its best performance ever in the Central region The company's
premium portfolio contributed meaningfully to top-line growth as well, ied by Michelob Ultra and Stella Artois which grew by double-digits.

In Colombia, non-beer volumes grew by 0 2% and beer volumes increased by 3 6% driven by Budweiser on the back of the 2018 FIFA
World Cup Russia™ activations as well as Aguila's country wide expansion focused on promoting its national identity. Peru volumes were
down low-single digits 1n a challenging macroeconomic environment, though the brand mix of all three global brands delivered solid
growth. Ecuador volumes increased by mid-single digits and the company gained share of total alcohol as a result of successfub intiatives
across the beer category, led by Pisener and Club Premium and continued growth of the global brands

Latin America North total volumes decreased 3.5% Beer volumes in Brazil were down mid-single digits while non-beer volumes were
down high single-digits, primarnly as a result of segment mix shift, as consumers traded down to the value segment in ight of the
challenging macroeconomic environment However, the premium portfolio continued to perform ahead of the industry, with the global
brand portfolio growing by double digits and led by Corona as one of the fastest growing brands in the country The core plus segment
posted strong growth driven by Bohermia, Brahma Extra and Skol Hops In addition, the company launched two brands, Nossa and
Magnifica, beers brewed with local cassava and offered to consumers at a considerably lower price point while providing comparable
margins to the cormpany's core brands

Latin America South tolal volumes decreased 1 0%. In Argentina volumes dechned by low single digits due largety to the consumption
contraction resulting from challenging macroeconomic conditions Despite the tough operating environment, the beer category continues
to gain share from other alcohohe beverages. The premwum brands gained share in a growing segment of the industry, driven by Palagonia
and Corona, and the cornpany continues 1o scale up Budweiser after reacquinng the nights ta the brand in Apnl 2018 The company has
also successfuily repositioned the two largest brands in the country, Quimes Clasica and Brahma, leading to an improved performance
of the core portfolio In accordance with IFRS rules, we are applying hypennflation accounting in Argentina as of 1 January 2018 The
mpact of adopting hypennfiation accounting in Argentina effective 1 January 2018 15 presented as a scope change

EMEA total volumes increased 2 3% and own beer volumes alsc increased 2 3% Volumes were impacted by the completion of the
transition of CCBA that oocurred on 4 QOctober 2017 and the formation of AB InBev Efes on 3C March 2018 The impacts are presented
as a scope change

In South Africa, beer volumes decreased by mid-single digit The premum and above premwm continues to grow by tnple digits, with a
good contribution from the launch of Budweiser The core segment, which still accounts for the vast majonty of the volumes, was heid
back by a challenging macroeconomic environment, aithough the volume performance increased toward the end of the year Ia Africa
excluding South Afnca, own beer volumes increased by low-single digits, with sigruficant volume growth in Zambia by mid-teens and
Mozambigue by high-single digits The volume growth in Nigena accelerated throughout the year following the introduction of a new
brewery However, the own beer volumes were lower by low-single chgits in Tanzaria and Uganda as a result of capaciy constraints and
a challenging macroeconomic environment.

Western Europe total volumes grew by low-singie digits, with strong execution associated with the 2018 FIFA World Cup Russia™ Global
brands performed well, and Budweiser's growth was supperied by lournament activations Caorona's growth was supported by Casa
Corona in France and Spain, as well as the Corona Sunset Festivals in the United Kingdom and Italy The UK and Spain led the way with
market share growth across the region

Asia Pacific total volumes increased 2 1% In China, the super premium brands continued to grow significantly supported by a strong
overall performance of the company's e-commerce business. In FY18, Budweiser grew by mid-single digits supported by premiumization
efforts which expanded beyond the music platform into fashion and broader hifestyle activations.

In Australia, volume decreased by low single digits due to Increased promotional activity by competitors and a softer industry
performance amidst dechining consumer confidence Great Northern remains a key engine of growth, with continued double-digt growth
of both Onginal and Super Cnisp vanants On the craft portfolio, acquisibons continue to grow In strength with double-digit volume
growth
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES BY REGION

The tables below prowide a summary of the performance of each region, for the peniod ended 31 December 2018 (in million US dollar,
except volumes In thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE 2017 Scope  translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 612572 (47 185) - 1679 567 066 0.3%
Revenue 56 444 (2 600) (1 816) 2 591 54 619 4.8%
Cost of sales (21 386) 1373 592 (938) (20 359} 4.7%
Gross profit 35 058 {1227) (1224 1653 34 259 4.9%
SGRA (18 089) 603 443 (65) (17 118) (0.4)%
Other operating income/(expenses) 854 (112} (46) (17) 680 (2.2)%
Normalized EBIT 17 814 (7386) (827 1570 17821 9.0%
Normalized EBITDA 22 084 {751) (954) 1702 22080 7.9%
Normaiized EBITDA margim 39.1% 40.4% 118 bps
Currency Organic Organic
NORTH AMERICA 2017 Scope _translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 113 496 76 - (2 846) t10726 (2.5)%
Revenue 15 588 19 13 (117} 15 504 {0.8)%
Caost of sales (5777} 26 (6) (30) (5 788) (0.5)%
Gross profit 9811 44 8 (%47) 9716 (1.5)%
SG&A (4 361) (75) 5) 44 (4 396) 10%
Other operating income/(expenses) 36 - - 4 40 10 7%
Normalized EBIT 5486 (31) 3 (99) § 360 (1.8)%
Normalized EBITDA 6329 (30} 4 (153) 6150 (2.4)%
Normahzed EBITDA margin 406% 39.7% (68) bps
Currency Organic
LATIN AMERICA WEST translation growth
Volumes 110 625 71) - 4922 115 476 45%
Revenue 9238 (9) (109) 879 9989 9.5%
Cost of sales (2 555) 3 32 (1986) 27122) 7%
Gross profit 8 683 (12) (76) 682 7217 10.2%
SGEA (2 878) 10 3z 13 (2 821) 05%
Other operating Income/(expenses) 8g - m ()] 87 {15)%
Normalized EBIT 3 896 (2) (45) 694 4544 17 8%
Normalized EBITDA 4512 (2) (52) 738 5106 16.4%
Normalized EBITDA margin 48 8% 52.0% 306 bps
Currency Organic Organic
LATIN AMERICA NORTH 2017 Scope translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 119 374 (232) - (4 172) 114 969 (35)%
Revenue 9775 {29) {1 044) 288 8 990 3.0%
Cast of sales (3744) 14 389 {63) {3 404) {1 7Y%
Gross profit 6031 (16) (655) 225 5585 3.7%
SG8A (3 060) 5 318 51 (2 686) 17%
Other operating income/(expenses) 361 - (36) (59) 266 (16 3)%
Normatized EBIT 3332 (10} (a73) 216 3165 65%
Nommalized EBITDA 4180 {10) (462) 218 3926 5.2%
Normalized EBITDA margin 42 8% 43.7% 95 bps
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Currency Organic Organic

LATIN AMERICA SOUTH 2017 Scope  translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 34 062 238 - (325) 33975 {1.0y%
Revenue 3363 (218) (990) 709 2 863 21.3%
Cost of sales {1207) (6) 295 (143} (1 060) {11 9%
Gross profit 2156 (224) (695) 567 1803 26.7%
SGAA (781} 15 242 (166} (689) (21 4%
Other operating Income/{expenses) 13 (18} (1) 18 2 138.7%
Normalized EBIT 1388 (226) (465) 419 1116 30 8%
Normalized EBITDA 1595 (163) (534) 483 1381 30.8%
Normalized EBITDA margin 47 4% 48.2% 369 bps
[ Organic Organic

translation g growth %

Volumes 131892 (46 445) - 1929 87 176 2.3%
Revenue 10 344 (2 453) 163 319 83r4 4.1%
Cost of sales (4 609) 1418 (54) (237) (3 482) (7 )%
Gross profit 5735 (1 035) 110 82 4892 1.7%
SGRA (33386) 704 (69) (58) (2 760} (2 2%
Other operating income/{expenses) 108 (29} - 18 98 21 1%
Normatized EBIT 2507 (359} 40 42 2230 18%
Normalized EBITDA 3349 {440) 54 37 3000 1.3%
Normalized EBITDA margin 324% 35.8% (100) bps
Currency Organic Organic

ASIA PACIFIC e translation growth growth %
Votumes 101 986 95 - 2185 104 266 2 1%
Revenue 7804 39 155 473 8 470 6.1%
Cost of sales (3 201) (23) (72) (237) (3533) (7 4)%
Gross profit 4603 16 83 235 4937 5.1%
SG8A (2 735) (20) (57) 42 (2770 1.6%
Other operating INncome/(expenses) 168 (1 4 8 163 (5.00%
Normalized EBIT 2035 (6) 30 270 2330 13 3%
Normalized EBITDA 2695 (5) 49 344 3082 12.8%
Normalized EBITDA margin 34 5% 36.4% 218 bps
GLOBAL EXPORT AND HOLDING Currency Organic Organic
COMPANLIES translation growth growth %
Volurmes 1336 (846) - (13) 478 (26)%
Revenue 332 51 (5) 4 419 12.2%
Cost of sales (292) (52) 7 (32) (370) (10 8)%
Gross profit 40 2) 2 9 49 23.8%
SGRA (850) (36) (18) 7 (996) 07%
Other operating income/(expenses) 79 (65) (2) 12 25 89 8%
Normalized EBIT (830) (102) (18) 28 (923) 3.0%
Normalized EBITDA (577) (101 {13) 35 {656) 5.2%

REVENUE

Censolidated revenue grew 4.8% to 54 619m US dollar with revenue per hectoliter increasing 4 5% On a constant geographic basis (1 ¢
eliminating the impact of faster growth in countries with lower revenue per hectoliter), revenue per hectaliter grew by 4 7%, driven by the
company’s revenug Management Initiatives as weil as continued strong premium brand performances

COST OF SALES

Cost of Sales (CoS) iIncreased 4 7% or 4 3% on a per hectoliter basis The increase in cost of sales was dnven primarily by unfavorable
commadity prices, pathally offsel by synergy capture On a constant geographic basis CoS per hectoliter increased by 4 6%



OPERATING EXPENSES
Total operating expenses ncreased 0.5% i 2018.

® Seiling, General & Administrative Expenses (SG&A) increased by 0.4% n 2018, with higher marketing expenses associated with
timing of Investments related to the 2018 FIFA World Cup Russia™.

* Other operating ncome declned 2 2% in 2018 dniven by the reduction on govemment granis and lower proceeds from disposals

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (NORMALIZED
EBITDA)

Normalized EBITDA increased 7.9% organically to 22 080m US dollar, with an EBITDA margin of 40 4%, and an organic growth of 118
bps

e North Amenca EBITDA decreased 2 4% to 6 150m US dollar, with a rmargm contractior: of 68 bps o 39 7% driven by an wcrease in
the year-over-year price of commaodities and tigher distribution expenses due to increased freight costs.

® Lahn Amenca West EBITDA increased 16 4% to 5 196m US dollar, with a margin enhancement of 306 bps to 52 0% dnven by capacity
enhancements, cost efficiencies coupled with the strong top-ine performance and continued synergy capture after the SAB
combination.

® Latin Amenca North EBITDA increased 5.2% to 3 926m US dallar, with a margin enhancement of 85 bps to 43.7%. manly dnven by
revenue management iniatives, favorable brand mix and ongaing cost discipline

* {alin Amenca South EBITDA increased 30.8% to 1 381m US dollar, with a margin enhancement of 369 bps to 48 2%, due to revenue
growth pesitively /mpacted by an mproved performance of the company's premium portfolio,

® EMEA EBITDA increased 1 3% to 3 000m US dollar, with a margin centraction of 100 bps to 358 8%, with strong top-line growth manly
dnven by the good performance of the company's global brands and marketing iInhatives associated with the 2018 FIFA Werld Cup
Russia™ in Western Europe and the positive results of the company’s premium portfolio in Afnca

& Agia Pacific EBITDA ncreased 12 8% to 3 082m US dollar, with a margin expansion of 218 bps to 36 4%, dnven by top-ine growth
coupled with continued premumization and tight cost management.

® Global Export and Holding Companies EBITDA of (656)m US dollar in the penod ended 31 December 2018 (2017 (577)m US dollar).

Diffarences in normalized EBITDA margmins by region are due to a number of factors such as different routes to market, share of returnable
packaging n the region's sales and premium product mix.

ADOPTION OF HYPERINFLATION ACCOUNTING IN ARGENTINA

Following the categonzation of Argentina as a country with a three-year cumulative inflation rate greater than 100%., the country 15
considered highly inflationary n accordance with IFRS.

The IFRS rules (IAS 29) require us to report the results of the company’s cperations in hypeninflationary economes, as if these were
highly mflationary as of 1 January 2018, and to restate the year-to-date results for the change in the general purchasing power of the local
currency, using official indices before converting the local amounts at the ciosing rate of the penod (1 e December 2018 closing rate for
2018 full year results)

We are presenting m this management report the mpact of adopting hypennflation accounting in 2018 as part of scopes In line with IFRS,
the 2017 Argentinan operations in these consolidated financial statements were not restated for hypennflation accounting.

In 2018 we are reporting 246m US dollar impact of hyperinflation accounting on reverue and 144m US dollar impact on normalized
EBITDA The hypernflation accountng adjustment results from the combined effect of the indexation to reflect changes in purchasing
power on the 2018 full year results and the transiation of the 2018 fuli year results at the December 2018 closing rate, rather than the
average year-to-date rate apphed for non-hyperinfiationary economses and the 2017 Argentinean gperations.

Furthermore, 1AS 2% requires us to restate the non-monetary assets and habilities stated at tustorical cost on the balance sheet of the
company’s operations 1n hypennflation economies using inflation indices and to report the resulting hypennflation through the ncome
slatement on 2 dedicated account for hypennfiahon monetary adjustments in the finance ine and report deferred taxes on such
adjustments, when applicabie.

During 2018, the transihion to hyperinflation accounting in accordance with the IFRS rules, resulted in 46m US dollar monetary adjustment
reported In the finance lne, a negative impact on the Profit altnbutable o equity holders of AB InBev of 77m US dollar and a negative
impact on Normalized EPS of 0.04 US dollar
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NORMALIZED EBITDA AND PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are measures utiized by AB InBev to demonstrate the company's underlying performance.

Normalized EBITDA 1s calculated excluding profit from discontinued cperations and the following effects from profit from continuing
operations attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev: {I) Non-contralling interest, (it) Income tax expense, (1) Share of results of associates,
{iv) Net finance cost, (v) Non-recumng net finance cost, (vi) Non-recumng items above EBIT (including non-recurnng impairment) and
(vu) Depreciation, amorhzation and impairment

Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are not accounting measures under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders as a measure of operationat performance or as an alternative to cash flow
as a measure of kquidity Normalized EBITDA and EBIT do nat have a standard calculation method and A8 InBev's defimbion of mormalzed
EBITDA and EBIT may not be comparable to that of other companies.

Million US dollar Notes 2018 2017
Profit altributable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 996
Non-controlling interest 1323 1187
Profit of the period 5691 9183
Profit from discontinued operations - (28)
Profit from continuing operations 5691 9155
Income tax expense 12 2 839 1920
Share of result of associates 18 (153) (430)
Non-recurning net finance cost/(income) 11 1982 693
Net finance cost 11 6747 5814
Non-recurning items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment) 8 715 662
Normalized EBIT 17 821 17 814
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (excluding non-recurnng impairment) 4 260 4270
Normalized EBITDA 22 080 22 084

Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do not occur reguiarty as part of the normal activites of the company They are
presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying sustainable performance of the company due to
their size or nature Detalls on the nature of the non-recurnng items are disclosed in Note 8 Non-recumng items.

IMPACT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency exchange rates have a significant impact on AB InBev's financial statements. The following table sets forth the
percentage of its revenue realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

US dollar 28.6% 27 5%
Brazilsan reat 13.6% 14 5%
Chinese yuan 8.7% 7 5%
Mexican peso B.1% 7 0%
Euro 6.1% 55%
Colombian peso 4.3% 3 8%
South Afncan rand 4.1% 62%
Canadian dellar 3.4% 3.3%
Austrahan daollar 3.2% 30%
South Korean won 2.9% 2 5%
Paruvian peso 2.9% 26%
Argentinean peso’ 2.7% 35%
Pound sterling 2.1% 17%
Dominican peso 1.6% 15%
Other 1.7% 99%

' Hyperinflation accounting was adopted in 2018 to report the company’s Argentinian operations In ine with IFRS, the 2017 Argentimian eperations in these
consolidated financial statements were not restated for hypennflation accounting
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The following table sets farth the percentage of its normalized EBITDA realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017:

2018 2017

US dollar 26.9% 27.8%
Brazihan real 14.9% 16 1%
Mexican peso 8.7% 7.6%
Chinese yuan 7.0% 5.6%
Colombian peso 5.9% 5.3%
South Afncan rand 4.8% 57%
Peruvian peso 4.5% 3.9%
Australian dollar 4.3% 44%
Euro 3.8% 2.7%
Argentinean peso’ 34% 4.3%
Canadian dallar 3.0% 3I1%
South Karean won 27% 2.5%
Dominican peso 1.9% 1.8%
Pound sterling 1.3% 1.1%
Other 7.1% B81%

In 2018, the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates had a negative translation impact, including hypermfation accounting rmpact of 2
302m US dollar on AB InBev's revenue (2017: positive impact of 601m US dellar), of 1 217m US doilar on its normalized EBITDA (2017:
positive impact of 255m US dollar) and of 1 056m US dollar on its normalized EBIT (2017 positiva impact of 208m US dollar).

AB InBev's profit (after tax) has been negatively affected by the fluctuation of foreign currencies, including hypennflation accounting impact
for 684m US dollar (2017: positive impact of 126m US dollar). while the negative translabon impact, including hypennflation accounting
impact on its EFS (profit atinbutable to equity holders of AB InBev) was 505m US dallar or 0 26 US dollar per share (2017 positive impact
of 100m US dollar or 0 05 US dollar per share),

The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on AR InBev's net debt amounted to 932m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2018,
as compared 1o an impact of 4 184m US dollar (increase of net debt) in 2017 The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on
the equity attributable o the equity holders of AB InBev amourtted to 7 379m US dollar {decrease of equity), as compared to an impact of
1 053m US dollar (increase of equity) in 2017

PROFIT

Normalized profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev was 6 793m US dollar (narmalized EPS 3 44 US dollar) in 2018, compared to
7 967m US dollar (normalized EPS 4 04 US doilar) in 2017 (see Note 23 Changes in equity and eamings per share for more datails)
Profit atinbutable to equity holders of AB InBev for 2018 was 4 368m US dollar, compared to 7 996m US dollar for 2017 and includes the
following impacts:

* Net finance cosis (exciuding non-recurmng net finance tems): 6 7T47m US dollar n 2018 compared to 5 814m US dallar in 2017 This
increase was pnmarily due to mark-to-market losses linked to the hedging of the company's share-based payment programs of 1
774m USD dollarin 2018, compared (o a loss of 281m USD doliar n 2017,

* Non-recurmng net finance cost. 1 982m US dollar n 2018 compared to 693m US dollar in 2017 Non-recurming net finance casts in
2018 include mark-to-market losses of 1 722m US doiiar on denvative instruments enterad into to hedge the shares 1ssued in refation
to the combinations with Grupo Modelo and SAB Furthermore, the 2018 non-recurnng net finance costs include non-cash foreign
exchange translation lasses on intragroup Ieans that were historically reported in equily and were recycled to profit and Joss account,
upon the reimbursement of these loans, as well as premiums pawd on the early termination of certain bonds

* Income tax expense 2 839m US dollar in 2018 with an effective tax rate of 33.9% compared to 1 920m US dollar in 2017 with an
effective tax rate of 18 0%. The Increase in the effective tax rate s mainly due to non-deductible mark-to-market losses and changes
In tax legislation in some of the countnes in which we operate. The 2017 effective tax rate was positively /mpacted by a 1 8 billion US
dollar adjustment following the US tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 This 1 8 billion US doliar adjustment resulted mainly
from the remeasurement of the deferred tax habilties set up in 2008 n line with IFRS as part of the purchase price accounting of the
combination with Anheuser Busch following the change m federal tax rate from 35% to 21% and was recagnized as a non-recurmng
gain per 31 December 2017 This impact was partally offset by Ambev and certain of its subsidiaries joning the Braziian Tax
Regulanzation Program in September 2017 whereby Ambev committed 1o pay some tax contingencies that were under dispute The
total amount recognized as non-recurnng amounted to 2.9 billon Braziian real (0 9 bilhon US dollar) of which 2 8 bilion Brazilian real
(0.9 bilkon LS doliar) was reported in the income tax line and 141m Brazilian rea) (44m US dollar) in the finance line  The normalized
effective tax rate was 27.8% in 2018 compared to 22 8% in 2017, The normalized effective tax rate excluding mark-to-market [osses
hinked to the hedging of the company's share-based payment programs was 24 0% in 2018 compared to 22 4% n 2017

*  Profit attrbutadle to non-controflmg miterest- 1 323m US dollar in 2018 compared to 1 187m US dofiar in 2017

* Profit from discontinued operations relates to the results of the former SAB Central and Eastern European business reported until the
completion of the disposal that took place on 31 March 2017,

' Hyperinflation accounting was adopted In 2018 1o report the company's Argentinian operations In hne with (FRS, the 2017 Argentinan operatons in these
consolidaled financial statements were not restated for hypennflalion accounting
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Liquidity position and capital resources

CASH FLOWS
Million US dollar 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating actvibes 14 663 15430
Cash flow from investing actvities (3 9656) 7854
Cash flow from financing activihies {13 945) (21 004)
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (3247 2 280

Cash flow from operating activities

Million US dellar 2018 2017
Profit of the penod 5691 9183
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included n profit 15 870 12 484
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 21 561 21 667
Change in working capital 512 219
Pension contrbutions and use of provisions {488) (616)
Interest and taxes {pawd)received (7 064) (5 882)
Dividends received 141 142
Cash flow from operating activities 14 663 15 430

AB InBev's cash flow from aperating activities reached 14 663m US dollar in 2018 compared to 15 430m US dollar in 2017 The year over
year change 1s mainly explained by higher taxes paid in 2018 compared to 2017, inciuding the payment of taxes related to pnor pernods

Cash flow from investing activities

Million US doilar 2018 2017
Net capex (4 649} (4 124)
Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures (430) B 248
Acquisition and sale of subsidianes, net of cash acquired/disposed of 145 (558)
Proceeds from the sale/(acquisition) of investment in short-term debt secunties 1206 4 337
Other (327) (51)
Cash flow from investing activities {3 965) 7854

Cash flow used in investing activities was 3 965m US dollar in 2018 as compared to a cash inflow of 7 854m US dollar in 2017. The cash
flow from investing activities In 2017 mainly reflected the proceeds from the announced SAB-related divestitures completed during 2017,
net of taxes pad in 2017 on prior year divestitures, which were not repeated in 2018.

AB InBev's net capital expenditures amounted to 4 649m US dollar in 2018 and 4 124m US doilar in 2017. Out of the total 2018 capital
expenditures approximately 48% was used to improve the company's production facilittes while 42% was used for logistics and commercial
Investments and 10% was used for improving administrative capabilihes and purchase of hardware and software

Cash flow from financing activities

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Dividends paid (7 761) (9 275)
Net {payments on)/proceeds from barrowings (4 707) (g981)
Other (including purchase of non-contralling interests) (1477 (1748)
GCash flow from financing activities {13 845) {21 004)

The cash outflow from financing actvities amounted to 13 945m US dollar in 2018, as compared to a cash outfiow of 21 004m US dellar
in 2017. During 2017, the company repaid 8 bilhon US dollar outstanding under the Term Loan B This Term Loan was the last remaining
faciity of the 75 billion US dollar serior faciities rawsed in October 2015 to finance the combination with SAB

AB InBev's cash, cash equivalents and short-lerm investments in debt securities less bank cverdrafts as of 31 December 2018 amounted
to 7 047m US dollar As of 31 December 2018, the company had total hquidity of 16 047m US dallar, which consisted of 9 bithon US dollar
available under commitied long-term credit facilities and 7 047m US dollar of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt
secunties less bank overdrafts. Although the company may borrow such amounts to meetits hquidity needs, the company principally rehes
on cash flows from operating activities to fund the company's cantinuing operation

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND EQUITY

AB InBev's net debt decreased fram 104 4 bilion US dollar as of 31 December 2017 to 102 5 bilion US dollar as of 31 December 2018
Net debt 15 defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank averdrafts minus debt secunties and cash.
Net debt 1s a financial performance indicator that Is used by AB InBev's management to highlight changes in the company's overall hquidity

position. The company believes that net debt s meaningful for investors as it 1s one of the pnmary measures AB InBev's management
uses when evaluating is progress towards deleveraging

Apart from operating results net of capital expenditures, the net debt s mainly impacted by the acquisition by Ambev of additional shares
in Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana S A (“CND") following the partial exercise by E Ledn Jimenes S A ("ELJ") of its put ophion (0 9 bithon
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US dollar), a payment to Malson Coors Brewing Company retated to a purchase pnge adustrment on the disposal completed on 11 Qctober
2016 of SAB's Interest In MifierCoors LLC and all trademarks, contracts and other assets pnmarily related o the "Milier Infemational
Business" (0.3 biion US dollar), dividend payments to shareholders of AB InBev and Ambev (7 § billion US dollar), the payment of interest
and taxes (7 1 btlion US dollar) and the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (2.1 bilbon US dollar decrease of net debt).

Net debt to normalized EBITDA decreased from 4.8x for the 12-month period ending 31 December 2017 to 4 6x far the 12-menth penod
ending 31 December 2018 The 2017 net debt to EBITDA calculation excludes any EBITDA from CCBA, the former SAB Central and
Eastern European Business and the stake (in Distell which were divested dunng 2017

Consoldated equity atinbutable 1o equity holders of AB InBev as at 31 December 2018 was 64 486m US dollar, compared to 72 585m
US dollar as at 31 December 2017 The combined effect of the weakening of manly the closing rates of the South African rand, the
Brazilian real, the Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar and the Euro resulted in a foreign exchange translation adjustment of 7 379m US
doliar (reduction of equity). Further details on equity movements can be found in the consclidated statement of changes in equity

Further details on interest-bearing loans and borrowings, repayment schedules and liquidity nsk, are disclosed in Note 24 Interesi-bearing
{oans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks ansing from financial mstruments.

As of 31 December 2018, the company's credit rating from Standard & Poor's was A- for long-term obligations and A-2 for short-term
obhgations, with a negabive outlook, and the company's credit rating from Moody's Investors Service was Baa1 for long-term obhgations
and P-2 for shorl-term obligations, with a stable outlook

Research and development

Gwven 1ts focus on innovation, AB InBev places a high value on research and development. In 2018, AB InBev spent 285m US dollar in
research and development (2017. 276m US dollar). The spent focused on product innovations, market research, as well as process
optimization and product development.

Research and development in product innovation covers ligud, packaging and draft innovation. Product innovation consists of
breakthrough innovation, incremental Innovation and renovation The main goal for the Innovation process 1s to prowde consumers with
better products and expenences. This implies launching new hquid, new packaging and new draught products that delver better
performance both for the consumer and In terms of top-line results, by increasing AB InBev's competitiveness in the relevant markets.
With consurners companng products and expenences offered across very different dnnk categones and the offerng of beverages
increasing, AB InBev's research and development efforls also require an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of other
beverage categonas, spoting opportunities for besr and developing consumer solutions (products) that betier address consumer need
and dehwer better expenence. This requires understanding consumer emotions and expectations. Sensory expenence, premiumization,
convenience, sustzinabiity and design are ail central to AB 'nBev’s research and development efforts.

Research and development in process optimization (s pnmarily aimed at quality improvement, capacity increase (plant debottlenecking
and addressing volume Issues, while mimmizing capital expenditure) and improving efficiency. Newly developed processes, materials
andf/ar equipmant are documented in best practices and shared across business regions. Current projects range from maltng to bottling
of finished products

¥nowledge management and leaming 1s also an integral part of research and development. AB InBev seeks to continuously increase s
knowladge through collabarations with universiies and other industnes

AB InBev's research and development team 15 bnefed annually on the company's and the business regions' pnoribes and approves
concepts which are subsequently priontized for development The research & development teams invest sn both short and long-term
strategic projects for future growth, with the launch time depending on complexity and pnontization. Launch tme usuaily falls within the
next calendar year.

The Global Innovation and Technology Center (*GlTeC"), located i Leuven, accommodates the Packaging, Product, Process
Development teams and facilihes such as Labs, Expermental Brewery and the European Central Lab, which alsa includes Sensory
Analysis. In addition to GITeC, AB InBev also has Product, Packaging and Process development teams located in each of the AB InBev
geographic regions focusing on the short-term needs of such regions.
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Risks and uncertainties

Under the explicit understanding that this 1s not an exhaustive list, AB InBev's major nisk factors and uncertainties are listed below There
may be additional nsks which AB InBev 1s unaware of. There may also be risks AB InBev now believes to be immatenal, but which could
turn out to have a matenal adverse effect Mareover, if and to the extent that any of the risks described below matenahize, they may occur
n combination with other nsks which would compound the adverse effect of such nsks The sequence in which the nisk factors are
presented below 1s not indicative of ther likehhood of occurrence or of the potential magnitude of their financial consequence

Risks relating to AB InBev and the beer and beverage industry

AB InBev 15 exposed to the nsk of a global recession or a recession in one or more of its key markets, and to credit and capital market
volatity and an economic or financial cnsis, which could result in lower revenue and reduced profit, as beer consumptien in many of the
junsdictions in which AB InBev operates i1s closely linked to general ecocnomic conditions and changes in disposable incoeme A
continuation of worsening of the levels of market disruption and volatiity seen in the recent past could have an adverse effect on AB
InBev's ability o access capital, on its business, results of operations and financial condition, and on the market price of ts shares and
American Depositary Shares.

AB InBev's results of operations are affected by fluctuations 1n exchange rates. Any change in exchange rates between AB InBev's
operating companes’ functional currencies and the U S dollar will affect its consahdated income statement and balance sheet when the
results of those operating companies are translated into U S dollar for reporting purposes as translational exposures are not hedged,
Also, there can be no assurance that the policies in place to manage commodity price and transactionai foresgn currency risks to protect
AB InBev's exposure will be able to successfully hedge against the effects of such foreign exchange exposure, especially over the long-
term. Further, the use of financial nstruments to mitigate currency nsk and any other efforts taken to better match the effective currencies
of AB InBev's habilties to its cash flows could result in increased costs.

Changes n the avallabity or price of raw matenals, commodities, energy and water, including as a result of unexpected increases In
tarffs on such raw matenals and commodities, ke alurminum, could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations to the
extent that AB inBev fals to adequately manage the nsks inherent in such volatiity, including If AB InBev's hedging and denvative
arrangements do not effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity prices

AB InBev may not be able to obtain the necessary funding for its future capital or refinancing needs and may face financial risks due to
its level of debt and uncertain market conditons. AB InBev may be required to raise additional funds for AB InBev's future capital needs
or 1o refinance its current indebledness through public or private financing, strategic relabonships or other arrangerments and there can
be no assurance that the funding, if needed, will be availabie on attractive terms, or at all  AB InBev has incured substantial indebtedness
by entenng Into several senior credit facililes and accessing the bond markets from tme to ime based on its financial needs, including
as a result of the acquisiion of SAB The portion of AB InBev's consotidated balance sheet represented by debt will remain significantly
higher as compared to its histoncal position AB InBev's tncreased level of debt could have significant conseguences for AB InBev,
including (1) increasing 1ts vulnerabiiity to general adverse economic and industry conditions, (i) kmiting s flexibiity in planning for, or
reacting to, changes m its business and the industry in which AB InBev cperates, (n) impairing its ability to obtain additional inancing in
the future and imiting sts abilty to fund future warking capital and capital expenditures, to engage 1n future acquisitions or development
activities or to otherwise realize the value of its assets and opportunities fully, {Iv) requiring AB InBev to tssue additional equity (potentially
under unfavorabie market condiions), and (v) placing AB InBev at a compettive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less
debt AR InBev's abiity to repay and renegotiate 1s cutstanding indebtedness will be dependent upon market conditions  Unfavarable
conditions, including significant price volatiity, dislocations and hquidity disruptions in the global crecit markets in recent years, as well as
downward pressure on credit capaciy for certain 1ssuers without regard to those 1ssuers’ underlying financial strength, could increase
costs beyond what 1s currently anticipated Such costs could have a matenal adverse impact on AB InBev's cash flows, results of
operations or both. Further, AB InBev may restrict the amount of dividends it will pay as a result of AB InBev's level of debt and iis strategy
to give priority to deleveraging. Also, a credit rating downgrade could have a materal adverse effect on AB InBev's ability to finance its
ongoing operations or to refinarice its existing indebtedness. In addition, a falure of AB InBev to refinance all or a substantial amount of
s debt obligations when they become due, or more generally a fallure to raise additional equity capital or debt financing or to realize
proceeds from asset sales when needed, would have a matenal adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

AB InBev's results could be negatively affected by increasing interest rates Although AB InBev enters into interest rate swap agreements
to manage Its interest rate nisk and also enters into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to manage both its foreign currency risk
and interest-rate nsk on mterest-beanng financial lapilities, there can be no assurance that such instruments will be successful in reducing
the risks iInherent In exposures to interest rate fluctuations

Certain of AB InBev's operations depend on independent distributors' or wholesalers' effors to sell AB InBev's progucts and there can be
no assurance that such distrbutors will not give pronty to AB InBev's competitors. Further, any inability of AB InBev to replace
unproductive or inefficient distributors or any imitations imposed on AB InBev to purchase or own any interest in distributors or wholesalers
as a result of contractual restrictions, regulatory changes, changes in legislation or the interpretabions of legislation by regulators or courts
could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operations and financial condition

The continued consolidation of retailers in markets in which AB InBev operates could resuit in reduced profitability for the beer industry as
a whole and indirectly adversely affect AB InBev's financial results

A partion of the company’s global portfolio consists of associates in new or developing markets, including investments where the company
may have a lesser degree of control over the business operations The company faces several challenges inherent to these vanous
cuiturally and geegraphically diverse business interests Although the company works with (is associales on the implementation of
appropriate processes and controls, the company also faces addiional nsks and uncertainties with respect to these minonty Investments
because the company may be dependent on systems, controls and personnel that are not under the company's control, such as the risk
that the company's associates may violate applicable laws and regulations, which could have an adverse effect on the company’s
business, reputation, results of operations and financial condstion

AB InBev relies on key tnird parties, mcluding key suppdiers, for a range of raw matenals for its beer, alcoholic beverages and soft dnnks,
and for packaging matenal The termination of or a matenal change to arangements with certain key suppliers or the failure of a key
supplier to meel its contractual obligations could have a matenal impact on AB InBev's production, distnbution and sale of beer, aicohotic
beverages and soft drinks and have a matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial
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condition Certain of AB InBev's subsidianies may purchase nearly all of their key packaging materials from sole suppliers under multi-
year contracts The ioss of or temporary discontinuity of supply from any of these suppliers without sufficient me to develop an aiternative
source could cause AB InBev to spend increased amounts on such supplies in the future. In additicn, a number of key brand names are
both licensed to third-party brewers and used by companies over which AB InBev does not have control. Although AB InBev monitors
brewing quality to ensure its high standards, to the extent that one of these key brand names or joint ventures, companies i which
AB InBev does not own a controlling interest and/or AB InBev's [icensees are subject to negative publicity, it could have a matenal adverse
effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condiion.

The size of AB InBev, contractual irmtations 1t 18 subject to and its posihion In the markets n which it operates may decrease its ability to
successfully carry out further acquisitions and business integrations. AB InBev cannot enter info further transactions uniess it can identify
suitable candidates and agree on the terms with them The size of AB InBev and its position in the markets in which it operates may make
it harder to dentify sutable candidates, including because it may be harder for AB InBev to obtain regulatory approval for future
transactions. If appropniate apportunities do become available, AB InBev may seek to acquire or invest in other businesses; however, any
future acquisitton may pose regulatory, antitrust and other nsks

The ability of AB InBev's subsidianes to distribute cash upstream may be subject to various conditions and hmitations, The inability fo
obtain sufficient cash flaws from its domestic and foreign subsidiaries and affilated companies could adversely impact AB InBev's ability
to pay dividends and otherwise negatively impact ts business, results of operations and financial condition

An inability to reduce costs could affect AB InBev's profitability and, in particular, AB InBev may not be able to fully realize the anticipated
benefits and synergies of the combination with SAB The integration process continues to involve costs and uncertainties, including
increased exposure to certain risks arising from the challenge of continuing to develop collaborafive rel@ahonships with SAB's former
partners i Eurasian and Afncan countnes Additionally, the Tax Matters Agreement AB InBev has entered into with Altna Group Inc.
imposes some lmits on the ability of the Combined Group to effect some reorganizations, which may Imit its capacity to integrate SAB’s
operations.

Faillure to generate sighificant cost savings and margin improvement through iniiatves for improving operational efficencies could
adversely affect AB InBev's profitabality and AB InBev's ability to achieve its financial goals A number of AB InBev's subsicianes are n
the process of executing a major cost saving and efficiency program and AB InBev 1s pursuing a number of imiatives to improve
operational effiiency. If AB InBev fails for any reason to successfully complete these measures and programs as planned or to derive the
expected benefits from these measures and programs, including f we fail to reahze the fuil anticipated synergies of the combination with
SAB, there is a nsk of Increased costs associated with these efforts, delays in benefit realization, disruption to the business, reputahonai
damage or a reduced competitive advantage in the medium term

A substantial porhian of AB InBev's operations are carned out in developing European, Afncan, Asian and Latin Amencan markets. AB
inBev's operations and equity Investments in these markets are subject o the customary nsks of operating In developing countnes, which
include, amongst others, pohtical instability or insurrection, external interference, financal risks. changes in government polhcy, political
and economic changes, changes in the relations between countries, achons of governmental authonties affecting trade and foreign
investment, regulations on repatnation of funds, interpretation and application of local laws and regulations, enforceability of intellectual
property and contract nghts, local labor conditions and regulations, lack of upkeep of public infrastruclure, potential political and economic
uncertainty, applicabon of exchange controls, nationalization or expropnation, empowerment legisiation and policy, corrupt business
environments, crime and lack of law enforcement as well as financial nsks, which include risk of iliquidity, inflation, devaluation, price
volatiity, currency convertibiity and country default. Moreover, the economies of developing countnes are often affected by changes in
other developing market countries, and, accordingly, adverse changes in developing markets elsewhere in the world could have a negative
impact on the markets in which AB InBev operales. Such developing market nsks could adversely impact AB inBev's business, results of
operations and financial condition  Furthermare, the global reach of AB InBev's operations exposes It to nsks associated with doing
business globally, ncluding changes i tariffs. The Office of the United States Trade Representative has enacted tanffs on certain imports
into the United States from China. If significant tanffs or other restrictions are placed on imparts from China or any retaliatory trade
measures are taken by China, AB InBev's business and resuits of operations couid be matenally and adverseiy affected.

Following the categonzation of Argentina in AB InBev's results for the third quarter of 2018 as a country with a three-year cumulative
inflation rate greater than 100%, the country 1s considered as a hypennflationary economy in accordance with [FRS rules (IAS 28), resulting
in the restatement of certain resuits for hyperinflation accounting If the econanuc or poltical situation i Argentina further deteriorates, the
Latin Amenca South operations may be subject to additional restrictions under new Argentinean foreign exchange, export repatriation or
expropriation regimes that could adversely affect AB InBev's iquidity and operations, and ability to access funds from Argentina.

AB InBev relies on the reputation of its brands and its success depends on its ability 1o maintan and enhance the image and reputation
of its existing products and to develop a favorable image and reputation for new products. An event, or senes of events, that matenally
damages the reputation of one or more of AB inBev's brands could have an adverse effect on the value of thal brand and subsequent
revenues from that brand or business Further, any restrictions on the permissible advertising style, media and messages used may
constrain AB InBev's brand building potential and thus reduce the value of its brands and related revenuas

Competition and changing consumer preferences in its vanous markets and increased purchasing power of players m AB InBev's
distribution channels could cause AB InBev to reduce prices of its products, Increase capital investment, increase marketing and other
expenaitures or prevent AB inBev from increasing prices to recover higher costs and thereby cause AB InBev to reduce margins or fose
market share Any of the foregaing could have a matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's business, financial condition and results of
operations Also, innovation faces mherent nsks, and the new products AB InBev introduces may not be successful, while competiors
may be able to respond mare quickly to the emenging trends, such as the Increasing consumer preference for “craft beers” produced by
smaller microbrewenes.

The partnership between Labatt, the Canadian subsidiary of ABl's subsidiary Ambev, and Tilray to research non-alcohol beverages
contaiming tetrahydrocannatynol and cannabidiol, both derived from cannabis, could lead to increased legai, reputational and financial
risks. While this partnership 1s currenily imited 1o research in Canada, the laws and regulations goverming recreational cannabis are stilf
developing, ncluding in ways that AB InBev may not foresea For instance, the involvement in the legal cannatis industry 1n Canada may
Invite new regulatory and enforcement scrutiny in other markets  Cannabis remains illegal in many markets in which AB InBev operates,
and violations of Law could result in significant fines, penaltes, administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements ansing from civil
proceedings or criminal charges. Furthermore, the political enwiranment and popular support for cannabis legalization has changed guickly
and remains in flux
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If any of AB InBev's products 1s defective or found to contain contarminants, AB InBev may be subject to product recalis or other abiliies
Although AB InBev maintans nsurance against certain product hability (but not product recall) nsks, it may not be able to enforce its nghts
in respect of these policies and, In the event that cantamination or a defect occurs, any amounts it recovers may not be sufficient to offset
any damage it may suffer, which could adversely impact its business, reputation, prospects, results of operations and financial condition

In recent years, there has been increased public and poitical attention directed at the alcoholic beverage and food and soft drinks
industries, as a result of health care concerns related to the harmful use of alcohol (Inciuding drunk dnving, dnnking white pregnant and
excessive, abusive and underage drinking) and to health concems such as diabetes and obesity related to the overconsumption of food
and soft drinks. Negative publicity regarding AB InBev's products and brands, publication of studies indicating a significant nsk wn using
AB InBev's products or changes In consumer perceptions in relation to AB inBev's products generally could adversely affect the sale and
consumption ef AB InBev's products and could harm its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition Concerns over
alcohol abuse and underage drinking have also caused governments, including those in Argentina, Brazil, Spain, Russia, the United
Kingdom, South Africa, Austraha and the United States, to consider measures such as increased taxation, implementation of mimimum
alcohal pricing regimes or other changes to the regulatory framework governing AB InBev's marketing and other commercial practices

Clmate change or other enwironmental concerns, or legal, regulatory or rmarket measures to address clmate change or other
environmental concerns, could have a long-term, matenal adverse impact cn AB inBev's business and results of operations. Further,
water scarcity or poor water quality may affect AB InBev by increasing production cosls and capacity constraints, which could adversely
affect AB inBev's business and resufts of operations Addtionally, AB InBev's imability to meet its complance obligations under EU
emisstons trading regulations may also have an adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operations

AB InBev's operations are subject 1o environmental regulations, which could expose it to significant compliance costs and litigatien relating
to enwironmental 1ssues

AB InBev may not be able to protect its current and future brands and products and defend ts intellectual property nghts, includmg
trademarks, patents, domain names, trade secrets and know-how, which could have a matenai adverse effect on its business, results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition, and in particular, on AB InBev's ability to develop its business

AB InBev could incur significant costs as a result of compliance with, and/or violations of or habilitses under, vanous regulations that govern
AB InBev's operations or the operatons of its icensed thurd parties, including the General Data Protection Regulaton adopted in the
European Union, which was fully implemented i May 2018 Also, public concern about beer, alcoholic beverages and soft drnk
consumphion and any resulting restnctions may cause the social acceptabiity of beer, alcoholic beverages and soft dnnks to deciine
significantly and consumption trends to shift away from these products, which would have a matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's
pusiness, financial condition and results of operations

AB InBev 15 now, and may in the future be, a party to legal proceedings and clams, including collective suits (class actions), and significant
damages may be asserted against it. Given the inherent uncertainty of litigation, it 1s possible that AB InBev might incur liabilties as a
consequence of the proceedings and clams brought against it, including those that are not currently believed by it to be reasonably
possible, which could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
Important contingencies are disclosed in Note 32 Contingencres of the 2018 consohdated finanoiat statements

AB inBev entered into a consent decree with the U.S Departiment of Justice in relation to the combination with SAB, pursuant to which
AB InBev's subsidiary, Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC, agreed not to acquire control of a distnbutor if doing so would result In more
than 10% of ts annual volurme being distnbuted through distnbutorships controlled by AB InBev in the U S AB InBev's compliance with
its obligations under the settlement agreement 1s monitored by the U.S Department of Justice and the Monitoring Trustee appointed by
them Were AB InBev to fail 1o fulfill its obligations under the consent decree, whether intentionally or inadvertently, AB InBev could be
subject to monetary fines

AB InBev may be subject to adverse changes in taxation, which makes up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to consumers in
many junsdictions Increases in excise and other indirect taxes appiicable to AB InBev's products tend to adversely affect AB InBev's
revenue or margins, both by reducing overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to ather categones of bevarages.
Minimum pnomg 1s another form of fiscal regulation that can affect AB InBev's profitability Furthermore, AB InBev may be subject to
increased taxation on its operations by hational, local or foreign authonties, to higher corporate iIncome tax rates or to new or modified
taxation regulations and requirements. For example, the work being carrned out by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development on base erosion and profit shifting and initklatives at the European Union level {including the antitax-avoidance directive
adopted by the Council of the European Union on 12 July 2016) as a response to increasing globalization of trade and business operations
coufd result in changes In tax treaties, the introduction of new legistation, updates to ewsting legislation, or changes to regulatory
interpretations of existing legisiation, any of which could impose additional taxes on businesses An increase in excise taxes or other taxes
could adversely affect the financial results of AB InBev as well as its results of operations. Furthermore, the U.S tax reform signed on 22
December 2017 (the “Tax Act") brings major tax legistation changes into law While the Tax Act reduces the statutory rate of U.S. federal
corporate Income tax to 21% and provides an exemption for certain dividends from 10%-owned foreign subsidiaries, the Tax Act expands
the tax base by introducing further limitations on deductibility of interest, the imposition of a "base erosion and anti-abuse tax” and the
imposition of mimmum tax for “global intangible low-tax Income”, among other changes, which could adversely impact the company's
resulls of operations The overall impact of the Tax Act also depends on the future interpretations and regulations that may be 1ssued by
U S tax authonties, and it 1s possible that future guidance could adversely impact the financial results of the company

Antitrust and competition laws and changes in such laws or in the interpretation and enforcement therecf, as well as being subject to
regulatary scrutiny, could affect AB InBev's business or the businesses of its subsidianes For example, in connection with AB InBev's
previous acquisitions, vanous regulatory authorites have imposed (and may impose) conditions with which AB InBev 1s required to comply
The terms and conditions of certain of such authorizations, approvals andfor clearances required, among other things, the divestiture of
the company's assets or businesses to third parties, changes to the company's aperations, or other restrictions on the company'’s ability
10 operate in certain junsdictions Such actions could have a maternal adverse effect on AB InBev's business, resuits of operations, financial
condition and prospects. In addition, such conditions could diminish substantially the synergies and advantages which the company expect
to achreve frem such future transachons

AB InBev operates its business and markets its products in emerging markets that, as a result of political and economic instability, a lack
of well-developed legal systems and potentally corrupt business environments, present it with political, economic and operational nsks
Although AB InBev I1s committed to conducting business in a legal and ethical manner in compliance with local and international statutery
requirements and standards applicable o its business, there 1s a nsk that the employees or representatives of AB InBev's subsidianes,
affiliates, associates, joint veniures/operations or other business interests may take actions that viclate applicable laws and regulations
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that generally prohibit the making of improper payments to foreign government officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business,
mcluding laws relating to the 1987 OECD Conventon on Combating Bnbery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business
Transactions such as the LS. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K Bnbery Act

Although AB InBev's operations in Cuba are quantitatively immatenal, ts overall business reputation may suffer or it may face additonal
regulatory scrubiny as a result of Cuba being a target of U.S. economic and trade sanctons  If investors deaide to liguidate or otherwise
divest their investments N companies that have operations of any magnitude 1n Cuba, the market i1 and value of AB InBev's secunbes
could be adversely mpacted In addition, U.S. legisiation known as the "Helms-Burton Act” authonzes private lawsuits for damages
against anyone who traffics in property confiscated without compensation by the Govemment of Cuba from persons who at the time were,
or have since become, nationals of the United States  Although this section of the Healms-Burton Act 1s currently suspended, claims accrue
notwithstanding the suspension and may be asserted if the suspension is dscontinued AB fnBev has recewed notice of a claimt purporting
o be made under the Heims-Burton Act. AB InBev 15 curmently unable to express a view as to the validity of such claim, or as to the
claimants’ standing to pursue

AB InBev may not be able to recruit ar retain key personnel and successfully manage them, which could disrupt AB InBev's business and
have an unfavorable matenal effect on AB InBev's financial position, its income from operations and 1ts competitive position

Further, AB InBev may be exposed to labor stnkes, disputes and work stoppages or slowdowns, within its operations or those of its
suppliers, of an interruption or shortage of raw matenals for any other reason that could lead to a negative impact on AB InBev's costs,
earmngs, financial condiion, produchon level and ability to operate its business AB InBev's production may also be affected by work
stoppages or slowdowns that affect ts suppliers, distnbutors and retail delivery/logistics providers as a result of disputes under existing
collective labor agreements with labor unions, In connection with negotiations of new coliective labar agreements, as a result of suppher
financial distress or for other reasons. A work stoppage or slowdown at AB InBev's facilities could interrupt the transport of raw matenals
from its suppliers or the transport of its products to its customers. Such disruptions could put a strain on AB InBev's relabonships with
supplers and chents and may have lasting effects on its business even after the disputes with iis labor force have been resolved, including
as a result of negative publicity

AB InBev relies on information technology systems to process, transmit, and store electronic information. Although AR InBev takes vanous
actions to prevent cyber-attacks and to minimize potential technology disruptions, such disruptions could impact AB InBev's business. For
example, f outside parlies gained access 10 AB InBev's confidenhal data or strateqic information and appropnated such information or
made such information public, this could ham AB InBev's reputation or its compettive advantage, or could expose AB InBev or its
customers to a nsk of joss or misuse of information. Mare generally, technology disruptions can have a matenal adverse effect on
AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condiion

AS InBev's business and operahng results could be negaltively impacted by social, tachrical, natural, physical or cther disasters

Although AB InBev maintains insurance pohcies to cover vanous nsks, it also uses self-nsurance for most of its ingurable nsks  Should
an uninsured loss or a 108s I excess of insured imits oceur, this could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operatons and
financial condition.

As a result of the combination with SAB, AB InBev recognized a significant amount of incremental goodwill on its balance sheet If the
integration of the businesses meets with unexpected difficulties, or if the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, Impairment
charges may be incurred in the future that could be significant and that could therefore have a matenal adverse effect on s results of
operations and financial condition

If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, impaiment charges on goodwill or other intangible assets may be incurred in
the future that could be significant and that could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations and financial condition

The audit report included in AB InBev's annual report 1s prepared by an auditor who 15 not inspected by the U S Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board {(PCACB). This lack of PCAOB inspections in Belgium prevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating audits
and quality controt procegures of any auditors cperating 1n Belgium, including AB InBev's auditors. As a resuit, U S. and other investors
may be deprived of the benefits of PCAOB inspections

AB InBev's ordinary shares currently trade on Euronext Brussels in euros, the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in South Afncan rand, the
Mexican Stock Exchange in Mexican pesas and s ordinary shares rapresented by Amencan Depaositary Shares (the "ADSs") trade on
the New York Stock Exchange in U.S. dollars Fluctuations in the exchange rates between the euro, the South Afncan rand, the Mexican
pesc and the U S dollar may result in temporary differences between the vaiue of AB InBev's ordinary shares trading in different
currencias, and betwaen its ordinary shares and its ADSs, which may result in heavy trading by investors seeking to exploit such
differences

Risks arising from financial instruments
Note 29 of the 2018 consohdated financial statements on Risks ansing from financial instrumenis contain detaded mformation on the
company's exposures to financial nsks and its nsk management policies

Events after the balance sheet date

Please refer fo Note 35 Events after the balance sheel dafe of the consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

For information with respect to Corporate Governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance section, which forms an integral part of
AB InBev's annual report
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Adjusted segment information

AB inBev has updated its 2018 segment reporting for purposes of result announcement and intemal review by serior management from
1 January 2019 This presentation (referred to as the "2018 Reference Base") includes, for comparative purposes in 2019 and to faciltate
the understanding of AB InBev's underlying performance, (1) the new company organizational structure that will be effective 1 January
2019 (1) the mpact of hypennflation accounting for the Argentinean operations as If the company had applied hypennflation accounting
as of 1 January 2018 and (i) restated results considenng the new IFRS rules on lease accounting as If the company had applied the new
standard as of 1 January 2018 as detailed below

* The new arganizational structure that will be effective as of 1 January 2019 15 composed of five regions: North America, Middle
Americas, South Amernca, EMEA and Asia Pacific. The company's revised geographic regions and its Global Export and Holding
Companies will compnse the company's six segments for all financal reporting purposes The key changes in the company's structure
are as follows. (1) the new Middle Amencas region will combine the current Latin America West reqion and the business unit Central
America and Caribbean, that was previousiy reported in Latin Amenca North region, and (1) the new South Amenca region will combine
the current Latin Amenca South regron and Brazil, that was previously reported in Latin America North region These organizational
changes are effective as of 1 January 2019 and consequently will be reflected in the company's financiai statements as of that date
The 2018 Reference Base presents the quarterly and full year 2018 resuits of the company as if the arganizatonal changes had taken
place on 1 January 2018

® In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation resulting in the three-year curnulative inflation of Argentina to
exceed 100% in 2018, thereby triggenng the requirement to transition to hypennflation accounting. However, since the company first
applied hypennflation accounting as of the third quarter 2018, IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hypennflahonary Economies was not
applied for the company's results published pnor to that reporting period Therefore, the 2018 Reference Base reflects the quanterly
and full year 2018 results of the company as If hypennflahon accounting had been applied as of 1 January 2018. Each quarter was
restated to reflect the changes in general purchasing power of the local currency applicable to the penod (using official indices) befare
converting the indexed results at the closing rate applicable at the end of each quarter (instead of the average rate). See Note 4 Use
of eshmates and judgments for more details

» Effective 1 January 2018, IFRS 16 Leases will replace the current lease accounting requirements and introduces significant changes
to lessee accounting It requires a lessee to recogmize a “nght-of-use” asset and a lease labiity IFRS 16 also requires to recognize
a depreciation charge related to the “nght-of-use” assets and an interest expense on the lease labilites, as compared to the
recogmition of rental cost on a straight-ine basis over the lease term under the pnor standard The 2018 Reference Base presents the
quarterly and full year 2018 results of the company as if the standard had been applied as of 1 January 2018. See Note 3 (DD)
Recently 1ssued (FRS for more details

1Q 2018 202018 3Q 2018 4Q 2018 FY 2018

Reference Reference Reference Reference Reference

AB INBEV WORLDWIDE base base base bhase base
Volumes 134 831 143 685 146 187 142 363 567 066
Revenue 13 090 13764 13514 14 250 54 619
Cost of sales (5004) (5 092) (5042) (5 182) (20 320)
Gross profit 8086 B 672 8472 9 068 34 299
SG&A (4318) {4 455) (4 254) {4 181) (17 209)
Other operating income/{expenses) 186 211 220 1497 814
Normalized EBIT 3955 4428 4438 5084 17 504
Normatized EBITDA 5120 5582 5 606 6284 22 592
Normalized EBITDA margin 39.1% 40.6% 41.5% 44 1% 41 4%
1Q 2018 2Q 2018 3Q 2018 4Q 2018 FY 2018

Reference Reference Reference Reference Reference

NORTH AMERICA hase base base base base
Volumes 24 814 29813 28 985 26 114 110 726
Revenue 3 460 4 181 4 162 3700 15 504
Cost of sales (1298) {1534) (1 539} {1 394) (5 765}
Gross profit 2181 2647 2623 2307 9738
SG&A (1049 {1179) {1 161) {1 023) (4 413)
Other operating income/(expenses) 1 1 11 28 40
Narmalzed EBIT 1112 1 469 1473 1311 5 365
Normalized EBITDA 1322 1673 1683 1522 6189
Normatized EBITDA margin 38 2% 40 0% 40 4% 41 1% 40 0%



MIDDLE AMERICAS

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

Other operating income/{expenses)
Narmalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

SOQUTH AMERICA

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

Other operating income/{expenses)
Normalzed EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SGE&A

Other operating iIncome/(expenses)
Normahzed EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

ASIA PACIFIC

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normahzed EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin
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1Q 2018
Reference

base

30738
2705
{811)
1894
(798)

1102
1294
47 8%

1Q 2018
Reference
base

34 088
2 861
(1 082)
1778
(868)
82

992
1257
44.0%

1Q 2018
Reference

base

20 549
1919
(834)
1085
(722)

49
412
660

34 4%

1Q 2018
Reference
base

24 296
2040
(870}
1170
(622)

a1
589
772
37.8%

2Q 2018
Reference
base

32212
2 892
(851)
2 041
(827

21
1235
1448

50.1%

2Q 2018
Reference
base

30 383
2101
(797)
1304
(720)

74
657

42 1%

2Q 2018
Reference
base

2Q 2018
Reference
base

20 804
2327
(958)
1369
(741)

43
670
870

37 4%

3Q 2018
Reference
base

31813
2876
(837)
2038
(776)
a4
1306
1514
52 6%

3G 2018
Reference
base

31 297
1 964
(767)
1197
(624)

47
620
87y

a4 7%

3Q 2018
Reference
base

21 803
2095
(867)
1228
(699)

76
605
833

39 8%

3Q 2018
Reference
base

31 290
2310
(944
1366
(750)

43
659
861

I7.3%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

34 039
3141
{836)
2305
(775)

17
15486
1777

56 6%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

39 851
3313
(1 186)
2117
{764)
65
1418
1675
50 6%

40Q 2018
Reference
base

23484
2183
{887}
1297
{708)
40
629
846
38.7%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

18 875
1793
(760)
034
(656)

36
a4
628

35.0%

FY 2018
Reference
base

128 803
11614
(3 336)

8278
(3 1786)
88
5189
6033
51.9%

FY 2018
Reference
base

135618
10 238
(3842)

6 396
(2 976)
267
3688
4 696
459%

FY 2018
Reference
base

87 176
8374
(2 475)
4898
(2 879)
232
2251
3187
38 1%

FY 2018
Reference
base

104 266
8 470
(3531)
4939
(2 769)
63
2333
3131
37 0%
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1Q 2018 2Q 2018 3Q 2018 40 2018 FY 2018
GLOBAL EXPORYT AND HOLDING Refarence Reference Reference Reference Reference
COMPANIES base base base base base
Volumes 346 132 - - 478
Revenue 106 87 107 118 419
Cost of sales (107) (65) (88) (110) (370)
Gross profit {1) 22 19 2] 49
SGEA (260) (238) (244) (255) (996)
Other operating incomel{expenses) 8 ) - 11 25
Normalized EBIT (253) (209) (225) (235) (922)
Normalized EBITDA (184) (141) (164) (165) (653)

n



Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directers of AB InBev SA/NV certifies, on behalf and for the account of the company, that, to their knowledge, (a) the financial
statermants which have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards give a true and farr view of the
assets, liabiibes, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the entities included in the consolidation as a whole and (b) the
management report includes a fair review of the development and performance af the business and the position of the company and the
entities included n the consalidation as a whole, together with a descniption of the principal nsks and uncertainties they face
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter & reference to
he Company's disdosures
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We communicate wath the audst commuttee regardirg. amongst othar
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signdfcant
&t firdings. Including ary significant defioences n sternal controt
that we identfy dunng our audit

We also provde the audst committes with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and we communicate with them about afl relabonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought 10 bear our ndependence,
and whare appiicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated to the audit cammitee, we
determine thase matters that were of most sigruficance n tha audt
of the consolditad financal statements of the current periad and
ara therefore the key audx maters We dascrnbe these marters in
our auditor's report uniess law or regulation preciudes any pubic
disclosure about the matter

Report on other legal and regulacory requirements
Responsibilities of the board of directors

The board of direttors 1s responsible for the preparaton and
the content of the dwectors’ report on the consoldated financial
Siatements ang other matters dsdosed i this report

Responsibilities of the independent auditor

As part of pur mandate and v accorgance with the Baigian irevised in
2018) aucrung standard whech s complementary to the ISA apphcable
n Bolgum our respansitiity 15 0o venfy n all matenal respects, the
director’s raport on the consohdated financial statements and other
matters disclosed it the annual repart on the consabdated finarcal
Statements. as well as to report on these mamwers

Aspects regarding the directors’ report on the Consolidated
financal statements

I our opinion, after performing the specrfi procedures on the
directors report on the consolidated finanoal satemerts the
directors r#port on the consolidated finanoal statements 15 consistant
with the consobdated financal statemernks for the year and it has been
estabished o accordance with the reguiremants of article 119 of che
Comparies Code

Deloitte.

Deivitte Bedr {frravitonen/Riviseurs SENtreprises
| kherdrSocdt
Brissel Natacasi t | 6 1930

im the cortext of pur auct of the consalidated finrancal statements we
are responsibie for considenng. v parcuiar based on iInformanan that
we pecame aware of guring the audit, If the drectors’ report on the
conzolidated financiat statements is free of matenal msstatements.
erther by irformation that © incorrectly stated o otherwise misleadng
In the cortext of the procedures performed, we are not awara of such
a matenal misstatem-ent.

St. regarding indep .

» Qur audit firm and aur network have not performed ary prohibied
services and our audt firm hag remaned moependent from the
Company during the performance of our mandate

The fees for the nor-audit serices compathle wah the augt of the
consolidated financial statements as defined in armcle 134 of the
Comparies Code have besn propery disclosad and deaggregated v
the desdiosuras to the cor financal s 1S,

Other statements
= Thus report is consistert with our additonal repost to the audit
committee referrea to it article 11 of Regulabon (EU} No 537/2014

e -
o
——

l#ﬁtte Bedrijfsrevisoren/Réviseurs dEntreprises
CVBAJSCRL
Represented py joal Brehmen

Zaventem, 27 Febryary 2013

d COOpr ative 3 resporcabitd mde
Zeenvem

VAT BE 0429 052863 - RPR Brutsel R Sruxeiies - IBAN BE 17 2300 D465 6121 - BIC GEBABEBS

Laarmpier of Claiore Tr. emm Tommate. s maad
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December

Million US dollar, except earnings per shares in US doliar

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distnbution expenses

Sales and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating Income/{expenses)

Profit from operations before non-recurring items

Restructunng

Acguisition costs business combinations
Business and asset disposal

Provision for EU investigation

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Finance income

Non-recurnng net finance income/({cost}
Net finance income/{cost)

Share of result of associates and joint ventures
Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit from continuing operations

Profit from discont:nued operations

Profit of the period

Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to
Equity holders of AB InBev
Non-controlling interest

Profit of the penod attnbutable to
Equity holders of AB InBev

Non-controlling interest

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earmings per share

Basic earmings per share from cantinuing operations
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic earnings per share before non-recurnng tems and discontinued operations’
Diluted earnings per share before nan-recurning tems and discontinued operations’

Underlying EPS'

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes

0 0 @ &

11
11
11

23
23

23
23

23
23

23

2018

54 619
(20 359)
34 259

(5 770)
(7 883)
(3 465)

680
17 821

(385)
74
{26)

(230)

17 108

(7 186)

440
{1982)
{8 729)

153
8330

(2 839)
5691

5601

4 368
1323

4368
1323

221
217

.21
217

3.44
3.38

4.38

2017

56 444
(21 386)
35058

(5 876}
(8 382)
(3 841)

854
17 814

(468)
(155)
(39}

17 152
(6 192)
378
(693)
(6 507)

430
11 076

{1 920)
9155

28

9183

7 968
1187

7 996
1187

408
388

404
396

4.04
396

419

' Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share before non-recurnng items and discontinued operations, as well as Uinderlying EPS, are not defined

metncs 10 IFRS Refer to Note 23 Changes w aquity and earmngs per share for more details
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Far the year ended 31 December
Million US dotlar

Profit of the period

Other comprehensive income: items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits

Other comprehensive income: items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of net investment hedges

Cash flow hedges recogrized in equity

Cash flow hedges reclassified from equity to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Attnbutable to

Equity holders of AB InBev
Non-controlling interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consoldated financial statements.
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2018

3691

(7 924)
114
512

(585)

(7 883)

(7 764)

{2073}

(3005)
932

2017

9183

(37)
(37)

1716
(542)
(60)
(36)
1077

1040

10 223

8 838
1385




Consolidated statement of financial position

31 December

As at
Million US doHar

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investmenis in associates and joint ventures
Investment secunties
Deferred tax assels

Employee benefits

Income tax recewables
Denvatives

Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Investment secunties
Inventories

Income tax recewvables
Dervatives

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

issued capital

Share premium

Reserves

Retained earmings

Equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

Deferred tax Labilities

Income tax payables

Derivatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Interest-bearing loans and bomowings
Income tax payables

Dernvatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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13
14
15
16
17
18
25

29
20

17
19

29
20
21
22

23

33

24
25
18

29
28
27

21
24

29
28
27

2018

25910
133311
44 831
6 136
108
1457
16

992

291
769
213 822

87
4234
457
16
68375
7074
39

18 281

232103

1736
17 620
12 056
26074
64 486

7418
71904

105 584
2681
13 165
576
766
18186
1152
125740

114
4216
1220
5574

22 568

766

34 459

232103

31 December

2017

27 184
140 840
45 874
5263
100

t 216
22

708

25

834
222 166

1304
4119
908
458

6 566
10472
133
23 960

246 126

1736
17 620
24 835
28 394
72 585

7 635
B0 220

108 8949
2993
13107
732
937
1462
1515
129 695

117
7433
1 558
1457

24 762

885

36 211

246 126
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable tc equity holders of AB InBev
Share-

based
Issued Share Treasury payment
Million US dollar Capital premium shares Reserves reserves

As per 1 January 2017 1736 17 820 (8 980) 45726 1437
Profit of the period - - . - .
Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operatons (gamns/(losses))

Cash flow hedges - - - - R

Re-measurements of post- - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - . - -
Diwvidends - - - - -
Treasury shares - - - - .
Share-based payments - - - - 316
Purchasef(sale) of non-controlling - - - - -
Scope and other changes - - - - _
As per 31 December 2017 1736 17 620 (8 980) 45726 1753

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

" Share-
based
issued Share Treasury payment
Million US dollar Capital premium shares Reserves reserves
As per 1 January 2018 1738 17 620 (8 980) 45726 1753
Impact of adopting IFRSs 9 and 15' - - - - -
As par 1 January 2018, as adjusted 17136 17 620 {8 880) 45726 1753
Profit of the period - - - - -
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (gains/(losses)) - " " - -
Cash flow hedges - . - - -
Re-measurements of post- - - - - -
Total comprehensive Income - - - - -
Dividends. . - - - -
Treasury shares' - - 2431 - -
Share-based payments - - - - 284
Purchase/(sale) of non-controtling - - - - -
Hyperinfiation monetary adjustments - - - - -
Scope and other changes . - - - -
As per 31 December 2018 1736 17 620 (6 549) 45726 2037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

' See Note 3 (E) Summary of changes in accounting polioes



Attributable te equi

Gther
comprehensive Deferred
income share
reserves’ instrument
{15 626) 1212
1053 -
(158) -
(53) -
842 .
- (93)
{14 784} 1119

Retained
earnings

28 214
7 996

7996
(7 821)

Attributable to equi

Other
comprehensive Deferred
income share
regerves’ instrument
(14 784) 1419
(14 784) 1419
{7 379) -
(82) -
98 -
(7 313) -
- (56)
- (1 063)
(22 157) -

1 See Note 23 Ghanges in equity and earmings per share

Retained
earnings

28394
(4)

28 390
4368

4368
(6 258)
(1 368)

429
560
(48)
26074

holders of AB InBev

71338
7996

1053
(158)
(53)
8838
(7 914)

316

holders of AB InBev

72 585
(4)

72 581
4388

(7 379)
(92)

(3 00%)
{6 314)

284
429

(48)
64 436

AB InBev annual report 2018

Non-controlling
interest

10 086
1187

121

61

16
1385
(1316)
18

(2 401}
(137)
7635

Non-controlling
interest

7635

(42)
7593
1323

{431)

40
1

932

{1 123)
6
(429}
345

94
7418

1174

(96)
(37)

10 223
(9 230)
333

(2 401)
(1323
80 220

80 220
(48)
80 174
5691

(7 810)

(52)
99

(2 073)
(7 437)

290

905
46
71904
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December
Mitlion US dollar Notes 2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit of the period 5691 9183
Depreciation, amortizaton and imparment 10 4 260 4 276
Impaiment losses on receivables, inventories and other assels 115 130
Additions/{reversals) in provisions and employee benefits 505 178
Net finance cost/{income) " 8729 6 507
Less/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (82) {(117)
Loss/(gan) on sale of subsidianes, associates and assets held for sale (20) (47
Equity-settied share-based payment expense 26 337 as51
Income tax expense 12 2830 1920
Other non-cash items included in profit {660) (284)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures {153) {430)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of 21 561 21 667
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables (38) 67
Decrease/(increase) in inventories {603) (213)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1153 365
Pension contnbutions and usa of provisions {488) (616)
Cash generated from operations 21585 21270
Interast paid {4 445) {4 B52)
Interest received 428 811
Dividends received 141 142
Income tax paid {3047) (2 141}
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14 663 15 430

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets 13115 {5 086) (4 741)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets 437 617
Proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures 22 {330) 11 697
Taxes on SAB transaction-related divestitures {100) (3 448)
Acquisition of subsidaries, net of cash acquired 6 (112) (598)
Sale of subsichanes, net of cash disposed of 4] 257 42
Net proceeds from sale/{acquisition) of investment in short-term debt secunties 17 12986 4 337
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisihon) of other assets {172) (264)
Net repayments/(payments) of loans granted (156) 213
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {3 985} 7854
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of non-controlling interest 23 {923) (206}
Praceeds from borrowings 24 17 782 13352
Payments on borrowings 24 {22 489) (23 333)
Cash net finance (gostyincome other than interests (664) (1 542)
Dividends paid {7 761} (9 275)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (13 843} (21 004)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {3 247) 2280
Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at beginning of year 10 356 B 395
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (148) (319)
Cash and c¢ash equivalents less bank overdrafts at end of period 21 6 960 10 356

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Corporate information

Statement of compliance

Summary of significant accounting policies
Use of estimates and judgments
Segment reporting

Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
Other operating income/(expenses)
Non-recurring items

Payroll and related benefits

Addticnal information on operating expenses by nature
Finance cost and income

Income taxes

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments In associates

Investment securthes

Deferred tax assets and labitities
Inventones

Trade and other recervables

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with
assets held for sale and discontnued operations

Changes in equity and eamings per share
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

Provisions

Trade and other payables

Risks ansing from financial instruments
Operating leases

Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, loans to customers and other

Contingencies

Non-controlling interests

Related parties

Events after the balance sheet date
AB InBev companies

Note
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1. Corporate information

Anheuser-Busch InBev 1s a publicly traded company {Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary istngs on the Mexico
(MEXBOL ANB) and South Afnca [JSE ANH) stock exchanges and with Amencan Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the onginal social network, has been bringing people together
for thousands of years. We are commuittad to buiding great brands that stand the test of tme and to brewing the: best beers using the finest
natural ingredients Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella Artois®;
muiti-country brands Beck’s®, Caslie®, Castle Lite®, Hoegaarden® and Leffe®; and local champons such as Agula®, Antarctica®, Bud
Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Cnstal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Michelob Ultra®, Modelo Especial®, Quimes®, Victona®, Sednn® and Skol® Our
brewing hentage dates back more than 60D years, spanning continents and generations From our European rools at the Den Hoorn brewery
in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirt of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Africa dunng the Johannesburg gold rush To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of appraximately 175 000 employees based i nearly 50 countries
woridwide. For 2018, AB InBav's reported revenue was 54 6 bithion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and assaciates)

The consolidated financiai statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2018 compnse the company and its subsidianes
(together referred to as "AB InBev” or the “company”) and the company’s interest n associates, joint ventures and operations

The conschdated financial stalements were authonzed for issue by the Beard of Directors on 27 February 2019.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated finanoal statements are prepared In accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB") and In conformity with IFRS as adopted by the European Umon up to 31 December 2018
[collectively IFRS™) AB InBev did not early apply any new IFRS requirements that were not yet effective in 2018 and dwd not apply any
European carve-outs from IFRS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting pohcies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these consolidated financial statemants by
the company and its subsidianes.

{A) BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Depending on the applicable IFRS requirements, the measurement basis used in prepanng the financial statements 1s cost, net realizable
value, fair value or recaverable amount. Whenever IFRS prowdes an option between cost and another measurement basis (e g systematic
re-measurement), the cost approach 1s apphed

(B) FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Unless otherwmse specified, all financal information included in these financial statements has been stated in US doilar and has been
rounded to the nearest milion. As from 2009, following the combination with Anheuser-Bush, the company changed the prasentation
currency of the consolidated financia! statements from the euro to the US dollar to provide greater algnment of the presentation currency
with AB InBev's most significant operating currency and underlying financial performance The functional currency of the parent company
is the euro

(C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the apphcathon of policies and reparted amounts of assets and habilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumphons are based on historical experience and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the jJudgments about camying values of assets and labilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period m which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affacts only that period or in the penod of the rewision and future penods If the revision
affects both current and future penods.

(D) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by AB InBev. AB InBev controls an entity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts 1o, vanable retums
from its involvement with the entity and has the abifity to affect those returns through s power over the entity in assessing control, patental
voting nghts are taken into account. Control 1s présumed to exist where AB InBev owns, directly or indirectly, more than one half of the
voting nghts (which does not aiways equate to economic ewnership), unless it can be demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute
control. The financial statements of subsidianes are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Total comprehensive income of subsidianes is attnbuted to the owners of the company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the nan-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Associates are undertakings in which AB InBev has significant influence over the financial and operating policies, but which 1t does not
control. This 15 generally evidenced by ownership of between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts. A joint venture 1s an arrangement in which
AB InBev has jaint control, whereby AB InBev has rights to the net assets of the amangament, rather than nghts to its assets and abligations
for its habiibes Associates and joint ventures are accounted for by the equity method of accounting, from the date that significant nfluence
or joint control commences untl the date that signficant influence or joint control ceases When AB InBev's share of losses exceeds the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture, the carrying amount 1s reduced to nil and recognition of further losses 18 discontinued
except to the extent that AB InBev has incurred legal or constructive obhgations on behalf of the associate or joint venture
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Jomt operations arise when AB InBev has nghts to the assets and obligations to the liabilities of a joint arrangement AB InBev accounts for
1ts share of the assets, habilibes, revenues and expenses as from the moment joint operation commences until the date that joint operation
ceases

The financial statements of the company's subsidianies, joint ventures, joint operations and associates are prepared for the same reporting
year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policres. in exceptional cases when the financial statements of a subsidiary, joint
venture, joint operation or associate are prepared as of a different date from that of AB InBev, adjustrments are made for the effects of
significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of AB InBev's financial statements. In such cases, the difference
between the end of the reporting penod of these subsidianes, joint ventures, joint operations or associates from AB InBev's reporting penod
15 no maore than three months. Resuits from the company’s associates Anadolu Efes and Castel are reported on a three-month lag Therefore,
estimates are made to reflect AB InBev's share in the result of these associales for the last quarter. Such estimates are revisited when
required

Transactions with non-controlling Interests are treated as transackons with equity owners of the company For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary 1s recorded in equity Gains or [osses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity where there 1s no
loss of control

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between group companies have been eliminated
Unrealized gans ansing from transactions with jont ventures, jont operations and associates are eliminated to the extent of AB InBev's
interest In the entity Unreahized losses are elminated in the same way as unreahzed gains, but oniy to the extent that there 15 no evidence
of impaiment

A listing of the company’s most important subs:dianes, joint ventures, joint operations and associates 1s set out n Note 36 AB inBev
companies

{E) SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IFRS with effective application for annual periods beginning on 1* January 2018:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Conlracis with Customers became effective on 1 January 2018 and were apptied
by the company for the first ime as of that date

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS & replaces 1AS 39 and contains three main topics ¢lassification and measurement of financial iInstruments, impaiment of financiat
assets and hedge accounting The new hedge accounting model represents a significant overhaul ef hedge accounting that aligns the
accounting treatment with nsk management activittes. IFRS 9 also removes the volatiity in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the
credit nsk of labilies elected to be measured at farr value.

The company has apphed IFRS 9 Financial Instruments as of the effective date, without restatement of the comparative information for the
penod beginming 1 January 2017 Consequently, the disclosures for the comparative penods follow the classification and measurement
requirements under IAS 39 The company performed an impact assessment and concluded that IFRS 9 Financral Instruments does not
impact matenally its financial position, financial performance or risk management activities.

Under IFRS 9 the carmying amount of a debt should be adjusted when a madification does not result in the derecogrution of the financial
instrument Consequently, the company adjusted the carrying amount of its debt against Retained earrungs. This resulted in a decrease of
the carrying amount of the debt by 77m US dollar,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core pnnciple of the new standard is to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that
reflect the consideration (that 1s, payment) to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services The new
standard also resulis in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provides guidance for transactons that were not previously addressed
comprehensively (for example, service revenue and contract modfications) and improves guidance for multiple-element arrangements

The company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as of the effective date n accordance with the modified
retrospective application Under this approach, the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 must be recognized as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at the date of inial application and comparative perods are not restated On the implementation date, the
adjustment to the opening balance of equity resulted in a decrease of the retained eamings by 123m US dollar, to reflect the changes in
accounting policies refated to performance that, in accordance with IFRS 15, should be related to the transaction price underlying 2017
revenue.

A number of other new standards, amendment to standards and new interpretations became mandatary for the first tme for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have not been listed in these consolidated financial statements as they either do not apply or are
immaterial to AB InBev's consohidated financial statements.

(F) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated In foreign currencies are transiated at the balance sheet date rate Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of forewgn
currency transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and habilites denominated n foreign currencies are recognized in the
income statement Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and habikites denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at farr value
are translated to US dolar at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the farr value was deterrmined

Translation of the results and financial position of foreign operations
Assets and labilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Income
statements of foreign operations, excluding foreign entities in hypennfiationary economies, are translated to US dollar al exchange rates for



the year approximating the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions The components of shareholders’ equity are
translated at histoncal rates. Exchange differences ansing from the transtation of shareholders’ equity to US dollar at penod-end exchange
rates are taken to other comprehensive income (transiation reserves).

Financial Reporting in hyperinflationary economies

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluaton resulting in the three-year cumulative inflahon of Argentina to exceed
100%, thereby tnggenng the requirement to transiion to hypennflahon accounting as prescnbed by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hypennflalionary Econormies |IAS 29 requires to report the resuits of the company's operations in Argentina as If these were highly
inflationary as of 1 January 2018.

Under IAS 29, the non-monetary assets and habilibies stated at tustoncal cost, the equity and the income statement of subsidiaries operating
I hypennflaticnary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general price
index. These re-measured accounts are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate As a result, the balance
sheet and net results of subsidianes operating in hypennflation economies are stated in tarms of the measunng unit current at the end of
the reporting pericd

Exchange rates
The most mportant exchange rates that have been used in prepanng the financial statements are:

Closing rate Average rate
1 US doilar equals: - 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Argentinean peso 37.807879 18 774210 - 16.580667
Australian dollar 1.416593 1279580 1.334300 1.308997
Brazilian real 3.874806 3 308005 3.634827 3 201667
Canadian dollar 1.362882 1253982 1.293806 1.303248
Colomban peso 3 248.70 2 988.60 2 967.36 2 965.94
Chinese yuan 6.8777687 6.507500 6.581607 € 785280
Euro 0.873362 0833819 0.845697 0 886817
Mexican peso 19.682728 19 735828 19.185084 18.811612
Pound sterling 0.781249 0.739790 0.750773 0 773029
Peruvian nueveo sol 3.369998 3 244558 3.284477 3267432
South Korean won 111540 1 D67.63 1095.46 113404
South Afncan rand 14.374909 12 345193 13.105486 13 338803
Turkish hra 5.291532 3.790879 4.560685 2615028

{G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development
Expenditure on research achviies, undertaken with the prospect of garng new scientfic or technical knowledge and understanding, 1s
recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, I1s capitalized if the product or process 1s technically and commermially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of matenals,
direct labor and an appropnate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure 18 recognized in the income statement as an
expense as incurred Capitalized development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below) and imparrment
losses (refer {0 accounting policy O).

Amortization related to research and development intangible assets 1s included within the cost of sales If production related and in sales
and marketing If related to commercial activities.

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets

Supply and distribution rights

A supply nght 1s the night for AB InBev 1o supply a customer and the commitment by the customer 1o purchase from AB inBev. A distnbution
right 1s the nght to sell specified products in a cerlain temitory Acquired distnibution nghts are measured inibally at cost or farr value when
obtained through a business combination Amortzaton retated to supply and distribution rights 1s included within sales and marketing
expenses.

Brands

If part of the consideration paid In a business combination relates to trademarks, trade names, formulas, recipes or technological expertise
these intangible assets are considered as a group of complementary assets that 18 referred to as a brand for which one farr value 1s
delermineg Expenditure on internally generated brands s expensed as imcurred

Software

Purchased software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization. Expenditure on internally developed software is capitalized when
the expendilure qualifies as development activities; ofhenarse, it is recognized i the income staterment when mcurred Amortizatran related
to software 15 included n cost of sales, distnbution expenses, sales and markehing expenses or administrative expenses based on the
activity the software supports.
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Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, acquired by the company, are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and impaimment losses Other
intangible assets also include multi-year sponsorship nghts acquired by the company These are initially recognized at the present value of
the future payments and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitatized intangible assets 1s capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Amortization

Intangible assets with a finite Iife are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful hives. Licenses, brewing, supply
and distribution rights are amortized over the perod in which the nights exist Brands are considered to have an indefinite Iife unless plans
exist to discontinue the brand. Discontinuance of a brand can be ether thraugh sale or termination of marketing support. When AB InBev
purchases distribution nghts for its own products the Iife of these rights s considered indefinite, unless the company has a plan to discontinue
the related brand or distnbution Software and capitalized development costs related to technology are amortized over 3 to 5 years

Brands are deemed intangible assets with indefinite useful iives and, therefore, are not amortized but tested for imparrment on an annuat
basis {refer to accounting policy O).

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of intangibie assets are presented in the income statement as other operating iIncome Net losses on sale are included
as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized n the income statement when the significant nsks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred 1o the buyer, recavery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably,
and there 1s no continuing managenal involvement with the intangibie assets

{H) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The company applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for acquisibons of businesses. The cost of an acquisition 18 measured
as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, labilities incurred and equity instruments issued identifiable
assets, labilities and contingent llablities acquired or assumed are measured separately at therr fair value as of the acquisition date The
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company's interest in the fair value of the dentfiable net assets acquired 15 recorded as
goodwll

The allocaton of farr values to the identfiable assets acgured and labilities assumed s based on various assumptions requinng
management jJudgment

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination 1s achieved In stages, the acquistion date carrying value of AB InBev's prevrously held interest in the acquiree
1s re-measured 1o fair value at the acquisition date, any gains or losses anging from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss

() GOODWILL

Goodwll 1s determined as the excess of the consideration paid over AB InBev's interest In the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contngent liabiliies of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate recogmized at the date of acquisition All
business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

In conformity with IFRS 3 Busmness Combimations, goodwill 1s stated at cost and not amorhized but tested for impairment on an annual basis
and whenever there 1s an indicator that the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated, may be impaired (refer to accounting
policy O) Goodwll is expressed in the currency of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity to which it relates and 1s transiated to US dallar
using the year-end exchange rate In respect of associates and joint ventures, the carmying amount of goodwill 1s included in the carrying
amount of the investment in the asscciate

If AB InBev's interest In the net fair value of the Wentfiable assets, liabilites and contingent liabilibes recognized exceeds the cost of the
business combination such excess 18 recognized iImmediately 1n the income statement as required by IFRS 3 Business Combmnatrons.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill 1s expensed as (incurred

(J) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment 1s measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (refer to accounting policy [0}
Cost includes the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset ta the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management (e g nonrefundable tax and transport cost). The cost of & self-constructed
asset 1s determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as the useful
lives are reassessed and adjusted f appropnate, annually

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are captalized as part of the cost of
such assets

Subsequent expenditure

The cornpany recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an tem when
that cost 1s incurred 1if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the
itern can be measured reiably Al other costs are expensed as incurred

Depreciation

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value Residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually
Depreciation 1s calculated from the date the asset 1s avallable for use, using the straight-ine method over the esttmated useful lives of the
assets
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The estimated useful ives are defined In terms of the asset's expected utility to the company and ¢an vary frem one gecgraphical area to
another. On average the estimated useful lives are as follows

Industral buikdings — other real estate properties 20 - 50 years
Production plant and equipment:

Production equipment 10 - 15 years

Storage, packaging and handfing equipment & -7 years
Returnable packaging:

Kegs 2 - 10 years

Crates 2 - 10 years

Botties 2 - 5Syears
Paint of sale furniture and equipment £ years
Vehicles 5 years
Informathon processing equipment 3-5years

Where parts of an tem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment

Land I1s not depreciated as it 1s deemed to have an indefinite life

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of items of property, plant and equipment are presented in the iIncome statement as other operating income  Net losses
on sale are presented as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recogrnized in the iIncome staternent when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration 1s probable, the associated costs can be
estimated reliably, and there i1s no continuing managerial involvement with the property, plant and equipment

(K) ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance (eases are recognized as assets and habiities (Interest-beanny (cans and borrowings) at amounts equal to the
lower of the far value of the leased property and the present value of the mimimum jease payments at inception of the lease. Depracation
and impanrment testing for depreciable leased assets 1s the same as for depreciable assets that are owned (refer to accounting polcies J
and O).

Lease payments are apportioned beiwaer the outstanding kabiiity and finance charges so as to achieve a constant penodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the hability

{aases of assets under which all the nsks and rewards of ownership are substantially retained by the lessor are classtfied as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a strasght-ine basis over the term of the lease.

When an aperating lease 1s terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty
Is recognized as an expense In the penod in which termination takes place

{L) INVENTORIES

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable vaiue Cost includes expenditure incurred In acquiring the inventones and
bringing them to thenr existing location and condition  The weighted average methed 1s used in assigrning the cost of inventones

The cost of finished products and work in progress compnses raw matenals, other produchon materals, direct laber, other direct cost and
an allocation of fixed and variable overhead based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling pnce i the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated compietion and sefiing costs.

Inventones are wntten down on a case-by-case basis If the anticipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of the
inventones. The calculation of the net realizable value takes inte consideraton specific characteristics of each inventory category, such as
expiration date, remaining shelf Iife, slow-moving indicators, amongst others.

(M) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and generally
due for settiement within 30 days. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of the consideration that 1s unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at farr value. The company holds trade and other recevables with
tha objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate rethod

Trade and other recesvables are carned at amortized cost less impairmant losses To determine the appropriate amount to be impaired
factors such as significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default, enter nto bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, or delinquency in payments are considered

Other recevables are imbally recognized at farr value and subsequently measured at amortized cost Any impairment losses and foreign
exchange results are directly recognized in profit or loss

(N) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short-term highly iquid investments with a matunty of three months or less from
the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into cash They are stated at face value, which approximates therr fair value. in the cash
fow statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.
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{O) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there 1s any indication of impasrment. If there 1s an indicator of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estmated. In addition,
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet avallable for use and intangibles with an indefinite useful ife are tested for imparment annuaily
at the cash-generating unit level (that 1s a country or group of countnes managed as a group below a reporting region) An impatwrment loss
15 recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount Impaiment

losses are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recaverable amount

The recoverable amount of nen-financial assets 1s determined as the higher of their farr value less costs 1o sell and value v use For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the cash-generating unit to wiich
the asset belongs The recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite useful
life belong 1s based on discounted fulure cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the tune value of
maney and the nsks specific to the asset These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available far value indicators

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units firstly reduce allocated goodwill and then the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment losses

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaiment at each reporting
date An impairment loss i1s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized

(P) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
A number of AB InBev's accounting policies and notes require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial tems

Fair value 1s the pnce that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date When measuring far value, AB InBev uses observable market data as far as possible Fair values are categonzed
into different levels in a fairr value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows

s Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted prices :n active markets for identical assets or habilshes
* Level 2. inputs are observable either directly (1 e as pnces) or indirectly (1 e denved from prices)
* Level 3: farr vaiue measurements incorporates significant inputs that are based on unobservable markel data

If the inputs used to measure the farr value of an asset or liabihity fail into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the farr value
measurement Is categorized i its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 13 sigrificant to the entire
measurement

The company applies fair value measurement 1o the instruments isted below

Derivatives

The fair value of exchange traded denvatives (e.g exchange traded foreign currency futures) 1s determined by reference to the official pnces
published by the respective exchanges (e g the New York Board of Trade) The fair value of over-the-counter dervatives 1s determined by
commonly used valuation techniques

Debt securities

This category includes both debt securities designated at FVOCI and FVPL The farr value s measured using observable inputs such as
interest rates and forexgn exchange rates When it pertains to instruments that are publicly traded, the fair value 1s determined by reference
to observable quotes In circumstances where debt secunties are not publicly traded, the main valuation techmique 1s the discounted cash
flow The company may apply other valuation techniques or combination of valuation techriques If the fair value results are more relevant

Equity securities designated as at FYOCi
Investments in equity secunties compnse quoted and unquoted securties When iquid quoted pnces are avallable, these are used to far
value Investments in quoted secunties The unquoted secunties are far valued using prmanly the discounted cash flow method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
The fair value of non-derivative financial habilities 1s generally determined using unobservable inputs and therefore fall into level 3 In these
circumstances, the valuation techrique used 15 discounted cash flow, whereby the projected cash flows are discounted using a risk adjusted

rate
(Q) SHARE CAPITAL

Repurchase of share capital
When AB InBev buys back its own shares, the amount of the consideration pawd, including directly attnbutable costs, 1s recogmized as a

deduction from equity under treasury shares

Dividends
Dividends paid are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the date that the dividends are declared unless mirmimum statutory
dwidends are required by local legisiation or the bylaws of the company's subsidianies In such instances, statutory minmum dividends are
recognized as a lability



Share issuance caosts
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deducton, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(R} PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when (1} the company has a present legal or constructive obiigation as a result of past events, (11} it 1s probable
that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and () a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made Prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the tme value of money and, where appropriate, the nsks specffic to the liabifity

Restructuring

A prowsion for restructunng 1s recognized when the company has approved a detalled and formal restructunng plan, and the restructuring
has either commenced or has been announced pubiicly. Costs relating to the ongoing actmities of the company are not provided for The
provision includes the benefit commitments in connechon with early retirement and redundancy schemes

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous confracts 1s recognized when the expected benefits to be denved by the company from a contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obhgations under the contract. Such provision 1s measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract

Disputes and Litigations

A provision for disputes and tigation I1s recognized when it 1s more likely than not that the company will be required to make future payments
as a result of past events, such items may include but are not imited to, several claims, suits and actions relating to antitrust laws, violations
of distrbution and license agreements, environmental matters, employment related disputes, clams from tax authontes, and alcohol
industry liigatian malters

{S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-empioyment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions, post-employment Iife insurance and post-employment medical benefits, The company operates
a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are generally heid in separate trustee-
managed funds The penswon plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the company, and, for defined benefit plans
taking account of the recommaendations of independent actuanes. AB InBev mamtains funded and unfunded pension plans

a) Defined contribution plans

Contnbutions to defined contnbution plans are recognized as an expense In the mcome statement when incurred. A defined contribution
pian s 2 pension pian under which AB InBev pays fixed contributions inte a fund AB inBev has no fegal or constructive obligations to pay
further contnbutions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and pnor periods

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that s not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation For defined benefit plans, the pension expenses are assessed separately for each plan using the projected umit credit
method The projected unit credit method considers each penod of service as giving rise to an addiional unit of benefit entitiement. Under
this method, the cost of providing pensions s charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of qualified actuanes who carry out a full valuation of the plans at least every three years. The
amounts charged to the income statement include current service cost, net interest cost (Income), past service costs and the effect of any
curtalments or selilements Past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment / curtallment occurs or when the
company recognizes related restructunng or termination costs. The pension obligations recognized in the balance sheet are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates based on high quality corporate bond wields, which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related hability, less the far value of any plan assets. Re-measurements, comprising of actuanal
gains and losses, the effect of the asset celling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) are recognized
in fultin the penod In which they occur In the statement of comprehensive ncome Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Where the calculated arnount of a defined benefit labiity s negative (an asset), AB InBev recognizes such pension asset to the extent that
economic benefits are available to AB InBev either from refunds or reductions in fufure contnbutions

Other post-employment obligations

Some AB InBev companies provide post-amployment medical benefits 1o therr retirees The entitlement to these benefils s usually based
on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age. The expected costs of these benefils are accrued over the period of employment,
using an accounting methedolagy similar to that for defined benefit pension plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense at the earlier when the company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailled plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date and when the company recognizes costs
for a restructunng. Terminakion benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized If the compary has made an offer encouraging voluntary
redundancy and when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of termination, which 1s the earlier of either when the employee accepts
the offer or when & legal, reguiatory or contractual requirermnent or restnction on the company’s abifity to withdraw the offer takes effect



AB InBev annual reaport 2018

Bonuses

Bonuses received by company employees and management are based on pre-defined company and individual target achievement The
estmated amount of the bonus 1s recognized as an expense in the period the bonus 1s earned To the extent that bonuses are settled In
shares of the company, they are accounted for as share-based paymenis

(T) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Different share and share oplion programs allow company senior management and members of the board to acquire shares of the company
and some of its affilates The fair value of the share options 1s estimated at grant date, using an option pncing model that s most appropnate
for the respective option Based on the expected number of options that will vest, the fair value of the options granted 1s expensed over the
vesting perod When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received

Equity-setiled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the farr value of the goods or services
receved, except where that farr value cannot be estimated rehably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the company obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service

(U) INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings are recognized nihally at far value, less attnbutable transaction costs. Subsequent to inital
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrawings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the iniial amount and the
matunty amount being recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected hfe of the instrument on an effective
interest rate basis

(V) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(W) INCOME TAX

Income tax on the profit for the year compnses current and deferred tax. Income tax 1s recognized in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to 1tems recognized directly In equity, In which case the tax effect 1s also recognized directly In equity.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

In accordance with IAS 12 income Taxes deferred taxes are provided using the so-called balance sheet hability method  This means that,
for all taxable and deductible differences between the tax bases of assets and habilihes and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet a
deferred tax liability or asset 1s recognized Under this method a provision for deferred taxes 1s also made for differences between the fair
values of assets and habilities acquired in a business combination and their tax base 1AS 12 prescribes that no deferred taxes are recogrized
(1) om Imiial recogrition of goodwtll, (1) at the inihial recognition of assets or liatilites in a transaction that s not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and () on differences relating to investments in subsidianes to the extent that they wilt probably
not reverse In the foreseeable future and to the extent that the company 1s able to control the timing of the reversal. The amount of deferred
tax provided I1s based on the expected manner of reatization or settiement of the carryng amount of assets and labihties, using currently or
substantively enacted tax rales.

Deferred tax assets and liabivties are offset If there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax lilabihties and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entibes which intend either to settle current
tax abiities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the habilibes simultaneousiy.

The company recognizes deferred tax assets, including assets ansing from losses carned forward, to the extent that future probable taxable
profit will be avallable against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized. A deferred tax asset 1s reduced to the extent that it 1s na longer
probabie that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Tax ctams are recorded within provisions on the balance sheet (refer to accounting policy R)
{X) INCOME RECOGNITION

Goods sold

Revenue 1s measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitied in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts coltected on behalf of third parties The company recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied, meaning when
the company transfers control of a product to a customer

Speciically, revenue recognition follows the following five-step approach.

= |dentification of the contracts with a customer

+ |dentficaton of the performance obligations in the contracts

# Determination of the transaction pnce

* Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts

* Revenue recognition when performance obligations are satsfied

Revenue from the sale of goods 15 measured at the amount that reflects the best estmate of the consideration expected to receive In
exchange for those goods Confracts can include significant vanable elements, such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, Incentives, performance boruses and penalties Such trade incentives are treated as variable consideration If the
consideration includes a vanable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for

transferring the promised goods or services to the customer Vanable consideration is only included in the transaction price 1f it 1s highly
probable that the amount of revenue recognized would not be subject to significant future reversals when the unceriainty is resolved
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Royalty income

The company recognizes the sales-based or usage-based royalties in other operating income when the later of the following events occurs
(a) the customer's subsequent sales or usage; and (b) the performarnce obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based
royally has been allocated has been saksfied (or parhally satisfied)

Rental income
Rental income 1s recognized in other operating Income on a straight-ine basis over the temn of the lease.

Government grants

A government grant 1s recognized in the balance sheet intially as deferred incorme when there 1S reasonable assurance that it will be received
and that the company will comply with the conditions attached to it. Grants that compensate the company for expenses incurred are
recognized as other operating income on a systematic basis i the same pernods in which the expenses are ncured Grants that compensate
the company for the acquisition of an asset are presented by deductng them from the acquisition cost of the related asset.

Finance income

Finarice mcoma compnses interest recaived or recaivable an funds invested, dividend income, fareign exchange gams, lasses gn currency
hedging instruments offsetting currency gains, gams on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, gains on
financial assets measured at FVPL as well as any gains from hedge meffectrveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Interest iIncome 15 recognized as it acerues (talung into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectability 1s \n doubt.

Dividend income
Dwidend income 1s recognized in the Income staternent on the date that the dwidend 1s declared

(Y} EXPENSES

Finance costs

Finance costs compnse interast payable on borrowings, calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange Josses, gains
on currency hedging instruments offsetting currency losses, results on nterest rate hedging instruments, losses on hedging instruments
that are not part of a hedge accounting relatonship, losses on financial assets classified as trading, impairment losses on financial assets
as well as any losses from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Ail interast costs iIncurred IN connection with borrowings or financial transactions are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs Any
difference between the initial amount and the matunty amount of interest-beanng loans and borrowings, such as transaction costs and farr
value adjustments, arp recognized in the Income statement (in accretion expensa) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective
interest rate basis (refer to accounting palicy V). The interest expense component of finance lease payments is also recogmized 1n the
income stalement using the effective interest rate method

Research and development, advertising and promotional costs and systems development costs

Research, advertising and pramotional costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred. Development costs and systems
development costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred if they do not meet the crnitena for capitaiization (refer to
accounting policy G)

Purchasing, receiving and warehousing costs

Purchasing and recening costs are ncluded mr the cost of sales, as well as the costs of stonng and maving raw matenals and packaging
matenals. The costs of storing finished products at the brewery as well as costs incurred for subsequent storage in distnbution centers are
included within distrbution expenses.

{Z) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

AB InBev uses denvative financial instruments to mitigate the transachona! impact of foreign currencies, interest rates, equity pnces and
commodity prices on the company’s performance. AB InBev's financial nsk management policy prohibits the use of denvative financial
instruments for trading purposes and the company dees therefore not held or issue any such instruments for such purposes

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, the company initially measures a financial asset at its far vaiue plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attnbutabie to the acquisition or iIssue of the financial asset Debt financial
instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVQCI or FVPL. The classification 15 based on two cntena: the objective of the
company's business model for managing the assels, and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ on the pnncipal amount outstanding (the 'SPPI cntenon’).

The classification and measurement of the company's financial assets 15 as follows:

* Debl instruments at amortized cost: compnse investments in debt secunties where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest and the company's business model is to collect contractual cash flows. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and any impairment charges for such instruments are recegruzed in profit or loss.

& Debt instruments al FVYOC! with gains or iosses recycled to profit or loss on derscognition. compnse nvestments 0 debt securties
where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of pnncipal and interest and the company's business model 1s achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and seiling financial assets Interest iIncome, foreign exchange gains and losses and any impaiment
charges on such instruments are recognized 1n profit or loss. All other fair value gains and losses are recogrized in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of these debt secunties, any related balance within FVOCI reserve 18 reclassified to profit or loss

s Equity instruments designated af FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecogmition these instruments are
undertakings in which the company does not have significant influence or control and 1s generally evidenced by ownership of less than
20% of the voting nghts The company designates these nvestments on an mstrument by istrument basis as equity securries at FYOCH
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because they represent investments held for long term strategic purposes Investments in unguoted companies are subsequently
measured at cost, when appropnate These investments are non-monetary items and gans or losses presented in the other
comprehensive Income include any related foreign exchange component Dividends received are recognized in the profit or loss These
nvestments are not subject to smpairment testing and upan disposal, the cumulative gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income are not reclassified to profit or loss

* Financiat assets and labilites at FVPL- compnse derivative instruments and equity instruments which were not designated as FVQCE
This category also ncludes debt instruments which do not meet the cash flow or the business model tests

Hedge accounting
The company designates certain denvatives as hedging instruments to hedge the varability in cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions ansing from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity pnces To hedge changes in the fair
value of recognized assets, llabilities and firm commitments, the company designates certain denvatives as pari of farr value hedge The
company also designates certain denvatives and non-derivative financial labilities as hedges of foreign exchange nsk on a net investment
in a foreign operation

At the inception of the hedging relationships, the company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge Hedge effectiveness 15 measured at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between hedged item and hedging instrument

For the diferent type of hedges In place, the company generally enters into hedge relationships where the cntical terms of the hedging
instrument match exactly the terms of the hedged item. Therefore, the hedge ratio 1s typically 1°1 The company performs a qualiative
assessment of effectiveness. In circumstances where the terms of the hedged item no longer exactly match the cntical terms of the hedging
instrument, the company uses a hypothetical denvative method to assess effectiveness. Possible sources of neffectiveness are changes
in the tming of the forecasted transacton, changes in the quantity of the hedged dem or changes in the credit nsk of either parties to the
denvative contract

Cash flow hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting 1s applied when a denvative hedges the vanability in cash flows of a highly probable forecasted transaction,
foreign currency nsk of a firm commitment or a recogrized assat or iability (such as vanable interest rate instrument)

When the hedged forecasted transaction or firn commitment subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial tem, the armount
accumulated in the hedging reserves 1s included directly in the imitia carrying amount of the non-financial tem when it 1s recognized

For all other hedged transactions, the amount accumulated i the hedging reserves Is reclassified to profit or loss in the same peried during
which the hedged item affects profit or loss (e g when the vanable interest expense 1s recognized).

When a hedging instrurnent or hedge relationship 1s terminated but the hedged transaction 1s still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss (at that point) remans In equity and 1s reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged transaction occurs If the hedged transaction 1s no
longer expected 10 occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized In other comprehensive income 15 reclassified to profit or loss immediately

Any ineffectiveness 1s recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value hedge accounting

When a derivative hedges the vanability (n fair value of a recogrized asset or liability (such as a fixed rate instrument) or a firm commitment,
any resulting gain or loss on the hedging instrurnent s recognized In tha profit or loss. The carrying amount of the hedged item 1s also
adjusted for far value changes in respect of the nsk being hedged, with any gam or loss being recogmized in profit or loss The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item 15 amortized to profit or loss from the date of discontinuation

Net investment hedge accounting
When a non-denvative foreign currency lability hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, exchange differences ansing on the
translation of the hability to the functional currency are recognized directly in other comprehensive iIncome (translation reserves)

When a derivative financial instrument hedges 2 net investment :n a foreign operation, the portion of the gain or the loss on the hedging
instrument that 1s determined to be effective 1s recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves) and is reclassified
to profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation, while the ineffective portion 1s reported in profit or loss

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial labiliies are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial positron when, and only when,
the company has a currenily legally enforceable nght to set off the amounts and 1t intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the labihty simultaneously

{AA) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the company’s business activities about which separate financial infarmation 1s available that 1s
evaluated regularly by senior management The company has nine operating segments

AB InBev's operating segment reporting format 1s geographical because the company's nsks and raies of return are affected predominantly
by the fact that AB InBev operates n different geographical areas The company’s management structure and internal reporting system o
the Board of Directors 1s set up accordingly The company's six geographic regions are North America, Latin Amernca West, Latin Amenca
North, Latin Amenca South, EMEA and Asia Pacific

The aggregation critena applied are based on similanties in the economig indicators (e g margins) that have been assessed N determining
that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic charactenstics, as prescrnbed in IFRS 8 Furthermere, management
assessed additional factors such as management's views on the optimal number of reporting segments, the histoncal AB InBev geographies,
peer companson (e g Asia Paafic and EMEA being a commonly reported regions amangst the company's peers), as well as management’s
view on the optimal balance between practical and more granular information
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The results of Global Export and Holding Companies, which includes the company’s global headquarters and the export businesses in
countries in which AB InBev has no operations are reported separately. The company’s s(x geographic regions plus the Global Export and
Halding Companies compnse the campany's sever reportable segments for financial reporting purpases.

Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost Incured during the penod to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
other than goodwill,

(BB}  NON-RECURRING ITEMS

Non-recurning tems are those that in management’s judgment need to be disclosed separately by wirtue of their size or incidence Such
itemms are disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
Transactions which may give nse (o non-recurning items are principally restructunng activilies, impairments, gains or fosses on disposal of
invesiments and the effect of the accelerated repayment of certain debt faciliies.

{CC) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the company that either has been disposed of or 1s classified as held for sale and represents a
separate major Iine of business or geographical area of operations and i1s part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of or 15 a subsidiary
acquired exclusively wath a view to resale.

AB InBev classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continumng use if all of the conditicns of IFRS 5 are met. A disposal group 1s defined as a group of assets to
be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group n a single transachion, and liabiities directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred. iImmedhately before classification as held for sale, the company measures the carrying amount of the asset (or all the assets
and liabiities 1n the disposal group) In accordance with apphcable IFRS Then, on nitial classification as held for sale, non-current assets
and disposal groups are recogrized at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs to sell  Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale are included in profit or loss The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement. Non-current assets
classified as held for sale are no longer depreciated or amortized.

(OD)  RECENTLY ISSUED IFRS

To the extent that new IFRS requirements are expected to be apphicable in the future, they have been usted hereafter. For the year ended
31 December 2018, they have not been applied in prepanng these consolidated financial statements

The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued recently, but are not yet effective

IFRS 16 Leases (effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) replaces the current lease accounting requirements
and introduces significant changes o lessee accounting as if removes the distinchion between operating and finance leases under IAS 17
Leases and related interpretations, and requires a lessee to recognize a nght-of-use asset and a lease labiity at lease commencement
date IFRS 16 also requires to recognize a depreciation charge related to the nght-of-use assets and an interest expense on the lease
Irabiibies, as compared to the recognition of operating iease expense or rental cost on a straight-ine basis over the lease terrm under prior
requirements In addition, the company will amend ihe consaidated cash flow statement presentation, to segregate the payment of leases
1o a principal portion presented within financing activibies and an interest component presented within aperating actvities

For short-term leases and Isases of low value assets, the company will continue to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis as
permitted by IFRS 16. The company as a lessor will continue to classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for
those two types of leases differently

The company has chesan the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, consequently, will restate the comparative information in the
2019 financial statements. In addition, the company will apply the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 to not reassess
whether a contract 1s or contains alease Accordingly, the definion of a lease under IAS 17 and related iterpretations will continue to apply
to the leases entered or modified before 1 January 2019.

The company has assessed the impagct that the intial apphcation of IFRS 16 will have on its consolidated financial statements for leases
previously classified as operating leases. On transiton to IFRS 16, the company wil recognize 1 69Zm US doliar of nght-of-use assets and
1 782m US dollar of lease habiities, recognzing the difference in retaned earnings. When measunng lease habiities, the company
discounted lease payments using incremental borrowing rates The weighted average rate applied 1s 6%

Upon transition 1o JFRS 16, lease habihes are measured at the present value of fulure lease payments {equal to the operating lease
commitments as presanted in Note 30 Operafing leases) discounted using the incremental borrowing rates at the date of initial application.
The company did not make any matenal changes to these lease labilities

Other Standards, Interpretalions and Amendments to Standards

A number of other amendments to standards are effective for annual penods beginming after 1 January 2018, and have not been listed
above because of either their non-applicability to or thewr immatenality to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements

4. Use of estimates and judgments

The praparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affact the apphication of poiicies and reported amourts of assets and liabmties, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumpticns are based on historical expenence and various other factors that are belheved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and Ylabiliies that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting eshmates are recognized in the
penod in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period or in the penod of the revision and future penods If the revision
affects both current and future penods
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Although each of its sigmificant accounting policies reflects judgments, assessments or estimates, AB InBev believes that the following
accounting policies reflect the most critical judgments, estmates and assumptions that are ymportant to its business cperations and the
understanding of its results: business combinatons, intangible assets, goodwill, impairment, provisions, share-based payments, employee
benefits and accounting for current and deferred tax

The far values of acquired identifiable intangibles are based on an assessment of fulure cash flows Impairment analyses of goodwilt and
indefirite-Iived intangible assets are performed annually and whenever a inggering event has occurred, in order to determine whether the
carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount These calculations are based on estmates of future cash flows

The company uses its judgment to select a varnety of methods including the discounted cash flow method and option valuation models and
makes assumptions about the far value of financial instruments that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date

Actuarial assumptions are established to anticipate future events and are used in calculating pension and other long-term employee benefit
expense and liabiity These factors include assumptions with respect to interest rates, rates of increase in health care costs, rates of future
cormpensation increases, tumover rates, and life expectancy.

The company 15 subject to Income 1ax in numerous junsdictions. Significant jJudgment s required in determining the worldwide provision for
income tax There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertain. Some subsidianes within
the group are involved In tax audits and local enquines usualty in relation to prior years Investigatbons and negetiations with local tax
authonties are ongoing n vanous junisdictions at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these can take considerable time to conclude.
In assessing the amount of any Income tax provisions to be recognized In the financial statements, estimation 1s made of the expected
successful settlement of these matters. Estmates of interest and penalties on tax habilities are also recorded Where the final outcome of
these matters i1s different from the amounts that were inibally recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the perod such determination 1s made

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are further discussed in the relevant notes hereafter

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant jJudgments made by management in applying the company’s accounting
policies and the key sources of estimating uncertainty mainly refated to the reporting of the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’
existing Russia and Ukraine businesses into AB inBev Efes that closed on 30 March 2018 — see Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of
Subsidranes and Note 16 Jnvestrnents in associates, and to the adoption of hypennflation accounting for the company's Argentinean
operations

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation resulting in the three-year cumulative inflation of Argentina to exceed
100% n 2018, thereby tnggenng the requirement to transition to hypennflation accounting as prescnbed by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hypennflationary Economues as of 1 January 2018 The main principle in IAS 29 1s that the financial statements of an entity that reports in
the currency of a hypernflationary economy must be stated in terms of the measunng unit current at the end of the reporting period
Therefore, the non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at histoncal cost, the aquity and the income statement of subsidianes operating in
hypennflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general pnce index
Monetary items that are already stated at the measuring unit at the end of the reporting penod are not restated These re-measured accounts
are used for conversion into US dollar at the penod closing exchange rate

Consequently, the company has apphed hypernnflation accounting for its Argentinean subsidiaries for the first tre in these consolidated
financial statements applying the IAS 29 rules as follows

* Hypennflation accounting was applied as of 1 January 2018,

&« Non-monetary assets and labiities stated at histoncal cost (e g property plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, etc.} and
equity of Argentina were restated using an infiation iIndex The hypennflation impacts resulting from changes in the general purchasing
power until 31 December 2017 were reported In retained earnings and the impacts of changes in the general purchasing power from 1
January 2018 are reported through the income statement on a dedicated account for hypennflation monetary adjustments in the finance
ine (see also Note 11 Finance cosl and ncome),

* The income statement s adjusied at the end of each reporing penod using the change in the general price index and 1s converied at
the closing exchange rate of each perod {rather than the year to date average rate for non-hypennflationary economies), thereby
restating the year to date income statement account both for inflation index and currency conversion,

* The pnor year mncome statement and balance sheet of the Argentinean subsidianes were not restated

In 2017, the Argentinean operations represented 3 6% of the company’s consolidated revenue and 4.1% of the company's consolidated
rormahzed EBITDA. The Argentinean full year 2017 results were translated at an average rate of 16 580667 Argentinean pesos per US
dollar The 2018 results, restated far purchasing power, were translated at the December closing rate of 37807879 Argentinean pesos per
US dollar

In accordance with IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, when amounts are translated into the currency of non-
hypennflatienary economy, the comparative amounts are not adjusted for subsequent changes in the price level or exchange rates.
Therefore, the comparative amounts of Argentinean operations in these consolidated financial statements were not restated

Dunng 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulting from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulation and guidance Such remeasurement did not result y»n maternial changes to the reported
current and deferred taxes See Note 12 Income laxes for more details



5. Segment reporting

Segment information 18 presented by gecgraphical segments, conssstent with the information that 1s available and evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker AB InBev operates is business through seven business segments. Regional and operating comparny
management 1s responsible for managing performance, undertying risks, and effectiveness of operations, Intemally, AB InBev's
management uses performance indicators such as normalized profit from operatons (normalized EBIT) and normalized EBITDA as
measures of segment performance and to make decisions regarding allocabion of resources.

The company’s six geographic regions. North America, Latin America West, Latin Amenca North, Latin America South, EMEA and Asia
Pacific, plus its Glebal Export and Hoiding Companies compnse the company's seven reportable segments for financial reporting
purposes.

The results of the former SAB Central and Eastern European Business were reported as “Resuits from discontinued operations” until the
completion of the disposal that took place on 31 March 2017, The resulls of Distell were reported as share of results of associates until the
completion of the sale that occurred on 12 April 2017, and accordingly, are excluded from nommalized EBIT and EBITDA Furthermore, the
company stopped consolidating CCBA in its consolidated financial statements as from the completon of the transition of CCBA on 4
October 2017 and, following the completion of the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadoiu Efes’ existing Russid and Ukraine businesses
on 30 March 2018, AB InBev stopped consclidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its mvestment in AB InBev Efes
as results of associates as of that date

All figures in the tables below are stated in million US dollar, except volume (million his) and Normalized EBITDA margin (in %).

Latin America Latin America

North America West North

2018 2017 2018 2018
Volume 11 114 118 111 1s 119
Revenue 15 504 15 588 9 999 9238 8990 9775
Normalized EBITDA ¢ 150 6329 5198 4512 3926 4180
Normalized EBITDA margin % 39.7% 40 6% 52.0% 48 8% 43.7% 42 8%

reciaion, rhizat rrd

e amortization 3 {790) (843) {853) ®16) 1) (848)
Normalized profit from operations
(EBIT) 5380 5 486 4 544 3896 3168 3332
Non-recurnng tems (see Note 8) {10} 4 {125) {153) 5 {18)
Prafit from operations (EBIT) 5 350 5490 4419 3743 3170 3314

Net finance income/{cost)

Share of results of associates
and joint ventures

Income tax expense
Profit from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss)

Segment assets {ron-current) 63 180 63045 69100 71219 12 422 13756
Gross capex 858 530 1227 1079 838 580
FTE 19 150 18 306 47 042 48 892 37 387 38 651

For the period ended 31 December 2018, net revenue from the beer business amounted to 50 134m US dollar (31 December 2017: 50
301m US dollar) while the net revenue from the non-beer business {soft dnnks and other business) accounted for 4 485m US dollar (31
Decamber 2617 6 143m US dollar}.

On the same basis, net revenue from external customers attributable to AB InBev's country of domicile (Belgium) represented 710m US
dollar (2017: 704m US dollar) and non-current assets located in the country of domicile represented 1 746m US dollar (2017 1 658m US
dotlar)
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Latin America Global Export and halding
South Asia Pacific companies Consolidated

34 34 a7 132 104 102 - 1 567 613

2 863 3363 8314 10 344 8 470 7 804 419 332 54 619 56 444
1 381 1585 3000 3 349 3082 2 695 {656} (577} 22 g80 22 884
43.2% 47 4% 35.8% 32 4% 36.4% 34 5% 40.4% 39 1%
(265) {207) (770) (843) (752} (660) {267) (253) {4 260) (4 270)
1116 1388 2230 2 507 2330 2035 {923) (830) 17 821 17 814
{31} {13} (370} (144) {65} (97) {119} (241) (715) (662)
1085 1375 4 860 23863 2265 1939 {1 042) {1071) 17 106 17 152
(8 729) (6 507)

153 430

(2 839) (1 920)

5691 9155

- 28

5601 2183

3074 2 396 42 063 45 920 22412 24 088 1609 1741 213 861 222 166
279 323 1177 1088 687 635 233 247 5 086 4 479
9214 9 603 23604 26 823 31623 36 386 4 683 3254 172 603 182 915

97



6. Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

The table below summanzes the impact of acquisitions and disposais on the statement of financial position and cash flows of AB InBev
for 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

2018 2617 2618 2017

Million US doliar Acquisitions  Acquisitions Disposals Disposals

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 2 169 (310) -
Intangible assets 24 417 {(17) -
Deferred tax assets 23 - B -
Trade and other ragevables - 1 (86) -

Current assets

Inventories 17 9 {84) -
Income tax receivables - - 2) -
Trade and other recevables 2 20 79) -
Cash and cash equivalents B 5 (6) -
Assets held for sale - 27 27) -
Non-current liabilities

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings (3) (1) - -
Defarred tax hatihtes - (74) 4 -
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables {19) (24) 408 -
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 54 549 (201) -
Non-controlling interest - (114) 1 -
Goodwill on acquisions and goodwill disposed of 107 398 (852) -
Loss/{gain) on disposal - - 18) (42)
Consideration to be {pard)received (112) (375) 47 -
Net cash paid on prior years acquisitions 88 136 - -
Recychng of cumulative translation adjustment in respect of net assets - - (584) -
Contnbution i kind - - 1150 -
Consideration paid/({received) 117 504 (254) (42)
Cash (acquired) disposed of (5) {5) {3) -
Net cash outflow / (inflow) 112 589 (257} (42)

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes' existing Russia and Ukraine businesses.
Following the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are combined undar AB
InBev Efes The combined business 1s fully consolidated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts. As a result of the transacton, AB InBev
stopped consalidating its Russta and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method as of
that date See also Note 16 lnvestments in associates.

The transaction described above involved the contnbution by AB InBev of s existing Russia and Ukraine businesses to AB InBev Efes In
exchange for a 50% ownership in AB InBev Efes. In ine with IFRS, the contnbution by AB InBev of ds existing Russia and Ukrane
businesses to AB inBev Efes, with AB InBev (osing controi, 1s accounted for as a deemed disposai and the 50% non-controihing interest
AB InBev received in AB InBev Efes in exchange for such contnbution I1s accounted for as a deemed acguisition of an investment in
asscciate, with both acquisivon and disposal measured at their far value estimated at 1 15 bilhon US dollar representing the estimated
value of the 50 % investment AB InBev will hold in AB InBev Efes after adjustment for net debt

When 2 parent loses control of a subsidiary, IFRS 10 requires all assets and habilities of the former subsidiary to be derecognized and
any gan or loss associated with the deemed disposal interest to be recognized in the consohdated income statement IFRS also requires
that any amounts previously recognized in the consolidated staternent of other comprehensive income, Including historical translation
adjustments, be recycled to the consolidated income statement, at the date when controlis lost

AB InBev has derecognized 573m US dollar net assets related to its former Russia and Ukraine businesses and has recycied 584m US
doliar from other comprehensive income to the consohdated income statement, resulting in a net non-recurring, non-cash loss of 7m US
dollar (see also Note 8 Non-recurnng items).
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In the first quarter of 2017, AB InBev and Keung Green Mountain, Inc. established a joint venture for conducting research and development
of an in-home alcohol dnnk systemn, focusing on the US and Canadian markets. The transaction included the contribution of intellectual
property and manufactunng assets from Keung Green Mountan, Inc. Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, AB InBev
owns 70% of the voting and economic interest In the joint venture Under IFRS, this transachon was accounted for as a business
combination as AB InBev was deemed as the accounting acquirer as per IFRS rules.

The company undertook a seres of additional acquisitions and dispoesals duning 2017 and 2018, with no significant impact in the company's
consolidated financial statements.

7. Other operating income/(expenses)

Miliion US dollar 2018 2017
Government grants 317 404
License income 45 65
Net {additions to)/reversals of provisions (1) {4
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets heid for sale 80 154
Net rental and other operating income 249 235
Other operating income/{expenses) 680 854

The govermment grants relate pnmarily to fiscal \ncentives given by certain Brazian states and Chinese provinces, based on the
company’s operations and developments In those regions

In 2018, the company expensed 285m US dollar in research, compared to 276m US dollar in 2017 The spend focused on product
innovations, market research, as well as process optimization and product development

8. Non-recurring items

IAS 1 Preseniation of inancial statements requires material stems of Income and expense to be disclosed separately Non-recumng items
are items, which In management's judgment need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence (n order for the user 1o obtain a proper
understanding of the financal nformation The company considers these items fo be of significance 1n nature, and accordingly,
management has excluded these fram therr segment measure of performance as noted in Note 5 Segmeni Reporiing.

The non-recurnng items included in the Income statement are as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Restructunng (385) (468)
Acquisihon costs business combinations (74) (185}
Business and asset disposal (including impaiment osses) (26) (39)
Prowsion for EU investigation {230) -
Impact on profit from operations 715 {662)
Non-recurnng net finance income{cost) {1982) (693}
Non-recurmng taxes 240 830
Non-recurmnng non-contralling interest 32 526
Net impact on profit attributable to equity holders of AB inBev (2 425) 1

The non-recuming restructuring charges for 2018 total (385)m US dollar (2017 (468)m US dollar) These charges primanly relate to the
SAB integration These changes aim to eliminate overtap or duplicated processes, taking into account the nght match of employee profiles
with the new organizational requirements These one-time expenses, as a result of the senes of decisions, provide the company with a
lower cost base in addition to a stronger focus on AB InBev's core activihes, quicker decision-making and improvements to efficiency,
service and quality

Acquisition costs of business combinations amount to (74)m US dollar in 2018, pnmanly related to cost incurred o faciltate the
combination with SAB and cost incurred to recover the Budweiser distnibution nghts in Argentina from Comparia Cervecerias Unidas S A
{(“CCU") — see Note 15 Intangibie assets Acquistion costs of business combinations amounted to (155)m US dollar in 2017, pnmarnly
related to cost incurred to facilitate the combination with SAB

Business and asset disposals amount to (26)m US dollar in 2018 and manly result from the IFRS treatment of the 50 50 merger of AB
InBev's and Anadoiu Efes' Russia and Ukraine businesses and related transaction cost (see also Note 6 Acqursifions and disposals of
subsidianes) Business and asset disposals amounted to (39)m US dollar in 2017, mainly related to the costs incurred related to the
divestitures completed during 2017, partly offset by proceeds from prior years' sale,

In 2316, the European Commussion announced an investigation into alleged abuse of a deminant pesition by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain practices aimed at restricting trade from other European Union member states to Belgum In connection with these ongoing
proceedings, AB InBev recognized a provision of 230m US dollar in 2018

The company incurred non-recurrnng net finance cost of (1 982)m US dollar for 2018 (2017 (693)m US dollar cost) — see Note 11 Frirance
cost and income



All the above amounts are before ncome taxes The nen-recurnng items as of 31 December 2018 decreased ncome taxes by
240m US dollar and decreased income taxes by 830m US dollarin 2017 The 2017 decrease of income taxes, mainly related to a 1.8
billion US dallar adjustment following the US tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 partially offset by provisions accrued for tax
cantingencies covered by the Brazilian Federal Tax Regulanzation Program entered into by Ambev — see Note 12 income taxes and Note
18 Defarred tax assels and habilities

Non-controliing interest on the non-recurnng tems amounts to 32m US dollar in 2018 (2017 526m US dallar).

9. Payroll and related benefits

Million US doltar 2018 2017
Wages and salares (4 726) (4 664)
Social secunty contnbutions (698) (699)
Other personnel cost (108) (762)
Pension expense for defined benefit plans (193) (1986)
Share-based payment expense (353) (359)
Contnbutions to defined contnbution ptans (116) (118)
Payroll and related henefits (6 T84) (7 018}

The number of full tirme equivalents can be spit as follows:

2018 2017

AB inBev NV {parent company) 180 215
Other subsidianes 172 423 182 700
Total number of FTE 172603 182 915

The reducton it FTE mainly results from the combinahon of the AB InBev Russia and Ukraine businesses under AB InBev Efes As a
result of the transaction, AB InBev stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev
Efes under the equity method as of that date See also Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of subsidianes

10. Additional information on operating expenses by nature

Depreciation, amortization and /mpawment charges are included in the following line items of the 2018 consoclidated income statement.

Depreciation and Amortization and Impairment of
impairment of impairment of goodwill
property, plant and intangible assets

Million US dollar equipment
Cost of sales 2841 67 -
Distnbubon expensas 186 3 -
Sales and marketing expenses 420 165 -
Administrative expenses 309 260 -
Other operating expenses 8 - -
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3764 496 -

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the followang fine tems of the 2017 consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and Amortization and Impairment of
impairment of impairment of goodwill
property, plant and intangible assets

Million US dollar equipment
Cost of sales 2817 40 -
Distnbution expenses 189 4 -
Sales and marketing expenses 425 196 -
Adminsirative expenses 337 248 -
Gther operating expenses 4 - 3
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3782 488 6

The depreciation, amortization and wrpamnent of propesty, plant and equipment included a full-cost reallocation of 2m US dollar in 2018
from the aggregate depreciation, amortization and mpairment expense to cost of goods sold {2017; 1m US dollar)
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11. Finance cost and income

The finance costs included in the income statement are as foliows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Interest expense (4 147) (4 314)
Capitalization of borrowing costs 23 22
Net interast on net defined benefit habilties (84) (101)
Accretion expense (400) 614)

- (304)

Net foreign exchange losses (net of the effect of foreign exchange derivative nstruments)

Net losses on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship (2 222) (674)
Fax on financial transacbons (110) (68)
Other financial costs, including bank fees (242) (139)
Finance costs, excluding non-recurring items (7 186) (6192)
Non-recurnng finance cost (1882) (693)

{9 168) (6 885)

Finance costs

Finance costs, excluding non-recumng items, increased by 934m US dollar from prior year mainly as a result of Mark-to-market Iosses
on certain denvatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs amounting ta 1 774m US dollar in 2018 (2017 28tm US
dollar loss).

Borrowing costs capitalized relate to the capitalization of interest expenses directly atinbutable to the acquisition and construction of
qualfying assets mainly 1n China and Nigena Interest 1s capitalized at a borrowing rate ranging from 4% to 8%

Non-recurnng net finance cost for 2018 includes

* 873m US dollar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on denvative instruments entered nto 1o hedge the snares issued In
relation to the combination with Grupo Modelo (31 December 2017 146m US dollary See also Note 23 Changes in equiy and eamings

per share;
e B49m US doilar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on denvatives entered into to hedge the restricled shares 1ssued in
connection with the combination with SAB (31 December 2017: 142m US dollar),

® 211m US dollar resulting from premium paid on the early termination of certain bonds,
« 49m US dollar foreign exchange translation losses on intragroup loans that were histoncally reported in equity and were recycled to
profit and loss account, upon the rembursement of these loans (31 December 2017 261m US doilar)
Non-recurnng net finance cost for 2017 also includes

& 44m US dollar related to the Brazihan Federal Tax Regulanzation Program entered into by Ambev — see note 12 Income taxes,

® 100m US dollar related 1o accelerated accretion expenses associated to the repayment of the 2015 semor facitities agreement and
the eary redemption of certain notes. See also Note 24 Interesi-beanng foans and borrowings.

Interest expense 1s presented net of the effect of interest rate dervative Instruments hedging AB InBev's interest rate nsk — see also Note
29 Risks ansing from financial instruments

Finance income included in the income statement 1s as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Interast income 3a3 287
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 46 -
Other financial ncome B1 91
Finance income 440 378
No interest income was recognized on impaired financial assets
The interest income stems from the following financial assets:
Miltion US doHar 20138 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 256 207
Investment debt secunties held for trading 22 16
Other loans and receivables 55 64
Total 333 287

The interest ncome on other loans and receivables inciudes the interest accrued on cash deposits given as guarantees for certain legal
proceedings pending resolution

For further information on instruments hedging AB InBev's foreign exchange risk see Note 28 Risks ansing from financial instruments.
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42. Income taxes

Income taxes recognized in the incoeme statement can be detailled as follows:

Million US dcllar

Current year
{Underprovided)/overprovided in pnor years
Current tax expense

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
{Utiization)/recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses
Recognition of previousiy unrecognized tax losses
Deferred tax (expense)lincome

Total income tax expense

2018

2819)
101

@718

(287)

120

48
(121}

(2 839)

The reconciiation of the effective tax rate with the aggregated weighted nominal tax rate can be summanzed as follows

Million US doilar

Profit before tax
Deduct share of resuit of associates and joint ventures

Profit before tax and before share of result of associates and joint ventures

Adjustments on taxable basis

Government incentives

Non-deductible marked to market on denvatives
Other expenses not deductible for tax pumposes
QOther non-taxable income

Aggregated weighted nominal tax rate
Tax at aggregated weighted nominal tax rate

Adjustments on tax expense
Utihzation of tax losses nol previously recognized
Recognition of deferred taxes assets on previous years' tax losses

Wnte-down of deferred tax assets on tax losses and current year
losses for which no deferred tax asset s recognized

{Undemrowded)overprovided in pnor years
Deductions from interest on equity
Deductions from goodwill

Other tax deductions

US Tax reforrn (change in tax rate and other)
Change n tax rate (other)

Withholding taxes

Braziian Federal Tax Regulanzation Program
Other tax adjusiments

Effective tax rate

2018
8530

153
81377

(742)
3496
1796
(158)
12789
26.8%

(3 426)
120

(125)

47
17

116
144
(403)
(300}
{2 839)

33.9%

2017

(3 833)
1
{3 832)

1872
23
16
1912

{1920

2017

11076
430
10 646

(982)
579
1795
(178)
11 860

28.5%

(3378)

723
1760
(59)
(386)
(870}
217)
{1920}

18.0%
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The total Income tax expense for 2018 amounts to 2 839m US dollar compared to 1 820m US dollar for 2017. The effective tax rate
increased from 18 0% for 2017 to 33.9% for 2018,

The 2018 effective tax rate was negatively impacted by losses from certain denvatives related to hedging of share-based payment
programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupe Modeio and SAB as well as changes
In tax legislation 1n some countnes resulting in addtional non-deductible expenses n 2018

The 2017 effective tax rate was positively impacied by a 1.8 bilkon US dollar adjustment following the US {ax referm enacted on 22
December 2017 This 1 8 bilion US dollar adjustment resulted mainly from the re-measurement of the deferred tax labilibes set up in
2008 in ine with IFRS as part of the purchase pnce accounting of the combination with Anheuser Busch and certain deferred tax assets
following the change in federal tax rate from 35% to 21% The adjustment represented the company's best estmate of the deferred tax
liability re-measurement resulting from the LS Tax reform at the time, and was recognized as a non-recurnng gain per 31 December 2017
This impact was partially offset by Ambev and certain of its subsidianes joining the Brazillan Federal Tax Regulanzation Program - PERT
in September 2017 whereby Ambev committed to pay some tax contingencies that were under dispute, totaling 3 5 billion Brazihan real
{1.1 billion US doilar), with 1.0 bilion Brazilran real (0.3 billon US dollar) paid in 2017 and the remaining amount payable in 145 monthly
nstallmants starting January 2018, plus interest Within these contingencies, a dispute related to presumed taxation at Ambev’s subsidiary
CRBs was not provided for until September 2017 as the loss was previcusly assessed as possible The total amount recognized in 2017
as non-recurring amounted to 2 9 bilhon Braziian real {0 9 billon US dollar) of which 2.8 billion Brazihan real (0 8 tilion US dollar) were
reported in the income tax ine and 141 millign Brazikan real (44m US dollar) in the finance ine

During 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulting from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulation and guidance Such remeasurement resulted in an adjustment of 116m US dollarin 2018
1o the reported current and deferred taxes

The company benefits from tax exempted income and tax credits which are expected to continue in the future The company does not
have significant benefits coming from low tax rates in any particutar junsdiction

The normalized effective tax rate for the penod ended 31 December 2018 1s 27 8% (2017. 22 9%) Normalized effective tax rate 1s not an
accounting measure under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an altemative to the effective tax rate

Normaiized effective tax rate method does not have a standard calculation method and AB InBev's definthon of normalized effective tax
rate may not be comparable to other companies

Income taxes were directly recognized in other comprehensive income as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits 22 {39)
Cash fiow ang net investment hedges 108 (¢5)
Income tax {losses)/gains 130 {134)
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13. Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Plant and

equipment, Under
Land and fixtures censtructio
Million US doliar huildings and fittings n

Acqussition cost

Balance at end of previous year 12742 37T 2265 43724 44 352

Effect of movements In forexgn exchange (722) (2225) (150) (3 097) 1431

Acquisitions 119 1320 2926 4 365 4221

Acquisitions through business combinations - . 2 . 2 169
Disposals (143) (1333} @) (1479) (1 566)
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes (265) (834) 29) (1 128) (60)
Transfer {to)/from other asset categones

and other movements' 724 3028 (2735) 1017 177
Balance at end of the period 12 455 33675 2274 48 404 48724
Depreciation and tmpairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (3 514) {18 026) - (21 540) (18 133)
Effect of movements i foreign exchange 177 1219 . 1396 (697)
Depreciation (513) (3 069) - (3 582) (3 567)
Disposals 59 1204 - 1263 1161

Disposals through the sale of subsicianes 177 641 - 818 48
Impaiment losses (10) (85) - (85) (85)
Transfer to/{from) other asset

categones and other movements’ 84 (618} - (754) (267)
Balance at end of the period (3 580) (18934) . (22 494) (21 540)
Carrying amount

at 31 December 2017 9228 15691 2268 27 184 27 184
at 31 December 2018 8893 14741 2274 25 910 -

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment subject to restrctions on title amounts to 8m US dollar

Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment amounted to 416m US dollar as at 31 December 2018 compared to
550m US dollar as at 31 December 2017

AB InBev's net capital expenditures in the statement of cash flow amounted to 4 649m US dollar in 2018 and 4 124m US dollar in 2017
Out of the total 2018 capital expenditures approxmately 48% was used to improve the company's production facilites while 42% was
used for logistics and cormmercial Investments and 10% was used for improving administrative capabiliies and purchase of hardware and
software

LEASED ASSETS

The company leases land and buidings as well as equipment under a number of finance Jease agreements The camying amount as at
31 December 2018 of assets leased under finance leases was 272m US dollar (31 December 2017 300m US dollar)

' The transfer [to)#rom other asset categones and other movements mamly relates to transfers from assets under construction to thenr respective asset
categones, to contnbutions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property. plant and equipment held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and fo the restatement of non-menetary assels under hypennfiation
accounung in line with IAS 29 Financral reporting m hypennfialionary economies
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14. Goodwill

Million US doilar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 140 980 135 897
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (7 541) 4 684
Disposals through the sate of subsidiaries {652) -
Acquisitions through business combinations 107 398
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 435 -
Rectassified as held for sale (13) -
Balance at end of the period 133316 140 980

Impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (40} {34)
Impairment losses - (6)
Disposais through the sale of subsidianes 35 -
Balance at end of the period 5) {40)

Carrying amount
at 31 December 2017 140 940 140 940
at 31 December 2018 133314 -

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukraine businesses
Following this merger, the company derecognized s Russian and Ukrainian net assets including goodwill (see also Note § Acquisitions
and disposals of subsidranes).

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the different cash-generating units as follows
MiHion US doltar

Cash-generating unit 2048 2017
United States 33288 33277
Colombia 18 802 20425
South Afnca 15 896 18 551
Peru 14513 15074
Mexico 12614 12 580
Rest of Afnca 7716 B 326
Australia 6 348 6 922
Brazil 4715 5523
South Korea 3949 4118
Ecuadar 3925 3925
China 2758 2914
Honduras & El Salvador 2284 2335
Canada 1881 2056
Other countnes 4613 4913
Total carrying amount of goodwil} 133 311 140 940

AB InBev completed its annual impairment test for goodwill and concluded that, based on the assumptions descnbed below, no impaiment
charge was warranted

The company cannot predict whether an event that tnggers impairment witl accur, when 1t will accur or how 1t will affect the value of the
asset reported AB InBev believes that all of its estimates are reasonable they are consistent with the cempany’s internal reporting and
reflect management's best estimates. However, inherent uncertainties exist that management may not be able to control Dunng its
valuation, the company ran sensitivity analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal growth
rate, in particular for the valuations of the US, Colombia, South Afnica, Pere and Mexico, countries that show the highest goodwill While
a change in the estimates used could have a matenal impact on the calculation of the fair values and tngger an impairment charge, the
company, based cn the sensitvity analysis performed 1s not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that
wouid cause a cash-generating unit's carrying amount to exceed 1ts recoverable amount

Goodwill iImpairment testing relies on a number of crfical judgments, estimates and assumptions Goodwill, which accounted for
approximately 57% of AB inBev's total assets as at 31 December 2018, 15 tested for imparment at the cash-generating unit level (that is
one level below the operating segments) The cash-generating unit level 1s the lowest level at which gocdwill s monitored for internal
managernent purposes Except in cases where the intial allocation of goodwill has not been concluded by the end of the imibial reporting
period following the business combination, goodwill is allocated as from the acguisition date to each of AB InBev's cash-generating urits
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination whenever a business combination occurs



AB InBev's impaiment testing methoadolegy is 1n accordance with IAS 36, in which fair-vatue-less-cost-to-sell and value in use approaches
are taken into consideration This consists 1n applying a discounted free cash flow approach based on acquistion valuation models for its
major cash-generating units and the cash-generating units showing a high invested capital to EBITDA mulhiple, and valuation multiples
for ts other cash-generating units.

The key judgments, estimates and assumphons used in the discounted free cash flow calculations are generally as follows

& In the first three years of the model, free cash flows are based on AB [nBev's strategic plan as approved by key management
AB InBev's strateqic plan 15 prepared per cash-generaling unit and 1s based on external sources i respect of macro-economic
assumptions, industry, inflaton and foreign exchange rates. past expenence and identified initiatives in terms of market share,
revenue, vanable and fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital assumphions,

® For the subsequent seven years of the model, data from the strateqic plan s extrapolated generally using simplified assumptions such
as macro-economic and industry assumptions, variable cost per hectoliter and fixed cost inked to inflation, as obtained from external
sources,

® Cash flows after the first ten-year period are extrapolated generally using expected annuai long-term GDP growth rates, based on
external sources, in order to calculate the terminal value, considering sensitivities on this metng,

® Projections are discounted at the unit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), considenng sensittvities on thus metnic,
e Cost to sell 1s assumed to reach 2% of the entity value based on histoncal precedents.

For the main cash generating units, the terminal growth rate applied generally ranged between 1% and 4%.

The WACC applied in US dollar nominal terms were as follows

Cash-generating unit 2018 2017
United States 7% 6%
Colombra 7% 7%
South Afnca 8% 8%
Peru % T%
Mexico 8% 9%
Rest of Afnca 1% 10%
Australia 7% 6%
South Korea % 6%
Ecuador 11% 1%

In the sensitivity analysis performed by management, an adverse change of 1% in WACC would not cause a cash-generating unit's
carrying amount to exceed s recoverable amount

The above caiculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share pnices for publicly-traded subsidiaries or other available farr
value indicators (e recent market transactions from peers).

Although AB inBev believes that iis judgments, assumptions and estimates are appropnate, actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or market or macro-economic conditions
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15. Intangible assets

31 December
31 December 2018 2017

Commerciaf
Million US doflar Brands intangibles  Software

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 43 402 2904 2177 3ags 48 871 47 191
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (1482) (105) {137 {41} {1 765) 1286
Acquisitions through business combinations - 22 - 2 24 417
Acquisthions and expenditures 2 367 73 226 668 312
Disposals (25) (55) - {16} (96) {191)
Oisposals through the sale of subsidiares (14) - (29) {4) 4rn -
Transfer (lo)from cther assel categories and 250 (184) 608 136 810 (144)
Balance at end of period 42133 29849 2692 691 438 465 48 871

Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (32) {1379) (1472) (114) (2 99T) (2 401)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 73 84 7 164 (139)
Amortization - (163} (251) (a1) (445) (498)
Disposals - 45 (39) 8 14 89
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes - - 28 2 a0 -
Transfer to/{from) other asset categores and - {55) {352) 7 {400} (48)
Balance at end of period (32) (1 479) {2 002) (124) (3 634) (2 997)

Carrying value
at 31 December 2017 43370 1525 705 274 45 874 45874
at 31 December 2018 42101 1470 690 570 44 831 -

On 2 May 2018, AB InBev recovered the Budweiser distribution nights in Argentina from CCU The transaction involved the transfer of the
Isenbeck, Iguana, Diosa, Norte and Baltica brands, along with a cash payment of 306m US dollar and other commitrrents, to CCU
Argentina The Budweiser distnbution nghts have been assigned an indefinite useful Ife.

AB InBev is the owner of some of the world's most vaiuable brands in the beer industry As a result, brands and certain chstribution nghts
are expected to generate positive cash flows for as long as the company owns the brands and distnbution rights Given AB InBev's more
than 600-year history, brands and certain distnbution nghts have been assigned indefinite lives

Acquisitions and expenditures of commercial ntangibles manly represent supply and distnbution nghts, exclusive multi-year sponsarship
nghis and other commercial intangibles

Intangible assets with indefinite useful ives are compnised pnmanly of brands and certain distnbution nghts that AB InBev purchases for
its own products, and are tested for impairment durning the fourth quarter of the year or whenever a inggenng event has occurred

As of 31 December 2018 the carrying amount of the intangible assets amounted to 44 831m US dollar
(31 December 2017 45 874m US dollar) of which 42 435m US dallar was assigned an indefinite useful Iife (31 December 2017 43 595m
US dollar) and 2 396m US dellar 3 finite Iife (31 December 2017 2 279m US dollar)

' The transfer {lo)/from other asset categories and other movements mainly relates to transfers from assets under construction to their respective asset
categones, to conitnbutions of assets to pensian plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant and equipment held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and to the restatement of non-monelary assets under hypennflation
accounting in ine with (AS 28 Firancial reporting i hypennflationary economies
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The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful [ives was allocated to the different countries as follows

2018 2017
United States 22 037 21 960
Colombia 3516 3820
South Africa 3325 3899
Mexico 3068 3058
Peru 2720 2825
Australia 2422 2773
South Karea 1013 1058
Ecuador 595 595
China 381 403
Dommican Republic 339 353
Rest of Afnca 1274 1353
Other countnes 1745 1488
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 42 435 43 595

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been tested for mparrment using the same methodology and assumptions as disclosed
in Note 14 Goodwi!i Based on the assumptions described in that note, AB InBev concluded that no impawment charge 1s warranted. While
a change in the estimates used could have a matenal impact on the calculation of the far values and tngger an impairment charge, the
company 1s not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit's carrying
amount to exceed Its recoverable amount

16. Investments in associates

A reconcihation of the summanzed financial nformation to the carrying amount of the company's interests in materiat associates is as
follows:

2018 2017
Millicn US dollar AB InBev Efes Castel Efes Castel Efes
Balance at 1 January - 3480 894 2793 750
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (213) (194) 356 (54)
Acquisilions 1157 - - - -
Drwidends receved - {98) (11) (23) -
Share of results of asscciates 2 110 (10) 354 (2)
Balance at end of period 1159 3279 479 3480 694

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existng Russia and Ukraine businesses
Following the closing of the transaction, the operattons of AB inBev and Anadoiu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are now combined under
AB InBev Efes. The combined business Is fully consohdated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts As a result of the transaction, AB
inBev stopped consohdating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method
as of that date. See also Note & Acquisiions and disposals of subsidiaries

The 2017 share of results of associates reported for Castel includes the revision of 2016 finalized result of associates. In 2018, the share
of results of associates reported for Castel was negatively impacted by a currency devaluation in Angola.

Summanzed financial information of the company’s matenal associates 1s as follows:

2018 2017
Million US dallar AB InBev Efes Castel Efes Castel Efes
Current assets 275 4193 2888 4894 2415
Non-gurrent assets 664 4291 6 463 3912 5243
Current habilites 556 1643 2233 1724 1106
Non-current habilies - 635 2207 857 2494
Non-controlling interests - 938 2297 879 1520
Net assets 383 5267 2614 5346 2538
Revenue 1081 5766 3816 5447 3415
Prafit (loss) 4 a1 {43) 746 e4]
Other comprehensive iIncome (loss) - {254) 1536 (94) 553
Total comprehensive income (loss) 4 667 1493 652 546
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In 2018, associates that are not indnadually matenal contnibuted to 51m US dollar to the results of investment in associates

Additional information related fo the significant associates 1s presented in Note 36 AB inBev Companies

17. Investment securities

Million US doilar 2018 2017
Investment in unquoted companies 84 76
Investment on debt secunties 24 24
Non-current investments 108 100
Investment on debt secunties 87 1304
Current investments 87 1304

As of 31 December 2018, current debt secunties of 87m US dollar mainly represented investments in government bonds The company's
investments in such short-term debt secunties are primanly to facilitate iquidity and for capital preservation.

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of temporary difference can be detatled as follows

2018
MiHion US dolar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 381 {2 665) {2 284)
Intangible assets 115 (10 665) {10 550)
Inventones 101 (87) 34
Trade and other receivables 142 (62) 80
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 475 (618} (143)
Employee benefits 673 (5) 668
Prowisions 483 2n 456
Denvatives 33 (68) {25)
Other items 215 (736) (521)
Loss carry forwards 517 - 577
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3195 {14 903) {11 708)
Netting by taxable entity {1738) 1738 -
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1457 {13 165) {11 708)
2017
Million US dollar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 324 (2 586) (2 262)
Intangible assets 113 (11 387) (11 274)
Inventories 114 (63) 81
Trade and other recetvables 148 (62) 86
Interest-bearing loans and barrowings 431 (646) (215}
Employee benefits 663 (10) 653
Provisions 562 (17) 545
Derivatives 40 (49) 9)
Other items 200 (796) (596}
Loss carry forwards 1130 - 113¢
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3725 {15 616) {11 891)
Netting by taxable entity {2 509) 2 509 -
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1216 {13107) {11 891)



The change in net deferred taxes recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position can be detailed as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Balance at 1 January {11 891) {13 442)
Recognized in profit or loss 121 1912
Recognized in other comprehensive iIncome {130) (134)
Acquisitions through business combinations (23) (74)
Other movements and effect of changes n foreign exchange rates 215 (153)
Bal at31D b {11708) (11 891)

Following the US Tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 whereby the US Federai tax rate was reduced from 35% to 21%, the company
adjusted the deferred tax habilities set up in 2008 in ine with IFRS, as part of the purchase prce accounting of the combination with
Anheuser Busch and certain deferred tax assets This adjustment resulted in 1 8 billion US doliar recognized as a non-recurnng tax gam
in 2017 — see also Note 12 — Income Taxes.

Most of the temporary differences are related to the fawr vatue adjustment on intangible assets with incefinite useful ives and property,
plant and equipment acquired through business combinations. The realization of such ternporary differences 1s unhkely to revert wathin 12
months.

Tax losses carned forward and deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax asset rs recognized amount 1o 5 280m US dollar
(2017 4 449m US dollar). 1 954m US dollar of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences do not have an expiration date,
136m US dollar, 153m US dollar and 725m US dollar expire within respectively 1, 2 and 3 years, while 2 311m US dollar have an expiration
date of more than 3 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized on these items because if 15 not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which these tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utiized and the company has no tax
planning strategy currently In place to ublize these tax losses and deductible temporary differences.

19. Inventories

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Prepayments 123 101
Raw matenals and consumabies 2387 2304
Work In progress 363 387
Finished goods 1215 1218
Goods purchased for resale 146 111
Inventories 4234 4119

Inventories other than work in progress
Inventones stated at net realizable value 59 57

The cost of Inventones recognized as an expense In 2018 amounts to 20 359m US dollar, inciuded in cost of sales (2017. 21 386m US
dollar)

Impairment losses on inventones recegnized in 2018 amount to 72m US dollar (2017 72m US dollar).




AB InBev annual report 2018

20. Trade and other receivables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Cash deposits for guarantees 187 209
Loans to custorners 45 13
Deferred coflection on disposals 53 11
Tax recevable, other than mcome tax 139 &8
Trade and other recevables 335 533

769 834

For the nature of cash deposits for guarantees see Note 31 Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisiron of property, plant
and equtpment, loans to customers and other

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US doliar 2018 2017
Trade receivabies and accrued income 4412 4 752
Interest recevable 19 B
| ax receivable, other than income tax 378 368
Loans to customers 143 166
Prepaid expenses 329 428
Cther receivables 1094 846

6375 6 566

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables 1s a good approximation of their fair value as the impact of discounting 1s not significant

The ageing of the current trade receivables and accrued incorme, interest receivable, other receivables and current and non-current loans
1o customers can be detailled as follows for 2018 and 2017 respectively

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting date and

neither past due
impaired
Net carrying nor past
amount as of due on the Between 30 Between 60
31 December reporting Less than and 59 and 89 More than
2018 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4412 4092 239 52 2¢ 9
Loans to customers 188 176 4 5 3 -
Interest recevable 19 19 - - - -
Other receivables 1094 1051 13 26 4 -
5713 5338 256 83 27 9
Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting date and
neither past due
impaired
Net carrying nor past due
amount as of on the Between Between
31 December reporting Less than 30 and 59 60 and 89 More than 90
2017 date 30 days days days days
Trade receivabies and accrued income 4752 4 369 265 47 40 31
Loans to customers 179 179 - - - -
Interest receivable 3] 6 - - -
Other receivables 846 803 19 6 14 4
5783 5357 284 53 54 35

The above analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the reporting date but not impaired als¢ includes non-current
loans to custormers Past due amounts were not impaired when collection 1s stili considered fikely, for instance because the amounts can
be recovered from the tax authorities or AB InBev has sufficient collateral 'mpairment losses on trade and other recevables recognized
In 2018 amount to 43m US dallar (2017 59m US dollar)

AB InBev's exposure to creddt, currency and interest rate nisks i1s disclosed in Note 29 Risks ansmg from financial instruments



21. Cash and cash equivalents

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Shori-term bank deposits 2233 3 895
Cash and bank accounts 4 841 6576
Cash and cash equivalents T074 10 472
Bank overdrafts (114) {(117)

8 960 10 355

The cash outstanding per 31 December 2018 includes restricted cash for an amount of 2m US dollar (31 December 2017 2m US dollar)
This restricted cash refers to outstanding consideration payable to former Anheuser-Busch shareholders who did not yet claim the
proceeds from the 2008 combination

22. Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Miklicn US dollar 31 December 2013 31 December 2017
Balance at the end of previous year 132 16 458
Disposals from SAB transaction-related divesblures - (15514)
Reclassified to assets held for sale in the period 35 9
Disposals {128) (26)
Effect of mavements In foreign exchange m 132
Other movements - (1 008)
Balance at the end of year 3 133

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Mitlion US doliar 31 December 2013 31 December 2017
Balance at the end of previous year - 2174
Disposals from SAB transaction-related diveshiures - (1166)
Other movements - {1008)
Balance at the end of year - .

COMPLETION OF CCBA DISPOSAL

On 4 October 2017, AB InBev announced the completion of the transition of its 54.5% equity stake in Coca-Cola Beverages Africa
(“CCBA") for 3 15 bilhon US dollar, after customary adjustments AB InBev stopped consolidating CCBA in its consohidated financiai
statements as of that date.

CCBA, the largest Coca-Cola bottler in Afnca, was formed in 2016 through the combination of the Afncan non-alcehol ready-to-drink
botting interests of SAB, The Coca-Cola Company and Gutsche Family investments It includes operations int the countnes of South
Africa, Namibia, Kenya, Uganda, Tanzana, Ethiopia, Mozambique, Ghana, Mayotte, and Comoros

Furthermore, AB InBev completed in 2018 the sale of its carbonated soft dnnk businesses in Zambia and Botswana to The Coca-Cola
Company AB InBev also entered nto agreements to sell to The Coca-Cola Company all of its carbonated soft drink business in eSwatin
(Swaziland) and certain non-alcoholic beverage brands in El Salvador and Honduras. The closing of these transactions 1s subject to
customary closing conditions, Including regulatory approvals In El Salvador and Honduras, the company has executed long-term botting
agreements, which will become effective upon the closing of the El Saivador and Honduras brand divestitures.

In addition, the companies canhnue to work towards finakzing the terms and conditions for The Coca-Cola Company to acquire AB InBev's
interest in the botting operations in Zimbabwe and Lesotho These transactions are subject to the relevant requlatory and shareholder
approvals in the different junsdictons By 31 December 2018, the assets and habilthes of the above operations were not reported as
assets classified as held for sale and habilities associated with assets held for sale.
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23. Changes in equity and earnings per share

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL
The tables below summarze the changes in issued capital and treasury shares dunng 2018

Issued capital

ISSUED CAPITAL Million shares Milion US dollar
At the end of the previous year 2018 1736
Changes dunng the penod - -
2019 1736
Of which
Crdinary shares 1693
Restricted shares 326

Result on the use

Treasury shares of treasury shares

Million
TREASURY SHARES Million shares US dollar MiHion US dollar
At the end of the previous year B5 6 (8 980) (1452)
Changes durning the pencd (23 0) 2431 (931)
62.5 (6 549) {2 383)

As at 31 December 2018, the share capital of AB InBev amounts to 1 238 608 344 12 euro (1 736 milhon US dollar) It 1s represented by
2 019 241 973 shares without nominal value, of which 62 502 473 are held in treasury by AB inBev and its subsidianes All shares are
ordinary shares, except for 325 899 817 restricted shares As at 31 December 2018, the total of autharized, un-issued capital amounts to
37m euro

The treasury shares held by the company are reparted in equity in Treasury shares

The hoiders of ordinary and restncted shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied to one vote
per share at meetings of the company. In respect of the company's shares that are held by AB InBev, nghts are suspended.

The restncted shares are unlisted, not agmitted to trading on any stock exchange, and are subject 1o, among other things, restrictions on
transfer until converted into new ordinary shares The restncted shares will be convertible at the election of the holder inio new ordinary
shares on a one-for-one basis with effect from the fifth anniversary of completion of the SAB combination From completion of the SAB
combination, such restncted shares will rank equally with the ordinary shares with respect to dividends and voting nghts

The shareholders' structure based on the notifications made to the company pursuant to the Beigian Law of 02 May 2007 on the disclosure
of significant shareholdings in histed companies 1s included in the Corporate Governance section of AB inBev’s annual report

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
in compliance with IFRS 10, the acquisition of additional shares In a subsidiary I1s accounted for as an equity transaction with owners,
During 2018, Ambev increased its investment n Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana S.A ("CND") from 55% to 85% As the refated subsidiary

was already fully consolidated, the purchase did not impact AB InBev's profit, but reduced the nen-controlling interests by 428m US dollar
and increased the profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev

REPORT ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 624 OF THE BELGIAN COMPANIES CODE — PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES
Duning 2018, the company proceeded with the followng sale transachons.

* 1251 602 shares were granted o executives of the group according to the company's executive remuneration policy,
* 1487 344 shares were s0ld, as a result of the exercise of options granted to employees of the group,
® 23 076 922 shares were delivered under deferred share instruments with former Grupo Modelo shareholders.

At the end of the penod, the group owned 62 527 163 own shares of which 61 823 078 were held directly by AB InBev The par vaiue of
the shares 1s 0 61 euro. As a consequence, the shares that were sold during the year 2018 represent 18 038 093 US dollar (15 753 779
euro) of the subscnbed capital and the shares that the company still owned at the end of 2018 represent 43 672 135 US dollar (38 141
569 euro) of the subscribed capital

DIVIDENDS

On 24 Qctober 2018, an interim dividend of 0 80 euro per share or approximately 1 565m euro was approved by the Board of Directors
This interim dividend was paid out on 29 Novernber 2018 On 28 February, in addition to the interrm dividend paid on 29 November 2018,
a dividend of 1 00 euro per share or 1 957m euro was proposed by the Board of Directors, reflecting a total dvidend payment for the 2018
fiscal year of 1 80 euro per share or 3 522m eura

On 25 Cctober 2017, an intenm dividend of 1.60 euro per share or 3 089m euro was approved by the Beard of Directors. This intenm
diwdend was paid out on 16 November 2017 On 25 Apnt 2018, in addition to the intenm dividend paid on 16 November 2017, a dwvidend
of 2 00 euro per share or 3 B67m euro was approved at the shareholders meeting, reflecting a total dwvidend payment for 2017 fiscal year
of 3 60 euro per share or & 956m euro The dividend was paid out on 3 May 2018
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TRANSLATION RESERVES

The translaton reserves compnse all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The translation reserves also comprise the portion of the gan or loss on the foreign currency labiities and on the
derivative finanoal instruments determined 1o be effective net investment

HEDGING RESERVES

The hedging reserves compnse the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges to the extent the
hedged risk has not yet impacted profit or loss

TRANSFERS FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amount of dwidends payable o AB InBev by its operating subsidianes 1s subject te, among other restrictions, general limitations
imposed by the corporate laws, capilal transfer restnctions and exchange control restnctions of the respective junsdictions where those
subsidiaries are orgamzed and operate. Capital transfer restrictions are also common in certain emerging market countnes, and may
affect AB InBev's flexability in implementing a capital structure it beheves to be efficient As at 31 December 2018, the restrichons above
mentioned were not deemed significant on the company's ability to access or use the assets or settle the habiliies of its operating
subsidianes

Dividends pawd to AB InBev by certain of its subsidianes are also subject to withholding taxes Withhoiding tax, if applicable, generally
does not exceed 15%

DEFERRED SHARE INSTRUMENT

In a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo, selected Grupo Modelo shareholders committed, upon tender of their
Grupo Modelo shares, to acquire 23 076 822 AB InBev shares to be delivered within § years for a consideration of approximately 1.5
biliort US dollar. The consideration was paid on 5 June 2013,

On 21 May 2018, AB inBev delivered the shares that were due under the deferred share instruments through the use of AB InBev treasury
shares

until the delivery of the AB InBev shares, AB InBev paid a coupon on each undelivered AB InBev share, so that the Deferred Share
Instrument holders were compensated on an afier tax basis, for dwvidends they would have received had the AB InBev shares been
delwvered io them prior to the record date for such dividend.

The deferred share instrument was classified as an equity Instrument, n line wath 1AS 32, as the number of shares and consideration
received are fixad The coupon to compensate for the diwdend equivalent 1s reported through equity On 3 May 2018, the company paid
a coupon of 2.00 euro per share or approximately 56m US dollar (2017 3 60 euro per share or approximately 93m US dollar)

STOCK LENDING

In order to fulfil AB InBev's commitments under vanous outstanding stock option plans, AB InBev entered into stock lending arrangements
for up to 20 milion of its own ordinary shares As of 31 December 2018, the outstanding balance of loaned securnties amounted to 20
mithon, of which 20 millon were used to fulfil stock option plan commitments. AB InBev shall pay any dividend equivalent, after tax in
respect of the loaned secunties. This payment will be reported through equity as drvidend.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RESERVES
The changes in the other comprehensive income reserves are as follows

Post-

Translation Hedgirg employment Total OCI

Million US doitar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves

As per 1 January 2018 {13 705) 586 {1 665) (14 784)
Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on transiation of foreign (7379) - - {7 379)

Cash flow hedges - (92) - 92)

Re-measurements of post-smployment benefits - - 8 98

Total comprehensive income (7 379) (92) 98 {7 373)

As par 31 December 2018 (21 084} 454 {1567} (22 157}

Post-

Translation Hedging employment Totaj OC}

Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves

As per 1 January 2017 (14 758) 744 {1612) (15 626)
Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 1083 - - 1053

Cash flow hedges - (158) - {158)

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - (53) (53)

Total comprehensive income 1053 (158) (53) 842

As per 31 December 2017 (13 705) 586 {1 665) (14 784)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculaton of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 15 based on the profit attnbutable to equity holders of
AB \nBev of 4 368m US dollar (31 December 2017 7 996m US dollar) and a weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
outstanding (including deferred share instruments and stock lending) per end of the period, calculated as follows

Million shares 2018 2017

Issued ordinary and restricted shares at 1 January, net of treasury shares 1934 1934
Effect of stock lending 18 14
Effect of undelivered shares under the deferred share instrument 9 23
Effect of delvery of treasury shares 14 -
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1975 1971

The calcuiation of difuted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 1s based on the profit atiributable to equity hoiders of
AB InBev of 4 368m US dollar (31 December 2017 7 996m US dollar) and a weighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares
(diluted) outstanding (Including deferred share instruments and stock lending) per end of the period, calculated as follows

Miltion shares 2018 2017

Weighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares at 31 December 1975 1971
Effect of share options, warrants and restricted stock units 36 39
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) at 31 December 2011 2010

The calculation of earmings per share before non-recurnng items and discontinued operations 1 based on the profit from continuing
operations attributable to equity holders of AB inBev A reconcihation of profit before non-recurnng items and discontinued operations,
atinbutable to equity holders of AB InBev to profit attrbutable to equity halders of AB InBev 1s calculated as follows

Million US doltar 2018 2017
Profit before non-recurnng dems and discontinued operations, attnbutable to equity holders of 6793 7 967
Non-recurnng items, before taxes (refer to Note 8) (715) (662)
Non-recurnng finance iIncome/{cast}, before taxes (refer to Note 8) (1982) (693)
Non-recurring taxes (refer to Note 8) 240 830
MNon-recurnng non-controlling interest {refer to Note 8) 3z 526
Profit from discontinued operatons - 28
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 4368 7 996

The calcutation of the Underying EPS' 1s based on the profit before non-recurnng items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market losses
and hypennflation impacts attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev A reconcihation of profit before non-recurnng items, discontinued
operations, mark-to-market losses and hypennflation impacts, attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev to profit before non-recurnng
items and discontinued operations, attnbutable to equity hoiders of AB InBev, 15 calculated as follows:

Million US dollar 2018 2017

Profit before non-recurmng items, discontinued operations, mark-to~-market losses

and hypeninflation impacts, atinbutable to equity hoiders of AB InBev 8 644 8258

Mark-to-market losses on certain denvatives related to the hedging

of share-based payment programs (refer to Note 11} (1774) (291)

Hypennfiation impacts. {¥7) -

Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations,

attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 6793 7967
! See glossary



The table below sets out the EPS calculation

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Profit attnbutable te equity hoiders of AB InBev 4 368 7 996
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1975 1971
Basic EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 21 4.06
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 968
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1975 1971
Basic EPS from continuing operations 221 4.04
Profit from continuing operations before nan-recurnng items, attributable 1o equity holders of 6793 7 867
Weighted average number of ordinary and restncied shares 1975 1871
Basic EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items 3.44 4.04
Profit before non-recurnng tems, discontinued operations, mark-to-market losses and B 6a4 8258
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 14875 1470
Underlying EPS' 4.38 4.19
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 4368 7 996
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diuted) 20t 2010
Dituted EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 217 3.98
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable ta equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 968
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2011 2010
Diluted EPS from continuing operations 217 3.96
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurming (tems, atinbutable to equity holders of 8763 7 967
Weighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares (diuted) 2011 2010
Diluted EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items 3.38 3.96

The average market value of the company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share optiens and restncted stock
unils was based on quoted market prices for the penod that the options and restricted stock units were outstanding 63m share options
were anh-diutive and not included in the calculation of the diutive effect as at 31 December 2018.

' See glossary
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24. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the company’s interest-beanng loans and borrowings. For more information about the company's
exposure to interest rate and foreign exposure currency 7isk - refer 1o Note 29 Risks ansing from financial instruments

Non-current liabilities

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Secured bank lgans 109 230
Unsecured bank loans 88 193
Unsecured bond 1ssues 105170 108 327
Unsecured other loans 57 23
Finance lease habilities 162 186
Non-current interest-bearing toans and borrowings 105 584 108 949

Current liabilities

Million US doltar 31 December 2018 31 December 2037
Secured bank loans 370 272
Commercial papers 1142 1870
tnsecured bank loans 22 739
Unsecured bond i1ssues 2626 4510
Unsecured other loans 14 »
Finance lease liabiliies 42 2
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4216 7433

The current and non-current interest-beanng loans and borrowings amount to 109.8 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018, compared
to 116 4 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2017.

Commercial papers amount to 1 1 bilhon US dollar as of 31 December 2018 and mclude programs in US dollar and euro with a total
authonzed ssuance up to 3.0 bilhon US dollar and 1 0 billion euro, respectively

Dunng 2018, AB InBev completed the issuance of the following senes of bonds-

Aggregate
principal amount
Issue date in millions Currenc Interest rate Maturity date
23 January 2018 1 500 Euro 3M EURIBOR + 30 bps 15 Apnil 2024
23 January 2018 2000 Euro 1.150% 22 January 2027
23 January 2018 750 Euro 2.000% 23 January 2035
4 April 2018 1500 usop 3 500% 12 January 2024
4 Aprit 2018 2 500 usp 4 000% 13 Apnl 2028
4 Apnl 2018 1500 usD 4 375% 15 Apnl 2038
4 Aprii 2018 2 500 uso 4.600% 15 Apnl 2048
4 April 2018 1500 uso 4 750% 15 Apnl 2058
4 Apnl 2018 500 uso 3M LIBOR + 74 bps 12 January 2024

On 19 March, the company redeemed the entire outstanding pnncipat amount of the Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide notes with a
principal amgunt of 2 5 bithon US dollar due in 2019 beanng interest at 7.75%

On 23 Apnil, the company redeemed the entire outstanding pnnecipal ameunt of cerfain notes due in 2019 and 2020 The total pnncipal
amount of the notes that were retired 1s approximateiy 7 8 bithon US dallar

On 6 June, the company redeemed the entire outstanding principal amount of the Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide notes due 2020 The
total pnncipal amount of notes that were retired 1s 1 0 bilhon US doliar

On 13 December, the company redeemed the entire outstanding principal amount of the Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance notes due 2021
The total principal amount of notes that were retred s 2.5 bilion US doflar

The redemption of these notes was financed with cash
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On 26 November, the company anncounced the final results of a U S private exchange offer for a series of six notes 1ssued by Anheuser-
Busch InBev Finance for notes co-issued by Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC (*ABC") and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc The
total prnincipal amount of notes exchanged listed below 1s 23 5 billion US dollar.

principal Principal amount Principal
amount outstanding amount not

outstanding exchanged exchanged
Title of series of notes {in million US {in million US {in million

Issuer issued exchanged

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 4 8% Notes due 2046 11 000 8543 1457
Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 4 7% Notes due 2036 6 000 5385 615
Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 3 65% Notes due 2026 11 Q00 8 555 2445

AB inBev 15 1n comphance with all its debt covenants as of 31 December 2018. The 2010 senior facilities do not include restnctive financial
covenants.

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2018 1 year or More than 5
Million US dollar less
Secured bank lcans 479 370 38 14 26 3
Commercial papers 1142 1142 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 108 2 - 88 - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues 107 796 2626 5259 8039 17 180 74 892
Unsecured other loans bal 14 18 7 ] 23
Finance lease hablites 204 42 19 17 12 1128
109 800 4218 5334 5163 1727 74860

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 december 2017 1 year or More than
Million US dollar less 5 years
Secured bank loans 502 272 128 18 33 51
Commercial papers 1870 1870 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 8%2 739 122 31 - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues 112 837 4 510 9 956 9389 18 441 70 541
Unsecured other loans 68 15 18 7 3 25
Finance lease habilities 213 27 29 20 23 114

116 382 7 433 10 253 9 465 18 500 70 731

Finance lease liabilities 2018 2617

Million US dollar Interests Interests

Less than one year 62 20 42 42 15 27

Between ane and two years a7 18 19 42 13 29

Between two and three years 33 16 17 31 1 20

Between three and five years 33 2t 12 40 17 23

More than 5 years 151 37 114 1485 3z 114
7 112 205 301 88 213

Net debt 15 defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and hank overdrafts minus debt securties and cash
and cash equivalents. Net debt 1s a financial perfomance indicator that 1s used by AB InBev's management to highlight changes in the
company's overall liquidity position. The company believes that net debt is meaningful for investors as 1t 1s one of the primary measures
AB InBev's management uses when evaluating its progress towards deleveraging.

AB InBev's net debt decreased to 102.5 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2018, from 104 4 billion US doltar as of 31 December 2017
Apart from operating results net of capital expenditures, the net debt 1s mainly impacted by the acquisiion by Ambev of addittonal shares
in Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana S.A. (“CND") following the partial exercise by E. Leén Jimenes S.A. (“ELJ") of its put option (0.9 billion
US doilar), the payment to Malson Coors Brewing Company related to a purchase pnce adjustment on the disposal completed on 11
Qctober 2016 of SAB’s interest in MillerCoors LLC and all trademarks, contracts and other assets pnmarily related to the "Miller
Intemational Business” (0.3 bilion US dollar), dvidend payments to shareholders of AB InBev and Ambev (7.8 bilhon US dollar), the
payment of interests and taxes (7 1 billion US dollar) and the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (2 1 bilhon US dollar decrease
of net debt).
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The following table provides a reconciliation of AB InBev's net debt as at 31 December

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 105 584 108 949
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4216 7433
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 109 800 116 382
Bank overdrafts 114 17
Cash and cash equivalents {7 074) (10 472)
Interest beanng loans granted and other deposits (included within Trade and other (257) (309)
Debt secunities [included within Investment secunties) (111) (1328)
Net debt 102 462 104 391

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the company's abilities ansing from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes
Liabilittes ansing from financing actvities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the company’s
consohdated statement of cash flows from financing activittes

Short-term debt and

Long-term debt, net current portion of

Million US dollar of current portion long-term debt
Balance at 1 January 2018 108 949 7433
Proceeds from borrowings 15111 2672
Paymenis on borrowings {13 925) (8 564)
Amortized cost 47 255
Unrealized foreign exchange effects (1837) (298)
Current portion of long-term debt (2732) 2732
Other moverments (29) (14)
Balance at 31 December 2018 105 584 4216

25. Employee benefits

AB InBev sponsors various post-employment benefit plans worldwide. These include pension plans, both defined contnbution plans, and
defined benefit plans, and other post-employment benefits {n accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits post-employment benefit plans
are classified as either defined contnbution plans ar defined benefit ptans

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

For defined contnbution plans, AB InBev pays contnbutions to publicly or pnvately administered pension funds or insurance contracts
Once the contributions have been paid, the group has no further payment obligation, The regular contributions constitute an expense for
the year in which they are due For 2018, contnbutions paid inte defined contnbution ptans for the company amounted to 116m US dollar
compared to 118m US dollar for 2017

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

Dunng 2018, the company contributed to 84 defined benefit plans, of which 62 are retirement or leaving service plans, 18 are medical
cost plans and 4 other long-term empioyee benefit ptans Most plans provide retirement and leaving service benefits related to pay and
years of service. In many of the countrres the plans are partally funded. When plans are funded, the assets are hetd in legally separate
funds set up In accordance with applicable legal requirements and common practice 1n each couniry The medical cost plans in Brazil,
Canada, Colombia, South Africa and US provide medical benefits to employees and their families after retirement. Many of the defined
benefit plans are closed to new entrants

The present value of funded obligations includes a 175m US dollar hiability related to two medical plans in Brazil, for which the benefits
are provided through the Fundagdo Antonio Helena Zerrenner (“FAHZ"). The FAHZ s a legally distinct entity which provides medical,
dental, educational and social assistance to current and retired employees of Ambev. On 31 December 2018, the actuarnat liabihties
related to the benefits provided by the FAHZ are fully offset by an equivalent amount of assets existing in the fund. The net hability
recognized in the balance sheet 1s nil

The employee benefit net hability amounts to 2 665m US doltar as of 31 December 2018 compared 1o 2 971m US dolfar as of 31 December
2017. In 2018, the fair value of the plan assets decreased by 564m US dallar and the defined benefit obligations decreased by 842m US
dollar. The decrease in the employee benefit net lability 1s manly dnven by increases in discount rates and favorable foreign exchange
movements
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The company's net lability for post-employment and long-term employee benefit plans comprises the following at 31 December

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Present value of funded obligations (6 762) (7 506)
Fair vajue of plan assets 5059 5623
Present value of net obligations for funded plans {1703) {1 B83)
Present value of unfunded obligations (806) {904)
Present value of net obligations (2 509) (2787)
Unrecognized asset n (111)
Net liability (2 586) (2 898)
Other long term employee banefits 9 (73)
Reclassified as held for sale - -
Total employee benefits (2 685) (2971)
Employee benefits 1ts in the bal sheet:

Liabilities (2 681) {2 993)
Assets 16 22
Net liability {2 685} (2971)

The changes in the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligations are as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January {8 410) {7 952)
Current service casts (72) {74)
Interest cost (322) {340)
Past service gainf(cost) {3) 17
Settlements 45 8
Benefits paid 493 502
Contnbution by plan participants (3) (4)
Actuanial gainsi/{losses) — demographic assumptions 27 24
Actuanal gains/(losses) — financial assumptons 350 (264)
Expenence adjustments 14 (21)
Exchange differences 313 (343)
Transfers and other movements - 39
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December (7 568) (8 410)

As at the last valuation date, the present value of the defined benefit obhgaton was compnsed of approxmateily
1 & bilhon US dollar relabng to active employees, 1 5 bilion US dollar relating 1o deferred members and 4.5 billion US dollar relating to
members in retrement The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows

Million US doltar 2018 2017
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 5623 5177
Interest ircome 225 239
Administration costs (14) {22)
Return on plan assets exceeding nterest incorne (333) 233
Contnbutions by AB inBev 3ar 315
Contnbutions by plan participants 3 4
Benefits paid net of administration costs (493) (502)
Assets distnbuted on settlements (45) 1)
Exchange differerices (214} 214
Transfers and other movements - (28)
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 5058 5623

Actual return on plans assets amourted to a loss of 108m US dollar in 2018 compared to a gan of 472m US dollar in 2017
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The changes in the unrecognized asset are as follows:

Million US doilar 2018 2017
Irrecoverable surplus impact at 1 January (111 (168)
Interest expense {10} (1
Changes excluding amounts included in interest expense 44 74
trrecoverable surplus impact at 31 December a0 (111

The expense recognized 1n the iIncome statement with regard to defined benefit plans can be detailed as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Current service costs (72) (74)
Administration costs (14) (22)
Past service cost due to plan amendments and curtaiiments 3) 17
(Losses)gains on due to expenence and dermographic assumption changes 3 3
Profit from operations (86) (76)
Net inance cost {te7) {120)
Total employee benefit expense (193} {196)

The employee benefit expense 1s Included n the following ine items of the iIncome statement.

Million US doHar 2018 2017
Cost of sales (26) (24)
Distnbution expenses an (10}
Sales and marketing expenses (16) (15}
Administrative expenses (28) (29}
Other operating (expense)income {6) 8)
Non-recurning rtems 1 6
Net finance cost (107) (120)

{193) {196)

Weighted average assumptions used in computing the benefit obligations of the company's significant plans at the balance sheet date
are as follows

2018
United United
States Canada Mexico Brazil Kingdom  AB InBev
Discount rate 4.3% 3.9% 9.0% 8.9% 28% 4.3%
Pnce inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.4% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 4.3% 76%56% - 3.8%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.0% 2.8%
Medical cost trend rate 6.5%-4.5% 4.5% - 7.6% - 8.8%-6.0%
Life expectation for a 65 year ald male 85 87 82 85 a7 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old femaie a7 89 85 88 89 87
United United
States Canada Mexico Brazil Kingdom
Discount rate 3.7% 36% 80% 10 0% 26% 4 0%
Price infation 2.5% 2.0% 35% 4 3% 33% 27%
Future salary increases - 10% 4.3% 56% - 35%
Future pension increases - 20% 35% 4.3% 30% 28%
Medical cost trend rate 6 2%-5.0% 4 5% - 7.9% - 65 0%-
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old female 88 89 85 a8 88 88
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Through iis defined benefit pension plans and post-empioyment medical plans, the company 1s exposed to & number of nisks, the most
significant are detalled below:

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

In case of funded plans, the company ensures that the Investment positions are managed within an asset-hability matching (ALM)
framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the pension schemes
Within this framework, the company's ALM objective 1s to match assets to the pension obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest
securities with matunties that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropnate currency The company actively monitors
how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash cutflows ansing from the pension obligation

ASSET VOLATILITY

In general, the company's funded plans are invested in a combination of equities and bonds, generating high but volatile returns from
equities and at the same time stable and liability-matching returns from bonds As the plans mature, the company usually reduces the
leve! of investment nsk by invasting more in assets that better mailch the habiites. Since 2015, the company started the implementation
of a new pension de-rnisking strategy to reduce the risk profile of certain plans by reducing gradually the current exposure to equities and
shifting those assets to fixed income secunties

CHANGES IN BOND YIELDS

A decrease In corporate bond yields will increase plan liabiities, atthough this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
ptans' bond holdings

INFLATION RISK

Some of the company’s pension obligations, mainly in the UK, are inked to inflation, and higher inflation wiil lead to higher liabiities. The
majonty of the plan's assets are either unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation, meamng that an increase in inflation could
potentially increase the company’s net banefit obligation

LIFE EXPECTANCY

The majonty of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the hfe of the member, so increases In life expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans’ habilities

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation 1s 13 3 years (2017 13.8 years)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obhigation 1o changes in the werghted pnncipal assumptions 1s

Million US dollar 2018
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.5% (468) 501
Pnce inflation 0.5% 152 (163)
Future salary increase 0.5% 28 (26)
Medical cost trend rate 1.0% 45 (39)
Longewity One yoar 220 (229}

The above are purely hypothetical changes in individual assumptions holding all other assumptions constant economic conditions and
changes therein will often atfect multiple assumptions at the same time and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not linear.

Sensitvities are reasonably possibie changes in assumptions and they are calculated using the same approach as was used to determine
the defined benefit obligation Therefare, the abave information is not necessanly a reasonabie representation of futura results

The farr value of plan assets at 31 December consists of the following

PUNE] 2017

" Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

Gavernment bonds 2% - 32% 27% - 27%
Corporate bonds 36% - 6% 37% - 7%
Equity instruments 22% - 22% 26% - 26%
Property - 4% 4% - 4% 4%
Insurance contracts and others 4% 2% 6% 5% 1% 6%
94% 6% 100% 95% 5% 100%

AB InBev expacts to contnbute approximately 246m US doliar for its funded defined henefit plans and 73m US dollar in benefit payments

to its unfunded defined benefit plans and post-retrement medical plans in 2018,
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26. Share-based payments’

Dufferent share and share option programs allow company senior management and members of the board of directors to receive or acquire
shares of AB InBev or Ambev AB InBev has three primary share-based compensation plans, the share-based compensation plan ("Share-
Based Compensation Plan™), the long-term incentive stock option ptan for directors (“L.T1 Stock Option Plan Directers”), and the long-term
incentive stock-option plan far execuhives (“LT1 Stock Option Plan Executives™) For alt option plans, the fair value of share-based payment
compensation 1s estimated at grant date, using a binomial Hull model, modified to reflect the IFRS 2 Share-based Payment requirement
that assumptions about forfetture before the end of the vesting penod cannot iImpact the fair value of the option All the company share-
based payment plans are equity-settied

Share-based payment transactions resulted in a total expense of 353m US dollar for the year 2018, as compared to 358m US dollar for
the year 2017.

AB INBEV SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Share-Based Compensaticn Plan

As from 1 January 2010, the structure of the Share-Based Compensation Plan for certain executives in the general headquarters, has
been modified From 1 January 2011, the new plan structure applies to all other senior management Under this plan, the: Executive Board
of Management (replaced as from 1 January 2019 by the Executive Committee) and other senior employees recewe their bonus in cash
but have the choice to invest some or all of the value of their bonus In AB InBev shares with a five-year vesting penod, referred to as
bonus shares Such voluntary investment leads to a 10% discount to the market pnce of the shares. The company also maiches such
voluniary investment by granting three matching shares for each bonus share voluntarly invested in, up to a hmited total percentage of
each participant's bonus The percentage of the variable compensation that 1s entitled to get matching shares vares depending on the
position of the executive The malching 15 based on the gross amount of the vanable compensation invested The discount shares and
matching shares are granted in the form of restncted stock units which have a five-year vesting penod Additionally, the holders of the
restneled stock units may be entitled to receive from AB InBev additional restricted stock units equal to the dividends declared since the
restneted stock units were granted

Durning 2018, AB InBev 1ssued 1 5m of matching restricted stock unis in relaton to bonus granted to company employees and
management These maiching restricted stock units are valued at the share pnce at the day of grant representng a far value of
approxmately 1568m US dollar and cliff vest after five years Dunng 2017, AB InBev 1ssued 0 3m of matching restnicted stock units i
relation to bonus granted to company employees and management These matching restncted stock units are valued at the share price
at the day of grant representing a fair value of approximately 31m US dollar and cliff vest after five years

LTI Stock Option Plan for Directors

Before 2014, the company 1ssued regularly warrants, or nghts 1o subscnbe for newly 1ssued shares under the LTt Warrant Plan for the
benefit of directors and, unhl 20086, for the benefit of members of the Executive Board of Management and other semor employees LTI
warrants were subject to a vesting penod ranging from one to three years Forfeiture of a warrant occurs in certain circumstances when
the holder leaves the company's employment.

Since 2007, members of the Executive Board of Management (replaced as from 1 January 2019 by the Executive Committee) and other
employees are no longer eligible to receve warrants under the LTI Warrant Plan, but instead receive a portion of their compensation in
the form of shares and options granted under the Share-Based Compensation Plan and the LTI Stock Option Plan Executives

Since 2014, directors are no longer eligible to receve warrants under the LTI Warrant Plan Instead, on 30 April 2014, the annual
shareholders meeting decided to replace the LTI Warrant Plan by a LT) Stock Optton plan for directors As a result, grants for directors
now consist of LTI stock options instead of LTI warrants (i.e the nght to purchase existing shares nstead of the nght to subscnbe to newly
1ssued shares), Grants are made annually at the company’s shareholders meeting on a discretionary basis upon recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee The LTI stock options have an exercise pnce that s set equal to the market price at the tme of the granting, a
maxmum lifetime of 10 years and an exercise period that staris after 5 years The LTI stock options clff vest after 5 years Unvested
options are subject to specific forfeiture provisions in the event that the directorship 15 not renewed upon the expiry of its term or s
terminated in the course of its term, both due to a breach of duty by the director

Furthermore, at the annual shareholders meeting of 30 Apnl 2014, all outstanding LT| warrants granted under the cormpany's LTI Warrant
Plan were converted into LTI stock options, 1 & the nght to purchase existing ordinary shares of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV instead of
the nght to subscribe to newly iIssued shares. All other terms and conditions of the existing grants under the LTI Warrant Plan remain
unchanged

During 2018, AB InBev granted 0 2m stock options to members of the board of directors, representing a fair value of approximately 4m
US dollar (2017: 0 2m stock options with a fair value of approxmately 4m US dollar)

LTI Stock Option Plan for Executives
As from 1 July 2009, senior employees are eligibte for an annual fong-term incentve to be paid out in LTI stock options (or, in future,
similar share-based instruments), degending on management’s assessment of the employee's performance and future potential

During 2018 AB InBev rssued 7 2m LTI stock options with an estimated far value of 102m US dollar During 2017 AB InBev 1ssued 7 Bm
LTI stock options with an estimated far value of 149m US dollar, whereby 1.4m options relate to Amencan Depositary Shares (ADSs)
and 6 4m options to AB InBev shares

! Amounts have been converted to US dollar at the average rate of the penod, unless otherwise indicated
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Performance related incentive plan for Disruptive Growth Function

In 2016 the company implemented a new performance related incentive plan which substitutes the long-term incentive stock ophion plan
for executives of the Disruptive Growth Function. This function was created in 2015 10 accelerate new business development opportunities,
focusing on imibatives in e-commerce, mobile, craft and branded expenences such as brew pubs.

Dunng 2018, approxmately 2.7m performance units were granted to semor management of the Disruptive Growth Function (2017
approximately 2 Om performance units) The value of the performance units wall depend on the return of the Disruptive Growth business
area, Out of these, 0 1m performance units were granted to a member of the Executive Board of Management

The units vest after S years provided a petformance test 1s met. Speaific forfeiture rules apply in case the executive leaves the company
Other Grants
A8 (nBev has in place three specific long-term incentive programs

One program allows for the offer of restricted stock units to certain employees in certain specific circumstances, whereby grants are made
at the discretion of the CEOQ, e.g as a special retention incentive or to compensate for assignments of expatnates in countnes wath difficult
Iving conditions. The restncted stock units vest after five years and 1n case of termination of service before the vesting date, special
forfeture rules apply In 2018, 2.3m restricted stock units with an estmated far value of 184m US doliar were granted under this program
to a selected number of employees (2017 0 1m resincted stock urits with an estimated fair value of 9m US dollar).

A second program allows for the exceptional offer of restnicted stock units to certain employees at the discretion of the Remuneration
Commuitee o AB InBav as a long-term retentian incentive for key emplayees of the company Employees eligible to receive a grant under
this program receive two senes of restncted stock units, the first half of the restncted stock units vesting after five years, the second half
after ten years As a vanant under this program, the restricted stock units may be granted with a shorter vesting penod of 2.5 ta 3 years
for the first half and 5 years for the second half of the resincted stock units. In case of termunation of service before the vesting date,
special forfeiture rules apply. As of 2017, nstead of restncted stock units, stock options may be granted under the program wath similar
vesting and forfeiture rules. Each option gives the grantee the nght to purchase one existing AB InBev share Dunng 2018, approximately
.4m restricted stock units were granted with an estimated fair value of 36m US dollar (2017- 0.8m stock options with an estmated fair
value of 15m US doliar)

A third program atlaws certain emplayees to purchdase company shares at a discount aimed as a iong-term ratention incentive for {1} high-
potential employees of the company, who are at a mid-manager level ("People bet share purchase program”) or {1} for newly hured
employees. The voluntary investment in company shares leads to the grant of an amount of matching restricted stock units or stock
options which vest afler 5 years In case of termination before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply In 2018, employees
purchased 0.1m shares under this program for the equivalent of 1m US dollar [2017: equivalent of 5m US dollar).

In 2018 a new program was implemented allowing for the offer of performance based restncted stock units ("Performance RSUs™) to
cartain members of the company's senior management Upon vesting, each RSU gives the executive the nght to receve one existing AB
InBev share The Performance RSUs can have a vesting penod of 5 years or of 10 years The shares resulting from the RSU vesting wall
only be delivered provided a performance test 1s met by the company This performance test 1s based on an organic EBITDA compounded
annual growth rate target which must be achieved by 31 December 2024 at the latest Specific forfeiture rules apply if the employee leaves
the company before the performance test achievement or vesting date

Buning 2018, AB InBev granted 0.5m Performance RSUs to a selected group of members of the senior management of the company,
ncluding a number of members of the Executive Board of Management, under the Performance Restricted Stock Units Plan, with an
estimated far value of 46m US dollar

In order to mantain consistency of benefits granted to executives and to encourage international mobility of executives, an options
exchange program can be execuled whereby unvested ophons are exchanged agamst restncted shares that remamn locked-yp unti! 5
years after the end of the initial vesting penod The shares that result from the exercise of the options must in principle remain locked-up
until 31 December 2023 In 2018, no options were exchanged against ordnary blocked shares (2017 0 3m ophtions were exchanged
aganst ordinary blocked shares) Furthermore, certain options granted have been modified whereby the dividend protected feature of
these options have been cancelied and compensated by the issuance of new additional options. In 2018 and 2017, no new oplions were
Issued

The Board has aiso approved the early release of vesting conditions of unvested stock ophons or restncted stock units which are vesting
within 6 manths of the executives’ relocation. The shares that result from the early exercise of the options or the early vesting of the
restricted stock umts must remain blocked untif the end of the inmiai vesting penod in 2018, the vesting of § 3m stock ophions and restncted
stock units was accelerated under this program for other members of the senior management Out of these, the vesting of 0 3m stock
aptions and restricted stock units was accelerated for members of the Executive Board of Management.

The weighted average fair value of the options and assurmptions used in applying the AB InBev option pncing model for the 2018 grants
of awards descnbed above are as follows:

Amounts in US dollar unless otherwise indicated’ 2018 2017 2016
Farr value of options granted 16.82 1994 17 40
Share pnce 98.66 1777 103.77
Exercise price 88.66 117.77 103.77
Expected volatility 23% 23% 24%
Expected dividends 3.00% 3.00% 300%
Risk-free interest rate 0.39% 072% 0.54%

' Amounts have been converted 1o US dollar at the closing rate of the respective period
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Expected volatiity 1s based on hustorical volatility calculated using 3 295 days of historical data In the deterrmimation of the expected
volatiity, AB InBev 1s excluding the volatility measured during the perod 15 July 2008 untd 30 Apnl 2008, in view of the extreme market
conditions expenenced during that period. The inomial Hull model assumes that all employees would immediately exercise their options
if the AB InBev share price 1s 2 5 times above the exercise price As a result, no single expected opton life apphes.

The total number of outstanding AB InBev options developed as follows

Milion options 2018 2017 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 93.0 649 47 6
Options ssued dunng the year 5.2 35.0 204
Options exercised dunng the year (1.7} (30) (22)
Options forfeited during the year (4.0) (39) (0.9)
Options outstanding at the end of December 92.6 93.0 64.9

The range of exercise prices of the outstanding options 1s between 10 32 euro (11 82 US dollar)’ and 121.95 euro (139 83 US doilar)
while the weighted average remaimning contractual Iife 13 8 39 years

Of the 92 6m outstanding options 16 2m are vested at 31 December 2018.

The weighted average exercise prnice of the AB InBev options 15 as follows

Amounts in US dollar’ 2018 2017 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 98.32 76 25 64 50
Granted during the year 104.77 117.24 104 T
Exercised during the year 44.96 38 94 3245
Forfeited dunng the year 113.19 108.26 88 68
Qutstanding at the end of December 84.74 98.32 76 25
Exercisable at the end of December 21.40 59.66 40 62

For share options exercised during 2018, the weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise was 79.22 euro (80 71 US dollar)

The total number of outstanding AB InBev restricted stock units developed as follows

Million restricted stock units 2018 2017 2016
Restricted stock units outstanding at 1 January 54 58 56
Restricted stock units 1ssued dunng the year 23 07 14
Restncled stock units exercised during the year {0.5) (0.7) {1.1)
Restricted stock units forferted dunng the year (1.2) o4 (0.1)
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 6.0 5.4 5.8

AMBEY SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Since 2005, Ambev has had a plan which 1s substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bornuses granted to
company employees and management are partially settled in shares Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambev 1ssued 0 4m
deferred stock units in 2018 with an estimated farr value of 2Zm US dollar

Since 2018, Ambev has a plan which 15 substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bonuses granted to
company employees and management are partally setifed in shares Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambev 1ssued 13 1m
restricted stock unis in 2018 with an estmated fair value of 66m US dollar.

As from 2010, sentar employees are eligible for an annual long-term incentive to be paid out 1n Ambev LTI stock options {or, in future,
similar share-based instruments), depending on management’s assessment of the employee’s performance and future potential. In 2018,
Ambev granted 19 5m LTI stock options with an estmated fair value of 30m US dollar (2017 20.4m LTI stock options with an estimated
fair value of 42m US Dollar)

The weighted farr value of the options and assumptions used 1n applying a wnomial option pricing model for the 2018 Ambev grants are
as follows

Amaounts in US dollar unless otherwise indicated’ 2018 2017 2016
Fair value of options granted 1.47 197 180
Share price 4.66 599 527
Exercise prce 4.66 599 527
Expected volatility 26% 27% 27%
Expected dividends 0.00% - 5.00% 0.00% -5 00% 0 00% - 5 00%
Risk-free interest rate 9.6% 10 10% 12 40%

' Amounts have been converted to US dollar at the clasing rate of the respective penod



The total number of outstanding Ambev options developed as follows

Millicn options 2018 2017 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 1352 131.3 1217
Options issued durng the year 19.9 204 248
Options exercised gunng the year {10.0) {135 (116}
Options forfeited during the year (3.8) (2 9) (37)
Options outstanding at the end of December 1413 135.2 131.3

The range of exercise pnces of the outstanding options 1s between 0.01 Brazihan real (0.00 US dollar) and 27.43 Brazuian real (7 0B US
dollar) while the weighted average remaiming contractual ife s .27 years,

Of the 141.3m outstanding oplions 55 5m options are vested at 31 December 2018,

The weighted average exercise price of the Ambev options 1s as follows:

Amounts in US dollar’ 2018 2047 2016
Options oulstanding at 1 January 394 419 317
Granted dunng the year 4.66 599 5.27
Exercised dunng the year 193 176 0.77
Forfeiled dunng the year 4.79 541 394
Outstanding at the end of December 417 4.92 426
Exercisable at the end of December 0.58 114 112

Far share options exercised dunng 2018, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 21.03 Braziian real (5 63
US dollar).

The total number of outstanding Ambev deferred and restncted stock units developed as follows:

Miilion restricted stock units 2018 2017 2016
Restricted stock units outstanding at 1 January 16.3 193 181
Restricted stock units ssued dunng the year 135 o8 7.3
Resincted stock units exercised during the year 3.7) (2 9) (61)
Restricted stock units forfeited during the year (1.1) {0.9) {(10)
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 25.0 16.3 19.3

Additionally, as a means of creating a long term ncentive (wealth incentive) for certain senior employees and members of management
considered as having “high potential”, share appreciahon nghts in the form of phantom stocks have baen granted to those employeas,
pursuant to which the beneficiary shall receive two separate lots — Lot A and Lot B - subject to lockup penods of five and ten years,
respectively.

During 2018, a imited number of Ambev shareholders who are part of the senior management of AB InBev were given the opportunity to
exchange Ambev shares against a total of 0.1m AB InBev shares (0 1m AB InBev shares in 2017) at a discount of 16 7% prowided that
they stay in service for another five years. The fair value of this transaction amounts to approximately 1m US dollar (2m US dollar in 2017)
and 1s expensed over the five years' service pencd The fair values of the Ambev and AB InBev shares were determined based on the
rmarket price

27. Provisions

Miltion US dolilar Restructuring Disputes Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2018 153 1383 864 2400
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (7) (65) (43) (115)
Provisions made 69 195 271 535
Provisions used (75) (A77) (354) (806)
Provisions reversed {2) (54) - (56)
Other movements (8) (5 27 (40}
Balance at 31 December 2018 130 1077 711 1918

The restructuning provisions are pnmarly explained by the organizational alignments - see also Note B Non-recumng tems. Provisions
for disputes mainly relate to various disputed direct and indirect taxes and to claims from former employvees
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The provisions are expected to be settled within the following time windows

Miftion US doHlar Total < 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years > 5 years
Restructuring 130 63 18 a7 2
Income and indirect taxes 627 ass 141 83 38
Labor 136 44 12 73

Commerciaé 34 14 6 13 1
Excise duties 18 - 3 15 -
Other disputes 262 7 102 153 -
Disputes 1077 430 264 337 46
Other provisions 711 273 213 225 -
Total provisions 1918 T66 495 609 48

AB InBev 1s subject to the greenhouse gas emission atiowance trading scheme in force in the European Union and a simiar scheme in
South Korea Acquired emission allowances are recognized at cost as intangble assets To the extent that it 15 expected that the number
of allowances needed to settle the CO; emissions exceeds the number of emission allowances owned, a provision i1s recognized Such
provision 18 measured at the estimated amount of the expenditure required to settle the obligation At 31 December 2018, the emission
allowances owned fully covered the expecied CO» emissions As such no provision needed 1o be recognized.

28. Trade and other payables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Indirect taxes payable 194 157
Trade payables 238 380
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 1247 699
Other payables 138 226
Non-current trade and other payables 1816 1462

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Million US dollar 31 Decemnber 2018 31 December 2017
Trade payables and accrued expenses 15512 15240
Payroll and sccial secunty payables 900 1284
Indirect taxes payable 2633 2 862
Interest payable 1616 1790
Consigned packaging 1093 1111
Dwidends payable kXl 479
Deferred income 32 30
Deferred consideration on acquisibons 163 1723
Other payables 289 243
Current trade and other payables 22 568 24 762

As at 31 December 2018, deferred consideration on acquisitions :s mainly compnsed of 0 8 bilion US dollar for the put option included in
the 2012 shareholders’ agreement between Ambev and ELJ which may result in Ambev acquinng additional shares in Cerveceria Nacional
Domiricana 8 A ("CND™ in January 2018, ELJ partially exercised its option to sell approximately 30% of the shares of CND for an
amount of 0 9 billion US dollar, resulting in Ambev's participation in CND increasing from 55% to 85%



29. Risks arising from financial instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Set out below 1s an overview of financial assets' held by the company at year-end

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Debt instruments at amortized cost
Trade and other receivables 6298 6 537

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
Unquoted debt 24 24

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted debt 87 1304

Equity instruments at fair value through QCI
Unguoted companies 84 76

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Denvafives not designated in hedge accounting relationships

Equity swaps - 21
Interest rate swaps 9 -
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 32 9
Other derivatives 20 1

Dernvatives designated in hedge accounting retationships:
Fereign exchange forward contracts 191 151

Interest rate swaps - 14

Commodities 54 246
& 799 8 383

Of which:

Non-current 1068 959

Current 5731 7 444

* Cash and short term deposits are not included in this overiew
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Set out below 1s an overview of financial labilities held by the company at year-end

on US dollar

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Denvatives not designated in hedge accounting relationships:

Equity swaps
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Other derivatives

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting refationships:

Foreign exchange forward contracts
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Interest rale swaps

Commodities

Other denvatives

Financial llabilities at amortized cost
Trade and other payables

Non-current interest-beanng loans and bormowings
Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bond 1ssues

Unsecured other loans

Finance lease liabilities

Current interest-beanng loans and borrowings.
Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bond 1ssues

Unsecured other loans

Commercial paper

Bank overdrafts

Finance lease habilitres

Of which:
Non-current
Current
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4877
87
456

132
103

273

20 658

109

105179
57
162

70

2626
14
1142
114

42
136912

108012
28 899

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

1057
906

211

37
67
73

21 921

230

153
108 327
53

186

272
739

4 510
15
1870
117

27
140 773

111 1M
29 582
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DERIVATIVES

AB InBev's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks: market nsk {ncluding currency nsk, fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow
interest nsk, commedity nsk and equity risk), credit sk and Iiquidity risk. The company analyses each of these risks individually as well
as on a combined basis and defines strategies to manage the economic impact on the company's performance in line with its financial
risk management policy

The main denvative instruments used are foreign currency rate agreements, exchange traded forewgn cumency futures and options, interest
rate swaps and forwards, cross cumency interest rate swaps (“CCIRS"), exchange traded interest rate futures, commodity swaps,
exchange traded commodity futures and equity swaps

The 1able below provides an overview of the notional amounts of dervatives outstanding at year-end by maturty bucket

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

R 23 35 =5 <1 12 23 35

Million US dollar year years years  years years  years years

Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 11423 190 - - - 118637 233 - - -
Foreign currency futures 848 - - - - 655 - - - .

Interest rate

Interest rate swaps 2250 750 28 1873 I 1075 2250 750 1883 88
Cross currency interest rate 1807 51 16 6464 681 711 1797 - 5900 1176
Other interest rate denvatives 4 - - - 565 - - 5 - 565

Commodities

Aluminum swaps 1597 73 - - - 1412 21 - - -
Other commodity denvatives 1241 32 - - - 1214 144 - - -
Equity

Equity derivatives 11 347 - - - - 11799 - - - -
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

AB InBev 15 subject to foreign currency risk when contracts are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
This includes borrowings, investments, (forecasted) sales, (forecasted) purchases, royalties, dividends, licenses, management fees and
tnterest expensefincome To manage foreign currency nisk the company uses marnly foreign currency rate agreements, exchange traded
foreign currency futures and cross currency interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange risk on cperating activities

AB InBev's policy 1s 1o hedge operating transactions which are reasonably expected to occur (e g. cost of goods sold and selfing, general
& administrative expenses) within the forecast penod detemuined in the financial nsk management palicy Operating transactions that are
considered certan to occur are hedged without any time limits. Non-operating transactions (such as acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries) are hedged as soon as they are highly probable

The table below shows the company's main net foreign currency positions for firn commitments and forecasted transactions for the most
impartant currency pairs The open positions are the result of the application of AB InBev's nsk management policy Positve amounts
indicate that the company 1s long (net future cash inflows) in the first currency of the currency pasr while negative amounts indicate that
the company 1s short {net future cash outflows) In the first currency of the currency pair The second currency of the currency pairs listed
15 the functional currency of the related subsidiary.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Total Total Open Total Total Open
Million US dellar exposure hedges position exposure hedges position
Euro/Canadian dollar (39} 39 - (32) 32 -
Euro/Mexican peso (187) 182 {5) {2759) 246 (29)
EuroiPound stering (239) 213 (26) (82) 110 28
Euro/Russian ruble - - - (58) 68 10
Euro/South Afncan rand (90) 52 (38) (84) 84 -
Euro/South Korean won (51) 59 8 (53) 44 (9
Euro/Ukraimian hryvnia - - - (58) - (58)
Euro/US dollar (415} 404 (11) (271) 425 154
Mexican peso/Chinese yuan (216) 199 {17) - - -
Mexican pesc/Euro (300} 301 1 - - -
Pound sterling/Euro (34) 34 - (87) 128 41
Pound sterling/US dollar - - - (40) 4c -
US dollarfArgentinian peso (573) 484 {89) (678) 678 -
US doliar/Austrahan dollar (209) 209 - (469) 192 (277)
US dollar/Bolivian boiviano (76) 76 - (20) 20 -
US dollar/Brazihan real {1 303) 1223 {80) (1 184) 1184 -
US dollar/Canadian dollar (362) 286 (76) (306) 306 -
US dallar/Chilean peso (156) 185 1 (324) 324 B
US dollar/Chinese yuan (201) 249 48 (303) 134 (169)
US dollar/Colombian peso (287) 219 {68) (319) 195 (124)
US dollar/Euro (80) 78 2) {157) 145 (12)
US dollar/Mexican peso (1 151) 1082 {69) (1143} 873 {27G)
US dollar/Nigerian naira - - - (172) - {172)
US dollar/Paraguayan guarani {(177) 168 {11) (108) 108 -
US dollar/Peruvtan nuevao sot (157) 149 8) (255) 154 {101)
US dollar/Russan ruble - - - (45) 0 15
US dollar/South Afncan rand (80) 83 3 (72) 66 (6)
US dollar/South Korean won (114) 128 14 (20) 60 40
US dollar/Ukrasimian hryvria - - - (18) - (18)
US dollar/Uruguayan peso (40) 41 1 (57) 57 -
Others (321) 264 {57) (124) 104 (20}

Further analysis on the impact of open currency exposures 1s performed in the currency sensitivity analysis below

Hedges of firm commitments and highly probable forecasted transactions denominated in foreign currency are designated as cash flow
hedges.

Foreign exchange risk on foreign currency denominated debt

It 15 AB InBev's policy for subsidianes to issue debt in its functional currency to the extent possible. Where this 1s not the case, hedging 1s
put in place unless the cast to hedge outweighs the benefits On a global basis, the interest rate and debt profile as well as the preferred
currency mix are determined based on a holistic isk management approach

A descnption of the foreign currency nsk hedging of debt instruments i1ssued in a currency other than the functional currency of the
subsidiary 15 further detailled in the Inferest Rate Risk section below
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Currency sensitivity analysis

Currency transactional risk

Mast of AB InBev's non-derivative Enancial instruments are either denominated w the functional currency of the subsidiary or are converted
nto the functional currency through the use of denvatives Where ilhiquidity in the Iocal market prevents hedging at a reasonable cost, the
company can have open positions The transactionat foreign cumency nsk mainty anses from open positiens in Australian dollar, Chinese
yuan, Colombian pesa, Mexican peso, Peruvian nuevo sol, pound sterling, South Afncan rand and South Korean won against the US
dollar and the euro AB InBev estimated the reasonably possible change of exchange rate, on the basis of the average volatility on the
open currency pars, as follows:

2018

Closing rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2018 closing rate’ of rates in %

Euro/Mexican peso 2254 19.21 -25.86 14.75%
Euro/Pound sterfing 0.89 0.64 -0.95 6.03%
Euro/South Korean won 1277.14 1181.88 - 1372.3 7.45%
Euro/US dollar 1.15 1.06-1.23 7.32%
Pound sterting/US doliar 1.28 1.17-1.39 8.45%
US dollar/Australian dollar 142 1.30 - 1.54 8.50%
US dollar/Chinese yuan 8.88 6.57-7.18 4.45%
US dollar/Colombian peso 3246.70 2868.9 - 3624.5 11.64%
US dollar/Euro 0.87 0.81-0.84 7.32%
US dollarMexican peso 10.68 17.42-2224 13.00%
US dollar/Nigenan naira 362.54 354.9 - 370.18 2.11%
US doliar/Peruvian nuevo sol 3.37 3.24-350 3.90%
US dollar/South Afrcan rand 14.37 1196 -16.79 16.82%
US doliar/South Korean won 1115.40 10291 - 1201.74 7.74%
US dollar/Tanzamian shilhng 2298.32 2211.95- 2384 69 3.76%
US dollar/Zambian kwacha 11.88 10.28 - 13.47 13.41%

Closing rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2017 closing rate? of rates in %

Euro/Mexican peso 2367 20.81 - 26.53 1207%
Euro/Pound sterliing 089 082-096 794%
Eure/Russian ruble 69.12 6086-77.38 11 95%
Euro/South Korean won 1280 41 1181 37 — 1 379.44 773%
EurofUkrainman hryvria 3366 30.39-3593 9.72%
Euro/US dollar 120 1.11-128 712%
Pound sterling/US doilar 1.35 116-1.54 13 99%
US dollar/Australan dollar 1.28 118-1.38 7.50%
US dollar/Chinese yuan 6 51 615-6.86 545%
US dollar/Colombian peso 2988 60 273294 - 3 244.26 B8.55%
US dollar/Euro 083 0.77-089 7.12%
US dollar/Mexican peso 1974 17.45 - 22.02 11 59%
US dollar/Nigenan naira 360 03 284,18 - 435 87 2107%
US dollar/Peruvian nuevo sol 3.24 311-3.38 419%
US dollar/Rugsian ruble 57 63 5143-6383 10 76%
US dollar/South Afncan rand 12 35 10.44 - 14 25 15.39%
US dollar/South Korean won 1 067 63 921.4-121386 13.70%
US dollar/Tanzarvan shiling 223544 217676 — 2284 12 2.63%
US doltariJkraimian hryvnia 28.07 26.86-29.27 4 30%
US dollariZambran kwacha 998 8.91-1105 10.72%

Had the Austrahan dollar, Chinese yuan, Colombian peso, Mexican pesa, Peruvian nuevo sal, pound stering, South African rand and
South Koraan won weakened/strengthened during 2018 by the above eshmated changes aganst the euro or the US dollar, with all other
vanables held constant, the 2018 impact on consolidated profit before taxes would have been approximately 76m US doliar (142m US
dollar in 2017) highar/lower.

1 Sensitivity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly velathty using dally observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
?Sensitvity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly volatiity using daity observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2017
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Additionally, the AB InBev sensitivity analysis’ to the foreign exchange rates on its total derivatives positions as of 31 December 2018,
shows a positive/negative pre-tax impact on equity reserves of 587m US dollar (639m US doilar in 2017).

Foreign exchange risk on net investments in foreign operations
AB InBev mitigates exposures of its investments in foreign operations using both dervative and non-denvative financial instruments as
hedging mnstruments.

As of 31 December 2018, designated denvative and non-denvative financial instruments in net investment hedges amount to 8 773m US
dollar equivalent (7 424m US dollar in 2017) in Holding compan:es and agproxmately 632m US dollar equivalent {1 669m US dollar in
2017) at Ambev level These mstruments hedge foreign operations with Brazilan real, Canadian dollar, Dominican peso, euro, Mexican
peso, pound sterling, South Korean won and US dollar functional currencies.

Net foreign exchange results
Foreign exchange results recognized on unhedged and hedged exposures are as follows:

Miflion US dollar 2018 2017
Cash flow hedges - (13)
Economic hedges (210 (49)
Other results - not hedged 216 (242)

8 (304)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The company apples a dynamic interest rate hedging approach whereby the target mix between fixed and floating rate debt is reviewed
pencdically The purpose of AB InBev's policy 1s to achieve an optimal balance between cost of funding and volatiity of financial results,
while taking into account market condittons as well as AB InBev's overall business strategy

Fair value hedges
US dollar fixed rate bond hedges (interest rate risk on borrowings 1n US dollar)

The company manages and reduces the impact of changes (n the US dollar interest rates on the fair value of certain fixed rate bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of 1 0 billion US dollar through fixed/floating interest rate swaps. These denvative instruments have been
designated in a farr value hedge accounting relationship

Cash flow hedges
Pound sterling bond hedges (foreign currency risk + interest rate risk on borrowings in pound sterling)

In September 2013, the company I1ssued a pound stering bond for 500m pound sterling at a rate of 4.00% per year and matunng in
September 2025. The impact of changes n the pound sterling exchange rate and interest rate on this bond 1s managed and reduced
through pound sterling fixed/euro fixed crass currency interest rate swaps These derivative instruments have been designated in a cash
flow hedge accounting

Economic Hedges
Marketable debt security hedges (interest rate risk on Brazilian reat)

During 2018 and 2017, Ambev invested in highly iquid Brazilian real denominated government debt securities. The company also entered
into interest rate future contracts in order 1o offset the Brazilian real interest rate exposure of these government bonds, Both instruments
are measured at far value with changes recorded into profit or loss and no hedge accounting 1s required

' Sensitnty analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly volabity using dally observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table below reflects the effective interest rates of interest-beanng financial habies at balance sheet date as well as the currency in
which the debt is denominated

31 December 2018 Before hedging

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective
Million US dollar interest rate Amount interest rate

Floating rate

Australian dollar 2.85% 214 2.95% 214
Braziian real 9.13% 61 6.86% 133
Canadian dollar 3.66% 190 3.38% 206
Euro 0.24% 3138 0.24% 3138
US dollar 1.94% 1399 221% 2638
Other 7.19% 108 7.19% 709
E g k] 7038

Fixed rate
Australan dollar 3.28% 1871 3.28% 1871
Braziian real B8.74% 138 5.79% 66
Canadian dollar 3.23% 1904 3.23% 1904
Euro 1.76% 27 465 1.61% 35282
Pound sterling 3.83% 4173 3.80% 35N
South Korean won - - 245% 1000
US doliar 4.28% 68 570 4.66% 59120
Other 8.55% 82 8.55% 82
104 203 102 878

31 December 2017 Before hedging After hedging

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective
Million US doliar interest rate Amount interest rate Amount

Floating rate

Austrahan dollar 2.68% 234 268% 234
Brazilian real 9.22% 122 761% 199
Canadian dollar 2.09% 207 2.45% 224
Euro 035% 3398 0.35% 3415
South Afnca rand 8 00% 666 8.00% 666
US dollar 148% 1285 143% 2521
Other 16.68% 450 16 68% 450
6362 7709

Fixed rate
Australan dollar 370% 1838 370% 1838
Brazilian real §43% 208 5.86% 112
Canadian dollar 3.08% 2543 319% 2176
Euro 1.88% 26 386 1.70% 34 251
Peruvian nuevo sol 6 87% 33 6.87% 33
Pound sterling 383% 4 403 3 80% 3734
South Kerean won - - 2 50% 1000
US dollar 4.18% 74 478 4.51% 65 394
Other 3.36% 252 2.36% 252
110 137 108 790

At 31 December 2018, the total carrying amount of the floating and fixed rate interest-beanng financial labilities before hedging as listed
above includes bank overdrafts of 114m US dollar.
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As chsclosed in the above table, 7 038m US dollar or 6 40% of the company’s (nterest-bearing financial abihtes bears interest at a vanable
rate The company estimated that the reasonably pessible change of the market interest rates applicable to its fioating rate debt after
hedging 15 as follows:

interest rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2018’ interest rate? of rates in %

Brazilan real 6.44% 6.12% - 6.76% 5.00%
Canadian dollar 2.29% 2.15% - 2.42% 5.91%
Euro - - 2.45%
USs dollar 2.78% 261% - 2.94% 5.97%

tnterest rate Passible Volatility

31 December 2017’ interest rate? of rates in %

Brazihan real 6.90% 529% - 8.50% 2327T%
Canadian dollar 1.54% 1.38%-171% 10.72%
Euro - - 3.50%
South Afncan rand 716% 6.88% - 7.43% 3.84%
US dollar 1.69% 1.59% - 1 80% 6.00%

When AB InBev apphes the reasonably possibie iIncrease/decrease in the market interest rates mentioned above on its floating rate debt
at 31 December 2018, with all other vanables held constant, 2018 interest expense would have been 8m US dollar higherflower (2017
12m US doltar) Thes effect would be more than offset by (60m} US dollar higherflower interest income on AB InBev's interest-beanng
financiat assets (2017 (81)m US dollar).

Interest expense
Imterest expense recognized on unhedged and hedged financiat habilities are as follows.

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Financial llabrities measured at amortized cost — not hedged {4 053) (4 375)
Farr value hedges (76) an
Cash flow hedges 22 1
Net investment hedges - hedging Instruments (interest companent) 35 77
Ecenomic hedges 100 (6)

(3972) {4 314)

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The commaodity markets have expenenced and are expected to continue to experience prce fluctuations AB InBev therefore uses both
fixed price purchasing contracts and commodity derivatives to mimmize exposure to commodity pnce votatiity. The company has
sigmficant exposures to the following commodities: aluminum, barley, coal, corn grits, corn syrup, corrugated board, diesel, fuel ail, glass,
hops, labels, malt, natural gas, orange juice, plastics, rice, steet and wheat. As of 31 December 2018, the company has the following
cammodity denvatives outstanding (in notienal amounts)

Miltion US dollar 2018 2017
Aluminum swaps 1670 1412
Exchange traded sugar futures 62 87
Natural gas and energy denvatives 313 211
Corn swaps 196 223
Exchange traded wheat futures 424 509
Rice swaps 194 221
Plastic dervatives 84 91

2943 2754

' Applicable 3-month InterBank Offered Rates as of 31 December 2018 and as of 31 December 2017

2 Sensitivity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018 and at December
2017 For the Brazhan real fioating rale debt, the estimated market interest rate 1s composed of the InterBanrk Deposit Certficate ('CDI’) and the Long-Term
Interest Rate (TJLP') Wih regard to other market interest rates, the company's analysis 1s based on the 3-month InterBank Qffered Rates apphcable for the
currencies concerned {e g EURIBOR 3M, LIBOR 3M)
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Commaodity price sensitivity analysis
The impact of changes n the commodity pncas would have an imrmatenal impact on AB InBev's profit in 2018 profits as most of the
company’s commodity dervatives are designated in a hedge accounting.

The table below shows the estimated impact that changes in the prce of the commodities, for which AB InBev hetd matenal derivative
exposures at 31 December 2018, would have on the equity reserves.

2018
Volatility of Pre-tax impact on equity
Million US dollar pricesin %' Prices increase  Prices decrease
Aluminum 22.16% 370 (370)
Sugar 29.60% 18 (18)
Wheat 29.31% 124 (124)
Energy 23.83% 74 74)
Rice 22.08% 43 (43)
Comn 23.85% 47 47)
Plastic 20.54% 17 (N

Pr mpact on equity
Million US dollar prices in %?  Prices increase  Prices decrease
Alurminum 14 83% 212 (212)
Sugar 29 38% 26 (26)
Wheat 30.99% 158 (158)
Energy 2037% 43 (43)
Rice 20 20% 45 (45)
Corn 24 81% 45 (45)
Plastic 17 50% 15 {15}

EQUITY PRICE RISK

AB InBev enters into denvatives to hedge the price nisk on ts shares when this could negatively mpact future cash fiows related to the
share-based payments programs. AB InBev also hedges its exposure ansing from shares issued in connection with the Modeto and SAB
combination (see alse Note 11 Finance cost and income and Note 23 Changes in equily and earnings per share). These dervatives do
not qualfy for hedge accounting and the changes in fair value are recorded in the profit or loss.

As of 3t December 2018, an exposure for an equivalent of 92 4m of AB InBev shares was hedged, resulting In a total loss of 3.5 bilhon
US dollar recognized in the profit or loss account for the penod, of which 1.8 bilion US dollar related to the company’s share-based
payment programs, 873m US dollar and 843m US dollar related to the Modelo and SAB transactions, respectively

Between 2012 and 2018, AB InBev reset certain equity dervatives to market price with counterparties. This resulted in a net cash inflow
of 2.9 billon US dollar between 2012 and 2018 and, accordingly, a decrease of counterparty nsk

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitvity analysis on the share-based payments hedging program, calculated based on a 22.03% (2017: 15.68%) reasonably
possible volatility'® of the AB InBev share pnce, with all the other variables held constant, would show 1 345m US dollar positive/negative
impact on the 2418 profit before tax (2017: 1 422m US dofiar)

CREDIT RISK

Credit nsk encompasses all forms of counterparty exposure, 1.e. where counterparties may default on their obligations to AB InBev in
relation lo lending, hedging, settlement and other financial activities. The company has a credit polcy in place and the exposure to
counterparty credit nsk 1s meonitored

AB InBev miigates ts exposure through a vanety of mechanisms. |t has established minimum counterparty credit ratings and enters into
transactions only with financial institutions of investment grade rating The company monitors counterparty credit exposures closely and
reviews any external downgrade in creddt rabng immediately. To mimgate pre-seitlemant nsk, counterparty mmimum credit standards
become more stringent with increases n the duration of the denvatives To minmize the concentration of counterparty credit risk, the
company enters into derivative transactions with different financial institutions.

The company also has master netting agreements with all of the financial institutions that are counterparties to over the counter (OTC)
dervatives Thase agreements allow for the net settlement of assets and habihes ansing from different transacthons with the same
counterparty. Based on these factors, AB InBev considers the impact of the nsk of counterparty default as at 31 December 2018 to be
imited.

' Sensitivity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly valablity using daily observable market data cunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
2 Sensiivity analysis I1s assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily ubservable market data duning 250 days at 31 December 2017
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Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure of the company. The carrying amount 1s presented net
of the impairment losses recognized The maximum exposure to credd nisk at the reporting date was:

Net carrying Net carrying

Million US doilar Gross Impairment amount Gross impairment amount
Investment in unquoted companies 21 {7) a4 a3 {7 76
Investment in debt securiies 111 - 111 1328 - 1328
Trade receivables 4 400 (160) 4 240 4917 {194) 4723
Cash deposits for guaraniees 197 - 197 209 - 209
Loans to customers 188 - 188 179 - 179
Other recevables 2358 {106) 2253 2326 (117) 2209
Dervatives 307 - 307 483 - 483
Cash and cash equivalents 7074 - 7074 10 472 - 10472
14727 (273) 14 454 19 997 {318) 19 679

There was no significant concentration of credit nsks with any single counterparty per 31 December 2018 and no singie customer
represented more than 10% of the total revenue of the group 1in 2018,

Impairment losses
The allowance for impairment recognized dunng the penod per classes of financat assets was as follows

Trade Loans to Other
Million US do#ar receivables customers FVOCI receivables
Balance at 1 January (194) - {7 (117) {318)
Imparrment losses {40} - - 3) (43}
Derecognition 29 - - 6 35
Currency translation and other 44 - - ) 53
Balance at 31 December (160) - @ {106) 273)

Trade Loans to Other
Million US doHar receivables customers receivables
Batance at 1 January (202) - €a] {109) (318}
Impairment losses (55) - - (4) (59)
Derecognrtion 53 - - 1 54
Currency translation and other 10 - - (5) &
Balance at 31 December {194) - {7) 117 (318)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Histoncally, AB InBev's primary sources of cash flow have been cash flows from operating activities, the issuance of debt, bank borrowings
and equity securit:es AB InBev's matenal cash requirements have included the following

* Debt servicing;

Capnal expenditures;

Investments in companies;

Increases in ownership of AB InBev's subsidianes or companies in which it holds equity investments,

® Share buyback programs. and

» Payments of dividends and interest on shareholders’ equity
The company believes that cash flows from operating activities, avalable cash and cash equivalents as well as short term investments,
along with related denvatives and access to borrowing facilites, will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures, financial instrument habiliies

and dividend payments going forward [t is the intention of the company to continue to reduce its financiai Indebtedness through a
compination of strong operating cash flow generation and continued refinancing
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The following are the nominal contractual matunities of non-denvative financial labilities ncluding interest payments and denvative
financial assets and labilites

31 December 2018

Less
than Mare than
Carrying Contractual

Million US dollar amount’ cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Secured bank loans {479) {496) (383) (39) {15) 27 {3t)
Commercial papers (1142) (1 142) (1142) - - - -
Unsecured bank loans {108) (135) (33) (6) (96) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues {107 796) {165979) {6410) {9 146) (11 636) {(23672) {115 115)
Unsecured other loans 1) (110) (19) {22) (12) (12) (44)
Finance lease hiabilities (204) (318) (62) (37) (33) (33) (151)
Bank overdraft (114} (114) (114) - - - .
Trade and other payables (24 345) (24722) (22567) (260) (1060) (333) (513)

(134 258) (193 014) (30 720) (9 510) (12 852) (24 077) (115 855)

Dervative financial assets/(Habilities)

Interest rate denvatives (84) (86) (39) {19} (8) 11 (31)
Foreign exchange dervatives (391) (401) (419) 18 - - -
Cross currency Interest rate swaps {456) (457) (13) 113 129 {595) {90)
Commodity denvatives (225) (225) (222) {3) - - -
Equity dernvatives (4 877) (4877) (487T7) - - - -

{6033) 6046) (5570) 108 121 (584) (121)
Of which related to cash flow hedges (293) (303) (233) 17 2 2 (90)

31 Decembe(_gm?

“Less

Carrying  Contractual than More than
Million US dellar amount cash flows 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-5years 5 years
Secured bank loans (502} (590) (318) {137) (23) {42) {70)
Commaercial papers (1 870) (1871) (1871) - - - -
Unsecured bank loans (892) (927} (761) (+29) (37) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues {112 837) (167 056) (8 951) {13 851) (12 908) (24 655) (106 591)
Unsecured other loans (68) (114) (17 (23) (13) (7 (54)
Finance lease habitities (213) (301) (42) (42) (32) (40) (145)
Bank overdraft (117 {117 (117) - - - -
Trade and other payables (26 167) (26 628) (24 756) {476) (207) (289) (900}

(142 666) (197 604) (36 833) (14 758) (13 220) (25033) (107 760)

Derivative financial
Imerest rate denvatives (96) (101) {3 (21) (14) 16 (73)
Foreign exchange denvatives (61) (52) (59) 7 - - -
Cross currency Interest rate swaps (897) (1 043) 65 (128) 114 (804) (190)
Commodity derivatives 179 143 138 4 - - -
Equity denvatives (1 036) {1 134) {1 134) - - - -
(1811} (2 187} (998) (138) 100 (688} (263)
Of which related to cash flow (20) (29) 64 5 2 4 (104)

' “Carrying amount” refers to net book value as recognized In the balance sheet at each reporting date
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AB InBev continuously optimizes its capital structure to maxirmize shareholder value while keeping the financial flexibility to execute the
strategic projects. AB InBev's capital structure palicy and frarnewark aims to optimize shareholder value through cash flow distribution to
the company from its subsidianes, while maintaining an nvestment-grade rating and minimizing investments with returns below AB InBev's
weighted average cost of capital Besides the statutory mimmum equity funding requirements that apply to the company’s subsidiaries (in
the dfferent countnes, AB InBev 1s not subject to any extemnally imposed capital requirements The management uses the same
debt/equity classifications as applied in the company's IFRS reporting to analyze the capital structure

FAIR VALUE
The following table summarzes for each type of dernvative the farr values recognized as assets or labilities in the balance sheet:
Liabilities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Million US doliar 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 191 151 {586) (211) {395) (60)
Foraign currency futures 7 1 (3) 2) 4 M

Interest rate

Interest rate swaps g 14 (27) (37) (18) (23)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 32 9 (489) (906) (457) (897)
Other interest rate denvatives 20 - (86) {73} (66) (73)
Commodities
Aluminum swaps 23 178 (172) (5) (148) 173
Sugar futures - 24 (8) {20} (8) 4
Wheat fulures 13 34 (m (22) 2 12
Energy 4 - (54) - (50) -
Other commodity derivatives 8 10 (28) {20) (20) (10)
Equity
Equity dervatives - 21 {4 877} {1057) {4 877) {1 036)
307 442 (6 340) (2 353) {6 033) {1911}
Of which:
Non-current 10 25 (805) (937) (795) (912)
Current 297 417 {5 535) {14186) (5238) {889)

The following table summanzes the carrying amount and the farr value of the fixed rate interest-beanng financial habilities as recognized
at the balance sheet Floating rate interest-beanng financial habilities, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, including
dernvatives financial instruments, have been excluded from the analysis as their carrying amount 1s a reasonable approximation of their
far value:

2018 2017

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Carrying 2018 Carrying 2017
Million US dollar amount’ Fair vafue amount’ Fair value
Fixed rate

Australian dollar (18m1) {1927) (1 838) {1 896)
Brazilian reat (138) (138) (206) (206}
Canadian dollar (1904) {(1817) (2 543) {2574)
Euro (27 465) (26 799) (26 386) (26 942)
Peruvian nuevo sol (24) (24) {33} (33)
Pound sterling 4173) (4 320) (4 403) {4 902)
US doliar (68 570) (65 873) (74 476) {83 482)
Other (58) (58) (252) (252)

(104 203) {100 956) (110 137) {120 287)

1 “Carrying amount” refers o net book value as recognized In the balance sheet at each reparting date
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The table sets out the farr value hierarchy based on the degree to which significant market inputs are observable:

Unobservable market
inputs - level 3

Observable market
inputs - level 2

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2018
Million US dollar

Quoted (unadjusted)
prices - level 1

Financial Assots

Held for tracing (non-derivatives) 3 g -
Derivatives at farr value through profit and loss - 67 -
Derivatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 7 225 -
Derivatives n a farr value hedge relationship - a3 -
Denvatives in a net investment hedge: relationship - 14 -
10 348 -
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisibons at fair value - - 1409
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss - 5899 -
Denvatives n a cast flow hedge relationship 18 507 .
Derivatives (n a far value hedge relatienship - 125 -
Denvatives in a net iInvestment hedge relationship - k3] -
18 6 362 1 409

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2017 Quoted {unadjusted) Observable market Unobservable market

Million US dollar prices - level 1 inputs - level 2 inputs -levei 3

Financial Assets

Heid for trading (non-denvatives) 1304 5 -
Denvatives at farr value through profit and loss - 89 -
Dervatives in a cash flow hedge relationship g 340 .
Dervatives in a fairr value hedge relationship - 36 -
Denvatives in a net investment hedge relationship - g9 -
1313 479 -

Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisitions at far value - - 2210
Denivatives at fair value through profit and loss 1 1210 R
Denrivatives 1n a cash flow hedge relabonship 28 341 -
Denvatives in a far value hedge relationsmp - 129 -
Denvatives 1n a nét investment hedge retationship - 685 .
29 2365 2210

Non-derivative financial liabilities

As part of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and ELJ, foflowing the acquisition of Cerveceria Nacional Domimicana S A.
(*CND"), a forward-purchase contract (1.e. combination of a wntten put option and purchased call option) i1s in place which may result in
Ambev acquinng additional shares in CND. In January 2018, ELJ partially exercised its option to selt approximately 30% of the shares of
CND for an amount of 0 9 billan US doilar, resuting in Ambev's participation n CND increasing from 55% to 85% As of 31 December
2018, the put option for the remaining shares held by ELJ was valued 632 million US dollar (2017 1.7 billion US dollar before the exercise
of the put option by ELJ in January 2018) and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value in “level 3" category
above. The vanance 1S mainly explamed by the partial exercise by ELJ of the put option, accretion expenses and curmrency translation
The farr value of such deferred consideration 1s calculated based on using present value techniques, namely by discounting futures cash
flows at the appropriate rate.
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The company's hedging reserves disclosed in note 23 relate 1o the following nstruments:

Foreign

Million US dollar currency

As per 1 January 2018 559
Change in fair value of hedging instrument
recognized in OCl 262
Reclassified to profit or loss / cost of invantory {341)
Deferred tax -
As per 31 December 2018 480
Foreign
Million US dollar currency
As per 1 January 2017 sS40
Change in far ya_lue of hedging instrument i
Reclassified to profit or loss / cost of inventory 80
Deferred tax -
As per 31 December 2017 559

QOFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following financial assets and habilties are subject to offsething, enforceable master netling agreements and similar agreements
31 December 2018

Net amount
recognized in

Gross

interest rate Commodities Qthers  Total hedging
reserves

- (20) 47 536

- 97 - 358

- (137 2% (452)

- - 2 2

- (60) 76 494

Interest rate Commodities Others  Total hedging
reserves

- 204 - 744

- (202) 47 75

. (20) a7 586

the statement of

Million US dollar amount
Denvative assets 307
Denvative habilities (6 340)

Gross

Million US dollar amount

financial GCther offsetting
position' agreements®  Total net amount
307 {293) 13
(6 340) 293 (6 046)

31 December 2017

Net amount
recognized in

the statement of

Denvatve assets 483

Derivative iabilibes {2 394)

financial Other offsetting
positioni agreements’ Total net amount
483 (466) 17
{2 394) 466 (1928)

' Net amount recagnized in the statement of financial position after tlaking Inte account offselting agreements that meet the ofiseting cniena as per IFRS

rules

2 Other offsetting agreements include collateral and other guarantee instruments, as well as offsetting agreements that do not meet the offsetting cntena as

per IFRS rules
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30. Operating leases

Non-cancelable operating leases are payable and receivable as follows:

Net lease
Million US dollar Lessee Sublease Lessor obligations
Within one year {475) 149 3 (323}
Between one and five years (123N 451 9 777)
After five years {771 211 6 (554}
Total (2483) 811 18 {1 654)

Net lease
Million US dollar Sublease obligations
Within one year (210) 127 2 (181}
Between one and five years (1 009) 425 7 (577)
After five years (781) 211 4 (566)
Total (2 100) 763 13 (1324)

Foilowing the sale of Dutch and Belgian pub real estate to Cofimmmo in October 2007, AB InBev entered into lease agreements of 27
years These operating leases mature in November 2034 and are subleased for an average outstanding period of 6 to B years These
leases can be subject to renewal after thewr expiration date. The impact of such renewal 15 not reported n the table above.

Furthermore, the company leases a number of warehouses, trucks, factory faciihes and other commercial buildings under operating
leases The leases typically run for a pencd of five to ten years Lease payments are increased annuzlly to reflect market rentals, If
applicable. Nene of the leases include contingent rentals

The operating leases histed above represent an undiscounted obligahon of 2 483m US dellar Also, the company has sublet some of the
leased pubs and properties, representing an undiscounted nght of 811m US dollar.

In 2018, 512m US doliar was recognized as an expense In the income statement in respect of operating leases where the company is the
lessee (2017 471m US dollar), while 133m US dollar was recognized as income in the income statement in respect of subleases (2017
128m US dollar)

The company also leases out part of its own property under operating leases. In 2018, 3m US dollar was recognized as income in the
ncome staterment in respect of operating leases as lessor (2017 4m US doliar).
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31. Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, loans to customers and other

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Collateral given for own labtities 404 426
Collateral and financial guarantees received for own receivables and loans to customers 335 326
Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment 416 550
Contractual commitments to acquire loans to custormers 171 16
Other commitments 1973 1834

The collateral given for own liabilities of 404m US dollar at 31 December 2018 contains 197m US dollar cash guarantees. Such cash
deposits are a customary feature associated with litigations in Brazil in accordance with Brazihan laws and regulations a company may
or must (depending on the circumstances) place a deposit with a bank designated by the court or provide other secunty such as collateral
on property, plant and equipment With regard to judicial cases, AB InBev has made the appropnate provisions in accordance with IAS
37 Prowisions, Contingent Liabilities ana Contingent Assets — see also Note 27 Prowisions In the company's balance sheet the cash
guarantees are presented as part of other recevables — see Note 20 Trade and other receivables. The remaining part of collateral given
for own labilsties {204m US dollar) contains callateral on AB InBev's property in faver of the excise tax authonties, the amount of which 1s
deterrmined by the level of the monthly excise taxes due, inventory levels and transportation nsk, and collateral on s propery, plant and
equipment with regard to outstanding loans To the extent that AB InBev wouid not respect its obligations under the related outstanding
contracts or would lose the pending judicial cases, the collateralized assets would be used to settle AB InBev's abligations

To keep AB InBev's credit nsk with regard to recewables and loans to customers as low as possible collateral and other credit
enharcements were obtaired for a total amount of 335m US dollar at 31 December 2018 Coliateral 1s held on both real estate and debt
secunties while financial guarantees are obtained from banks and ather third parties

AB InBev has entered into commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment for an amount of 418m US dollar at 31 December
2018.

In a imited number of countnes AB InBev has committed itself to acquire loans to customers from banks at their national amount if the
customers do not respect thetr reimbursement commitments towards the banks The total outstanding amount of such loans 15 171m US
dollar at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2018, the following M&A related commitments existed

® As pant of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and E Ledn Jimenes S.A.("ELJ™). followtng the acquisition of Cerveceria
Nacional Dorminicana S A (“CND"), a put and call option 15 n place which may result iIn Ambev acquinng addiional shares in CND
in January 2018 Ambev increased its parhicipation in CND from 55% to 85% As of 31 December 2018, the put option for the remaining
shares held by ELJ was valued 632 milion US dollar (2017 1.7 bilhon US dellar before the exercise of the put option by ELJ in January
2018) The corresponding hability 1s presented as a current liabilty and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisitions at far
value in “level 3" category above See also note 29 Risks ansing from financial instruments

* On 11 October 2016, AB InBev was notified by The Coca-Cola Company of ifs intenton to transihon AB InBev's stake in Coca-Cola
Beverages Afnca ("CCBA") CCBA includes the Coca-Cola botting cperations in South Afnca, Namibia, Kenya, Uganda, Tanzamia,
Ethiopia, Mozambigue, Ghana, Mayotte and Comoros This transaction was completed on 4 October 2017. Furthermore, AB InBev
completed in 2018 the sale of its carbonated soft drink businesses in Zambia and Botswana to The Coca-Cota Company The company
also entered into agreements o self to The Coca-Cola Company ail of its carbonated soft dnnk business in eSwatini {(Swaziland) and
certain non-alcoholic beverage brands in E Salvador and Honduras. The closing of these transactions 1s subject to customary closing
conditions, including regulatory approvals In El Salvador and Honduras, the company has executed long-term botting agreements,
which will become effective upon the closing of the El Saivador and Honduras brand divestitures. In addition, the companies continue
to work towards finalizing the terms and conditions for The Coca-Cola Company to acquire AB InBev's interest in the bofthng
operations in Zimbabwe and Lasotho These transactions are subject to the relevant regulatory and shareholder approvals in the
different junsdichiens,

Other commitments amount to 1 973m LS doilar at 31 December 2018 and mainly cover guarantees given to pension funds, rental and
other guarantees

In order to fulfit AB InBev's commitments under various outstanding stock option plans, AB InBev entered into stock lending arrangements
for up to 20 million of its own ordinary shares AB InBev shall pay any dividend equivalent, after tax in respect of the loaned secunties
This payment will be reported through equity as dividend As of 31 December 2018, 20 million loaned secunties were used to fuifil stock
aption plan commitments
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32. Contingencies’

The company has contingencies for which, in the opinion of management and its legal counsel, the nisk of loss 1s possible but not probable
and therefore no provisions have been recorded. Due to their nature, such legal proceedings and tax matters involve nherent uncertainties
including, but not imited to, court rulings, negotiatons between affected parties and governmental actions, and as a consequence AB
InBev management cannot at this stage estimate the likety timing of resolution of these matters The most significant contingencies are
discussed below

AMBEV TAX MATTERS

As of 31 December 2018, AB InBev's material tax proceedings related to Ambev and s subsidianes Estimates of amounts of possible
loss are as follows.

Million US dollar 31 December 2048 31 December 2017
Income tax and social contnbution 9773 9600
Value-added and excige taxes 6166 5 987
Other taxes 1434 1390

17313 16 977

The most significant tax proceedings of Ambev are discussed below.

INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

Dunng 2005, certan subsidianes of Ambev received assessments from the Brazilan Federal Tax Authorihes relating to profits of its foreign
subsidianes. in December 2008, the Administrative Court rendered a partally favorable decision {0 Ambev, and in connection with the
remairming part, Ambev filed an appeal to the Administrative Upper House, which was denied in full in March 2017 In September 2017,
Ambev filed a judicial proceeding for this tax assessment and requested a motion of injunchion, which was granted to Ambev In 2013,
2016, 2017 and 2018 Ambev recewed other lax assessments related to profits of its foreign subsidianes In Juiy and September 2018,
with respect to two tax assessments, the Administrative Upper House rendered unfavorable decisions to Ambev [In one such case, Ambev
filled a judicial proceeding and requested a motion of injunction, which was granted to Ambev In the other case, Ambev I1s analyzing
possible appeals. In October 2018, the Lower Admiristrative Court rendered a partially favorable decision to Ambev in anaother of the
ongoing lax assessments Ambev is waiting to be formally notfied of such dacision to analyze possible appeals. As of 31 December 2018,
Ambev management estmates the exposure of approximately 7.7 bilien Brazihan real (2 0 billion US dollar) as a pessible nsk, and
approximately 46m Brazilian real {12m US dollar) as a probable loss.

In December 2011, Ambev recevad a tax assessment related to the goodwill amortization resulling from the InBev Holding Brasil §.A.
merger with Ambev The final decision rendered by the Lower Administrative Court was partially favorable to Ambev Subsequently,
Ambev filed a judicial proceeding to discuss the unfavorable part and requested a motion of njunction, which was granted to Ambev. The
favorable portion to Ambev, will be reexarmined by the Administrative Upper House  In June 2016, Ambev received a new tax assessment
charging the remairung value of the goodwill amortization and filed a defense. In March 2017, Ambev was natified of a partally favorable
first level administrative decision and filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court. In May 2018, Ambev received a partially favorable
decision at the Lower Administrative Court and 1s currently waiting to be notified of the decision to analyze possible appeals. Ambev
management estimates possible (osses in relation to these assessments to be approximately 9 3 bilhon Brazilian reat (2 4 biion US dollar}
as of 31 December 2018 In the event Ambev I1s required to pay these amounts, AB InBev will resmburse the amount propertional to the
benefit recewed by AB InBev pursuant to the merger protocel, as well as the related costs

In Qctober 2013, Ambev received a tax assessment related to the goodwili amortization resulting from the merger of Beverage Associates
Holding Limited {("BAH") into Ambev The decision from the first level administrative Court was unfavorable to Ambev After considenng a
motion ta clanfy by Ambev, the unfavorable decision was confirmed and Ambev filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court. In
November 2018, Ambev received a partially favorable decision at the Lower Administrative Court and 1s curently waiting to be formally
notified of the decision to analyze possible appeals. In Apnl and August 2018, Ambev received new tax assessments charging the
remaining value of the goodwill amortizaton and filed defenses, which are currently pending analysis by the first administrative level
Ambev management estimates the amount of possible losses in relation to this assessment to be approximately 2.1 bilion Brazilian real
(0 5 bilhon US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connechion therewth.

In November 2017, Ambev recerved a tax assessment related to the goodwill amortization resultng from the merger of CND Holdings into
Ambev. Ambev filed a defense in December 2017 In November 2018, Ambev recewved an unfavorable decision from the first
admiristrative level and filled an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court, which 1s currently pending. Ambev management estimates the
amount of possible losses in relation to this assessment to be approximately 1.1 billion Brazihan real (0 3 bilion US dollar) as of 31
December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in1 canrection therewith

Ambev and certain of its subsidianes recewved a number of assessments from Brazihan federal tax authorties relating to the offset of tax
loss carry forward ansing i the context of business combinations In February 2016, the Admirustrative Upper House ruled unfavorably
to Ambev In two such cases. Ambev filed Judicial proceedings to discuss the matter. In September 2016, Ambev received a favorable first
{evel decision In one of the judicial claims. In March 2017, Ambev received an unfavorable first level decision in another case and filed an
appeal to the judicial Court Both cases are awaiting analysis by the judicial Court. Ambev management estimates the total exposures of
possible loss in relation to these assessments to be approximately 0 5 bilion Brazilian real (0 1 bdlion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018

It December 2015 and 2016, Ambev receved tax assessments related to the disallowance of alleged non-deductible expenses and the
deduction of certain losses mainly associated to financial investments and loans Ambev presented defenses, which are pending review
by the first administrative level. Ambev management eshmates the amount of possible loss in relation to those assessments to be
approximately 4 6 billion Brazihan real (1 2 billion US dolar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any proviston in connechon
with these assessments

' Amounts have been converted to US doltar at the closing rate of the respective period
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Since 2014, Ambev has been recetving tax assessments from the Braziian Federal Tax Authortes related to the chsallowance of
deductions associated with alleged unproven taxes pad abroad, for which the decrsion from the Administrative Upper House is still
pending In September 2017, Ambev decided to include part of those tax assessments in the Brazilian Federal Tax Regukarizahon Program
of the Provisional Measure No 783. In June 2018, Ambev was notified of a favorable first administrative level dewsion cancelling four of
these assessments {offsets of 2015 and 2016). However, In August and September 2018, the Brazihan Federal Revenue Service issued
new decisions reestablishing these assessments and issued new tax assessmenis related 1o these matters. As of 31 December 2018,
Ambev management estimates the exposure of approxmately 9.5 billon Braziian real (2.5 bilion US dollar) as a possible nsk, and
accordingly has not recorded a prevision for such amount

In Apri 2016, Arosuco (a subsidiary of Ambev) received a tax assessment regarding the use of the “presumed profit” methed for the
calculation of income tax and the sociai contnbution on net profit instead of the “real profit” method In September 2017, Arosuco tecerved
the unfavorabie first level administrative decision and filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court. Arosuco management estimates
the amount of possible losses In relation to this assessment to be approximately 0 6 billion Brazihan real (0.2 billion US dollar) as of 31
December 2018 Arosuco has not recorded any provision in connechon therewith

ICMS VALUE ADDED TAX, IPI EXCISE TAX AND TAXES ON NET SALES

In Brazil, goods manufactured within the Manaus Free Trade Zone intended for remittance elsewhere in Brazil are exempt from IP) excise
tax There I1s discussion on whether the acquisition of such benefited goods gives nse to the nght of 1P excise tax credits by the relevant
acquirers Ambev's subsidiaries have been registenng IPl excise tax presumed credits upon the acquisition of exempted goods
manufactured theren and are discussing the matter at the courts Since 2009, Ambev has been receiving a number of tax assessments
from the Braziian Federal Tax Authonties relating to the disallowance of such presumed IPt excise tax credits and other IPI excise tax
credits, which are under discussion before the Braziian Supreme Court, with a tnal expected to occur in Apnl 2018 Ambev management
estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 3 8 bilion Brazihan real (1 0 bilion US dollar) as of 31
December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith

Over the years, Ambev has also received tax assessments from the Brazilan Federal Tax Authorities charging federal taxes allegedly
unduly offset with the disallowed presumed IP) excise tax credits which are under discussion in the abovementioned proceedings Ambev
is challenging these charges before the courts Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be
approximately 1 1 odhon Brazihan real (0 3 blion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018. Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection
therewith.

In 2014 and 2015, Ambev recewved tax assessments from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authonties to charge the IPl excise tax, supposedly
due over remittances of manufactured goods to related factones The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial
levels of the courts Ambev management estmates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 1 6 bilhon Brazilian
real (O 4 bitlior US dollar) as of 31 Decernber 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith

Ambev 15 currently challenging tax assessmenis 1ssued by the States of Sao Paulo, Rio de Janero, Minas Gerais and other States
questioning the legalty of ICMS tax credits ansing from transactions with companies that have lax incentives The cases are being
challenged at both the administrative and udicial level of the courts. Ambev management estimates the possible losses related to these
assessments to be approximately 2 1 billion Brazihan real (0 5 kihon US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any
provision in connection therewith

In 2013, 2014 and 2015, Ambev was d by the States of Para, and Piaui to charge the ICMS supposedty due with respect to
unconditional discounts granted by Ambev The cases are being challenged at both the administrative and judicial level of the courts
Ambev management estinates the possible loss involved in these proceedings to be approximately 0.6 billion Brazilian real (0 2 billien
US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith

Cver the years, Ambev has recewved tax assessments to charge supposed ICMS differences considered due when the pnce of the
products sald by Ambev 1s above the fixed price table basis established by the relevant States, cases in which the State tax authonties
undersiand that the calculation basis should be based on a value-added percentage over the actual pnces and not the fixed table price
Ambev is currently challenging those charges before the courts. Among other similar cases, Ambev received three assessments 1ssued
by the State of Minas Gerais in the onginal amount of 1 4 bilion Brazilian real (0 4 bilkon US dollar) In the first quarter of 2018, the Upper
House of the Administrative Tax Court of the State of Minas Gerais ruled unfaveorably to Ambev on these three cases The State of Minas
Gerais filed tax foreclosures to charge the amounts discussed n these three cases and Ambeyv filed defenses with the judicial courts. In
2017, Ambev received assessments from the State of Rio de Janeiro in the anginal amount of 0 8 bilion Brazilian real (0 2 billien WS
dollar} Ambev presented appeals against such tax assessments and now awaits the decision by the Tax Administrative Court Ambev
management estmates the tota) possible loss related to this 1ssue to be approximately 7.7 billion Brazilian real (2 ¢ bilhon US dallar) as
of 31 December 2018. Ambev has recorded provisions «n the total amount of 8m Brazihan real {2m US dollar) in relation to certain
proceedings for which it considers the chances of loss ta be probable due to specific procedural 1ssues

In 2015, Ambev received a tax assessment issued by the State of Pernambuco to charge ICMS differences due to an alleged non-
compliance with the State tax incentive Agreement ("PRODEPE") as a result of the rectification of its monthly reports. The State tax
authonties understood that Ambev was not able to use the incentive due to this rectificatton In 2017, Ambev had a finat favorable decision
in the sense that such assessment was null due to formal mistakes of the tax auditor However, In September 2018, Ambev received a
new tax assessment to discuss the same matier There are other assessments related 1o this same tax incentive agreement. Ambev
management estimates the possible losses related to this 1ssue to be approximately 0 6 bilion Brazilan real (0 2 bilhon US dollar) as of
31 December 2018 Ambev has recorded a provision in the totai amount of 3m Brazihan real {1m US dollar) in relation to one proceeding
it considers the chances of loss to be partally probable

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Ambev receved some tax assessments issued by the Brazihan Federa! Tax Authonties relating to amounts allegedly due under Integration
Program f Social Secunty Financing Levy (PIS/COFINS) over bonus products granted to its customers The cases are being challenged
at both the administrative and judicial levels of the Courts Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments
1o be approximately 4 Q billan Brazilian real (1 0 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 No related provision has been made
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OTHER TAX MATTERS

In February 2015, the European Commussion opened an in-depth state aid investigation into the Belgian excess profit ruling system. On
11 January 2016, the European Commission adopted a negative decision finding that the Belgian excess profit ruling system constitutes
an aid scheme incompatble with the internal market and ordenng Belgum to recover the incompatible ad from a number of aid
beneficlanes. The Belgian authonties have contacted the companies that have benefitted from the system and have advised each
company of the amount of iIncompatble ad that 1s potentially subject to recovery The European Commission decision was appealed to
the European Union's General Court by Belgium on 22 March 2016 and by AB InBev on 12 July 2016. The appeals da not suspend the
recovery process, and AB inBev cannot at this stage estmate the final outcome of such legal proceedings. Based on the estimated
exposure related to the excess profit ruling applicable to AB InBev, the different elements referred to above, as well as the possibility that
taxes paid abroad and non-recognized tax loss carryforwards could eventually partly or fully offset amounts subject to recovery, if any,
AB InBev has not recorded any provisions in connechion therewith as of 31 December 2018

n addition, the Belgian tax authonties have also questioned the valdity and the actual application of the excess profit ruling that was
issued in favor of AB InBev and have refused the actual tax exemption which it confers Against such decision AB InBev has filed a court
clanm before the Brussels courl of first instance Alsa in respect of this aspect of the excess profit ruling matter, considenng the campany's
and its counsel assessment, as well as the position taken by the tax authonties’ mediation services, in respect of the merits of the case,
AB InBev has not recorded any prowisions as of 31 December 2018

On 24 January 2019, AB InBev deposited 68m EUR on a blocked account. Depending on the final outcome of the European Court
procedures on the Belgian excess profit ruling system, as well as the pending Belgian court case, this amount will either be slightly
modried, or refeased back to the company or paid over fo the Belgian State

On 14 February 2019, the European General Court concluded that the Belgian excess profit ruling systern does not constitute illegal state
ad. The European Commission can appeal the judgment of the General Court.

WARRANTS

Certain holders of warrants issued by Ambev in 1996 for exercise In 2003 proposed lawsuils to subscribe correspondent shares for an
amount lower than Ambev considers as established upon the warrant issuance. In case Ambev loses the totality of these lawsuits, the
issuance of 172,831,574 shares would be necessary Ambev would recewe in consideration funds that are matenally lower than the
current market value This could result in a dilution of about 1% to all Ambev shareholders Furthermore, the holders of these warrants
are claiming that they should receive the dividends relative 1o these shares since 2003, approximately 0.% bilhon Brazihan real (0 2 bihon
US dollar) in addition to legal fees. Ambev disputes these claims and intends to continue to vigorously defend its case Fie of the six
lawsuits were ruled favorable to Ambev by the Supenor Court of Justice (STJ). Twe of them during the year of 2017, All of these five
cases are pending final judgment by STJ's Special Court In November 2017, the Federal Pubiic Prosecutor filled a motion favorable to
Ambev's pasition n one of the cases. Considenng all of these facts, the company and its external counsels strongly believe that the
chance of |oss in these cases Is remote

ANTITRUST MATTERS

On 12 December 2014, a lawsult was commenced in the Ontano Supenor Court of Justice aganst the Liquor Control Board of Ontano,
Brewers Retail Inc (known as The Beer Store or “TBS™) and the owners of Brewers Retail Inc (Molson Coors Canada, Sleeman Brewernes
Lid and Labatt Brewenes of Canada LP) The lawsuit was brought in Canada pursuant ta the Ontano Class Proceedings Act, and sought,
among other things (1} to obtain a declaration that the defendants conspired with each other to allocate markets for the supply of beer
sold it Ontano since 1 June 2000: (1) to obtain & declaration that Brewers Retall Inc and the owners of Brewers Retal Inc. conspired to
fix, increase andfor maintain pnces charged to Ontaro icensees (on-trade) for beer and the fees charged by TBS to other competitwe
brewers who wished to sell their products through TBS and (n) damages for unjust enrichment. As part of this third allegation, the plaintiffs
allege illegal trade practices by the owners of Brewers Retall Inc They are seeking damages not exceeding 1 4 brlion Canadian dollar
(1 0 biflion US dallar), as well as, punitive, exemplary and aggravated damages of 5m Canadian dollar (4m US dollar) and changes/repeals
of the affected legislation. In March 2018, the court granted summary judgment and dismissed the class ¢laims The plantiffs have
appealed. The company has not recorded any provision in connection therewith

in 2016, the European Commission announced an investigation into alleged abuse of a dominant position by AB InBev in Belgium thraugh
certarn prachces amed af restnching frade from other European Union member states to Belgium. In connection with these ongoing
proceedings, AB InBev made a provision of 230m US dollar.
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33. Non-controlling interests

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, matenal non-controlling nterests relate to Ambev, a Brazilian isted subsidiary in which AB InBev has
62% ownership The tables below provide surmmarized information of Ambev's audited consolidated financial statements as of as of 31
December 2018 and 2017, in accordance wath IFRS

Summanzed financial iInfermation of Ambevy, in which the company has matenal non-contralling interesis, is as follows:

Miltion US doflar 2018 2017

Summarized balance sheet information

Current assets 6 537 7472
Nor-current assets 17 755 18 783
Current labiities 6 408 8672
Non-current llabiibes 3032 3ors
Equity attnbutable to equity holders 14 540 13608
Non-controlling interests 312 597

Summarized income statement and comprehensive income information

Revenus 13819 14 961
Net income 3130 2452
Aftnbutable to

Equity holders 3033 2290
Non-controling interests a7 162
Net income 3130 2452
Qther comprehensive income 629 809
Total comprehensive Income 3759 3261
Attnbutable to

Equity holders 3629 3090
MNon-controlling interests 130 171

Summarized cash Row information

Cash flow from operating activities 4928 5583
Cash flow from investing activities (1 011) (960)
Cash flow from financing activibes (3 638) (4 018)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 278 605

Dividends paid by Ambev to non-controlling interests (t.e. to entities outside the AB InBev Group) amounted to 0 8 billvon US dollar and
11 billion US dollar for 2018 and 2017, respectively

Other non-controlling interests not deemed individually material by the company mainly retated o the company's operations in Africa in
association with the Castel Group (e g, Botswana, Ghana, Mozambique, Nigena, Tanzania, Uganda, and Zambia), as well as non-
controlling interests recognized in respect of the company's subsidiaries in Colombia, Ecuador, and Peru
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34. Related parties

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERS (KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL)

In addion to short-term employee benefits (primanly salaries) AB InBev's Executive Board of Management members were entitled in
2018 to post-employment benefits In particular, members of the Executive Board of Management participated in the pension plan of their
respective country — see also Note 25 Employee Benefits Finally, key management personnel are eligibie for the company's share option,
restricted stock and/or share swap program (see Note 26 Share-based Payments). Total directors and Executive Board of Management
compensation included 1n the income statement can be detailed as follows

Executive Board Executive Board

Million US dollar Directors of Management Directors of Management
Short-term employee benefits 2 27 2 28
Post-employment benefits - - - !
Share-based payments - 24 3 68
2 52 5 97

Directors’ compensation consists mainly of diractors’ fees,

Dunng 2018, AR inBev entered into the following transactions:

e The acquisition, through Grupo Modelo and its subsidianes, of Information technology and infrastructure services for a consideration
of approximately 1.0m US dollar from a company in which one of the company’s Board Member had significant influence as of 31
December 2018

e The acquisiion, mainly through its subsidiary Bavana S A., of transportation services, lease agreements and adveriising services for
an aggregated consideration of 8.1m US dollar from companies in which one of the company's Board Member had a significant
influence as of 31 December 2018. The outstanding balance of these transactions as of 31 December 2018 amounts to 0 2m US
dollar

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Significant interests in joint ventures include three entiies n Brazil, one in Mexico and two in Canada  None of these joint ventures are
matenal to the company. Aggregate amounts of AB InBev's interest are as follows

Milion US dollar 2018 2017
Non-current assets 1 12
Current assets 5 S
Non-current llabilties 9 1"

Current liabilities 12 6
Result from operations 4 3
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 3 (3)

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES

Significant interests In associates are shown 1n note 16 Investments m associates AB InBev's transactions with associates were as
follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Gross profit 74 o1

Current assets 152 73
Current habilities 130 20

TRANSACTIONS WITH PENSION PLANS
AB InBev's transactions with pension ptans mainly compnse 12m US dollar other income from pension plans in the US.
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35. Events after the balance sheet date

BOND ISSUANCE

On 23 January 2019, Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc , a subsithiary of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV 1ssued 15 6 bilhon US dollar
aggregate principal amount of bonds. The bonds compnse the followang senes 2 5 billion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed
rate Notes due 23 January 2025 bearing nterest at annual rate of 4.150%; 4 25 bilion US dollar aggregate pnncipal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2029 bearing interest at an annual rate of 4.750%; 0.75 billion US dollar aggregate pnncipal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2031 bearing interest at an annual rate of 4.900%, 2 0 tWhon US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2039 bearing Interest at an annual rate of 5.450%; 4.0 billion LS dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2049 beanng interest at an annual rate of 5 550% and 2 0 billion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2059 bearing interest at an annual rate of 5 800%

The net proceeds of the offering will be used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of upcoming debt maturities in 2021
10 2024 and 2026, including the funding of the company's announced tender offers.

RESULTS OF TENDER OFFERS

On 08 February 2019, AB InBev anncunced the final results of offers by its wholly owned subsidianes Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance
Inc., Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc and Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC to purchase for cash any validly tendered (and not
validly withdrawn) and accepted notes up to an aggregate purchase pnce (excluding accrued and unpaid interest) of 16 5 billion LS doliar
of twelve senes of notes issued by the compames With the completion of the Tender Offers, the companies repurchased 16 3 biliien US
dollar aggregate pnneipal amount of several series of its outstanding notes.

The pool caps compnse the following series 2.5 bilhon US dollar aggregate prnincipal amount of fixed rate Notes bearing interest at annual
rate of 2 650%, 0 2 billion US dollar aggregate principal amount of floating rate Notes and 0 2 billion US doilar aggregate principal amount
of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 4 375% due in 2021, 1.1 billon US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes beanng
interest at annual rate of 3 750% and 1 3 bilhion US dollar aggregate principat amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 2 500% due
in 2022, G 6 ilon US dollar aggregate pnncipal amount of fixed rate Notes beanng interest at annual rate of 2 625% and 2 9 billion US
dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3.300% due in 2023; C 3 tillon US dollar aggregate principal
amount of floating rate Notes, 0 @ billon US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3.500% and 0.5
pillion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3 700% due in 2024; and 5 9 billion US dollar aggregate
principal amount of fixed rate Notes bearing interest at annual rate of 3 650% due in 2026

36. AB InBev companies

Listed below are the most important AB InBev companies A complete list of the company’'s mvestments 15 available al AB InBev NV,
Brouwerplean 1, B-3000 Leuven, Belgium

LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT FULLY CONSCOLIDATED COMPANIES
% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2018
ARGENTINA

CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA QUILMES SAICA y G - Charcas 5160 - C1425BOF - Buenos Arres 61 88
AUSTRALIA

FOSTER'S GROUP PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100 00
CUB PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100 00
FBG FINANCE PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100 00
FBG TREASURY (AUST) PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100 00
BELGIUM

AB INBEV NV — Grand Place 1 - 1000 — Brussel Cansoldating
BRASSERIE DE LABBAYE DE LEFFE S A - Place de I'Abbaye 1 - 5500 — Dinant 98 54
BROUWERIJ VAN HOEGAARDEN N V - Stoopkensstraat 46 - 3320 — Hoegaarden 100 00
COBREW N.V - Brouwen|plen 1 - 3000 — Leuven 100 00
INBEV BELGIUM S P R.L. - Industrielaan 21 - 1070 — Brussel 100 00
BOTSWANA

KGALAGADI BREWERIES (PTY) LTD - Plot 20768, Broadhurst industnal estate - Gaborong' 3100
BOLIVIA

CERVECERIA BOLIVIANA NACIONAL S A - Av Montes 400 and Chuquisaca No 121, Zona 61 88
BRAZIL

1 The group's shares entitle the holder to twice the voting nghis

149



% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2018
AMBEV S.A - Rua Or Renato Paes de Barros, 1017, 3° andar, ltaim Bibw - CEP 04530-001 - S3o Paulo 61.88
CANADA

LABATT BREWING COMPANY LIMITED - 207 Queen's Quay West, Sute 28% - M5J 1A7 — Toronto 6188
CHILE

CERVECERIA CHILE S.A. - Av. Presidente Eduardo Frer Montatva 9600 - 8700000 — Quilicura 61.88
CHINA

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (CHINA) SALES CO LTD. - Shangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area - 100 00
430051 - Wuhan City, Hubel Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (WUHAN) BREWERY CO. LTD - Shangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area 97 06
- 430051 - Wuhan City, Hubet Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (FOSHAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - 1 Budweiser Avenue, Southwest St., 100.00

Sanshu District - 528132 - Foshan City, Guangdong

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV HARBIN BREWERY CO LTD -9 HaP1 Road Pingfang Distnet - 150066 - » 100.00
Hartin City, Herlongijang Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (TANGSHAN) BREWERY CO.LTD - 18, Yingbin Road - 063300 - Tangshan 100 00
City, Hebei Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY SEDRIN BREWERY CO. LTD - 860 Gong Ye Road, Hanpang Dhstnct - 100 00
351111 - Putian City, Fupan Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV SEDRIN (ZHANGZHOU) BREWERY CO LTD - Lantian Economic District - 100 00
363005 - Zhangzhou City, Fupan Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (TAIZHOU) BREWERY CC LTD. - 152 Qi Xia East Road, Chengguan Town, 100.00
Tiantar County - 317200 - Taizhou Cithy, Zhejang Province

NANCHANG ASIA BREWERY CO LTD. - 1188 linsha Avenue, Ecorromic Distnct - Nanchang City, 10000
Jiangx Province

SIPING GINSBER DRAFT BEER CO. LTD - Xanmaquan, Tiedong Area - Siping Gity, Jilin Province 100 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (NANTCNG) BREWERY CQ LTD - 666 Zhaoxia Road - Nantong City, 100 00
Jangsu Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (SICHUAN) BREWERY CO LTD - No. 1, AB InBev Avenue, Cheng Nan 100.00
Industry Park, Economic Development Area - 641300 - Ziyang City, Sichuan Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (HENAN) BREWERY CC LTD. - No 1 Budweiser Avenue, Industry Park, 100 00
Tangzhuang Town - 453100 - Weihui City, Henan Province

INBEV JINLONGQUAN (HUBEI) BREWERY CO LTD - 89 Jin Long Quan Avenue - Jingmen City, Hubei 60 00
Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (SUQIAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - No 1 Qupang Road, Suyu Industry Park - 100.00
Sugian City, Jiangsu Province

COLOMBIA

BOGOTA BEER COMPANY BBC S.A.S - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 - Bogota 97 22
BAVARIA 8 A_S A. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 99 00
AMBEV COLOMBIA S A.S - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 97 22
CZECH REPUBLIC

PIVOVAR SAMSON A.S -V parku 2326/18, Chodov, 148 00 Praha 4 100.00
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

CERVECERIA NACIONAL DOMINICANA S.A. - Autopista 30 de Mayo Km 61/2, Distnto Nacional - A.P. 52 42
ECUADOR

COMPANIA CERVECERA AMBEY ECUADOR S A. - Km 14.5 Via a Daule $/N y Av Las iguanas, 97.22
CERVECERIA NACIONAL (CN) SA - Via 2 daule km 16,5 y calle cobre s/n ~ Guayagui, Guayas 95.58
EL SALVADOR

INDUSTRIAS LA CONSTANCIA, SA DE CV - 526 Av Independencia, San Salvador 100.00

* B5% owned by Ambev S A
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% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2013
FRANCE

AB INBEV FRANCE S.A S, - Immeuble Crystal, 38, Place Vauban - C P. 58110 - La Madeleine 100 00
GERMANY

BRAUEREI BECK GmbH & CO KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 10000
BRAUEREI DIEBELS GmbH & CO KG - Brauerei-Diebels-Strasse 1 - 47661 — Issum 100 00
HAAKE-BECK AG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 99.86
HASSERODER BRAUEREI GmbH - Auerhahnnng 1 - 38855 — Wernigerode 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV GERMANY HOLDING GmbH - Am Deich 18/19 - 28188 — Bremen 100 00
SPATEN - FRANZISKANER - BRAU GmbH - Marsstrasse 46 + 48 - 80335 - Munchen 100 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV Deutschland GmbH & Co KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 100 00
LOEWENBRAEU AG - Nymphenburger Str 7 - 80335 — Munchen 100 00
GHANA

ACCRA BREWERY LTD - Farra Avenue 20 1st Floor, Pkf Bulding, P O Box Gp1219 - Accra 60 00

GRAND DUCHY OF LUXEMBOLURG

BRASSERIE DE LUXEMBOURG MQUSEL - DIEKIRCH - 1, Rue de |a Brasserie - L-9214 — Diekirch 95 82

HONDURAS

CERVECERIA HONDURENA, SA DE CV - Blivd Del Norte, Carretera Salida a Puerto Cortes - San Pedro 99 00

INDIA

CROWN BEERS INDIA LIMITED - #8-2-6B4/A, Road No 12 - Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500034 - Andbra 10000

SABMILLER INDIA LIMITED LTD - Urit No 301-302, Dynasty Business Park, 3rd Floor - Andhen - Kura 99 60

ITALY

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV ITALIA SPA - Piazza Buffor 3, 21013 Gallarate 100 00

MEXICO

CERVECERIA MODELO DE MEXICO S DE RL DE C.V - Javier Barros Sierra 555 Piso 3 - Zedec Ed

Plaza Santa Fe - 01210 Mexico City 100 00

MOZAMBIQUE

CERVEJAS DE MOGAMBIQUE SA - Rua do Jardim 1329 - Maputo' 4900

THE NETHERLANDS

INBEV NEDERLAND N V. - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA — Breda 100.00

INTERBREW INTERNATICNAL B V - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA — Breda 100 00

AB InBev Africa B V - Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 6200

AB InBev Botswana B V.- Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 62.00
_NIGERIA

BEVERAGE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LIMITED LTD - 58 Akanbi Onitin Close, Off Enc Moore Road, 50.00

INTERNATIONAL BREWERIES PLC - Lawrence Omole Way, Omi Osoro Road, Imo lesha, Osun State’ 3750
PANAMA

CERVECERIA NACIONAL HOLDING SA - Costa del Este Business Park, torre Oeste Piso 2 - Cludad de 60 00
_PARAGUAY

CERVECERIA PARAGUAYA S A - Ruta Vilieta km 30 N 3045 - 2660 — Ypané 61 88
“PERU_

COMPANIA CERVECERA AMBEYV PERU S A C. - Av Los Laureles Mza A Lt 4 del Centro Poblado

Menor Santa Marnia de Huachipa - Lunigancho (Chosica) - Lima 15 97 22

' The company is consolidated due 1o the group's majenty shareholdings and abilty to control the operations
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% of economic

interest as at
Name and registered office of fully consolidated ¢companies 31 December 2018

UNION DE CERVECERIAS PERUANAS BACKUS Y JOHNSTON SAA - 3986 Av Nicolas Aylion, Ate, 93.65

SOUTH AFRICA

SABSA HOLDINGS LTD PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY - 65 Park Lane, Sandown - 2001 — Johannesburg 100.00
THE SOUTH AFRICAN BREWERIES (PTY) LTD LIMITED BY SHARES - 65 Park Lane, Sandown - 2146

— Johannesburg 81.55
SOUTH KOREA

ORIENTAL BREWERY CO , LTD - BF, ASEM Tower, 517, Yeongdong-daero, Gangnam-gu, Seoul, 06164, 100 00
SWITZERLAND

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV PROCUREMENT GMBH GESELLSCHAFT MIT BESCHRANKTER

HAFTUNG (GMBH) - Suurstoffi 22 — 6343 - Rotkreuz 100.00
TANZANIA

KIBO BREWERIES LTD PRIVATE COMPANY - Uhuru Street, Plot Na 79, Block AA, Mchiluchin, llala

District - - Dar es Salaam’ 36 00
UGANDA

NILE BREWERIES LTD - Plot M30 Yusuf Lule Roa, Njeru, Jinja - Eastern Uganda 61.76

UNITED KINGDOM

ABI SAB GROUP HOLDING LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Street West - GU21 6HT - Woking 100 00
ABI UK HOLDINGS 1 LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU1 3LS - Luton 100.00
AB INBEV UK LIMITED - Porter Tun House, SO0 Capability Green - LU1 3LS — Luton 100.00
AB INBEV HOLDINGS LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Street West - GU21 6HT - Woking 100.00
AB INBEV INTERNATIONAL BRANDS LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Street Wast - GU21 6HT - 100 00
ZX VENTURES LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU1 3LS - Luton 100 00
UNITED STATES

ANHEUSER-BUSCH COMPANIES, LLC. - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INTERNATIONAL., INC - One Busch Place - St. Lows, MQ 63118 100 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH PACKAGING GROUP, INC - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 106 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, LLC — One Busch Place, St. Louis, MO 63118 100 00
METAL CONTAINER CORPORATION, INC. — One Busch Place, St. Lows, MO 63118 100 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH NORTH AMERICAN HOLDING CORPORATICN - C/O THE CORPORATION 100 00
URUGUAY

CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA PAYSANDU S.A - Cesar Cortinas, 2037 - C P. 11500 — Montevideo €188
VIETNAM

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV VIETNAM BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED/NG.2 VSIP II-A, Street no, 28,

Vietram - 8ingapore lI-A Industnal Park, Tan Uyen Distnct, Binh Duong Province 100 00
ZAMBIA

ZAMBIAN BREWERIES PLC - Mungwi Road, Plot Number 6438, Lusaka 54.00
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LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

% of economic
interest as at

Name and registered office of associates and joint ventures 31 december 2018
FRANCE

SOCIETE DES BRASSERIES ET GLACIERES INTERNATIONALES SA - 30 AV George V, 75008, Pans 20.00
GIBRALTAR

BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING LTD - CC Building, 10th Figor, Main Street 2000
BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING (ANGOLA) LTD - Suite 10/3, International Commercial 2700
TURKEY

ANADOLU EFES BIRACILIK VE MALT SANAYII AS - Bahgelievier Mahalles), Sehit Ibrahim Kopanr 2400
ZIMBABWE

DELTA CORPORATION LTD - Sable house, P Q. Box BW 343, Northndge Close, Borrowdale, Harare 2500
RUSSIA

AB InBev Efes - 28 Moscovskaya Street, Moscow region - 141607 — Klin 5000
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Information to our shareholders

Earnings, dividends, share and share price

Cash flow from operating activitias (US dollar per share)
Normalized earnings per share (US dollar per share)
Dividend (euro per share)

Share price high {guro per share)
Share pnece low (eurc per share)
Year-end share pnece (euro per share)

Woeighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares (million

Diluted weighted average numbér of ordinary and restncied shares
Volume of shares traded (million shares)
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2018

742
3.44
1.80

96.70
58.84
57.70

1975
2014
496

2017

7.83
404
3860

11010
92 88
93.13

1971
2010
349

2016

589
2.83
360

118 60
9213
100 55

1717
1755
445

2015

862
520
3 60

124.20
87.73
114.40

1638
1 668
449

2014

8 66
543
300

94 89
69.14
93 86

1634
1665
397
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Information on the auditors’ assignments and related fees

AB InBev's Statutory audifor 1s Deloitte Bedn)fsrevisoren/Réviseurs d'Entreprises CVBA/SCRL, represented by Joel Brehmen, audt
partner

Base fees for auditing the annual financial statements of AB InBev and its subsidiaries are deterrmined by the shareholders meeting after
review and approval by the company’s Audit Commitiee and Board of Directors

Fees' for 2018 1n relation to services provided by Delcitte Bedrjfsrevisoren/Réviseurs d Entreprises CVBA/SCRL amounted to 2 848k
US dollar (2017. 3 202k US dollar), which was composed of audit services for the annual financial statements of 2 086k US dollar {2017.
1 979k US dollar), tax serwces of 521k US dollar (2017 811k US dollar} and audit related services of 241k US dollar (2014. 412k US
dollar} Audit related services mainly relate to services incurred in connection with nghts and bonds issuance, all of which have been pre-
approved by the company's Audit Committee

Fees for 2018 n relation to services provided by other offices in the Delotte Touche Tohmatsu network amounted to 7 174k US dollar
(2017: 7 70BK US dollar), which was composed of audit services for the annual financial statements of 6 585k US dollar (2017: 6 826k US
dollar), tax services of 520k US dollar (2017; 782k US dollar) and audit related services of 55k US dollar (2017 Ok US dollar}, all of which
have been pre-approved by the company's Audit Committee

Financial calendar

Publication of 2018 results 28 February 2019
Annual report 2018 avallable on www ab-inbev.com 28 February 2019
General shareholders meeting 24 Apnl 2019
Dividend ex-coupon date 7 May 2019
Publication of first quarter results 7 May 2019
Publication of half year results 25 July 2018
Publication of third quarter results 25 October 2019

Investor relations contact

Media Investors

Pablo Jimenez Lauren Abbott

Tel: +t 212 573 9289 Tel +1 212 573 9287

E-maii. pablo.jmenez@gmodelo com mx E-maul: lauren abbott@ab-inbev.com
Aimee Baxter Mariusz Jamka

Tel + 1718 6504003 Tel +3216 27 63 88

E-maill amee baxter@ab-inbev.com E-mail: marnusz jamka@ab-nbev.com
Ingvild Van Lysebetten Jency John

Tel +3216 276608 Tel +1 648 746 9673

E-mail ingvild vanlysebetten@ab-inbev com E-mail. jlency.john@ab-inbev com

' Fees do not nclude audit and other fees of companies which are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



Excerpt from the AB InBev NV separate
(non-consolidated) financial statements
prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP

The following information is extracted from the separate Belgian GAAP financial statements of AB InBev NV per 31 December 2018.
These separate financial statements, together with the management report of the Board of Directors to the general assembly of
shareholders as well as the auditor's report, will be filed with the National Bank of Belgium within the legally foreseen time imits. These
documents are also available on request from AB inBev NV, Brouwernptein 1, 3000 Leuven.

It should be noted that only the consofidated financial statements as set forth above present a true and farr view of the financial position
and performance of the AB InBev greup

Since AB InBev NV s essentially a holding company, which recognizes its investmenis at cost in its non-consolidated financial statements,
these separate financial staternents present no more than a hmited view of the financial position of AB InBev NV. For this reason, the
Board of Directors deemed 1t appropnate to publish anly an abbreviated version of the non-consolidated balance sheet and income
statement prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The statutory auditor has confirmed that his audit procedures are substantially complete and that the abbrewviated non-consolidated
balance sheet and income statement of AB InBev NV prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2018
are consistent, in all matenal respects, with the accounts from which they have been denved.
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Abbreviated non-consolidated balance sheet

Million euro 2018 2017

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 597 561

Property, plant and equipment 3s 37

Financial assets 115156 04 008
115791 104 606

Current assets 38 067 67 977

Total assets 153 858 172 583

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Issued capital 1239 1239
Share premium 13 186 13186
Legal reserve 124 124
Reserves not avallabie for distnbution 3595 8283
Reserves avalable for distnbution 33009 33 009
Profit carned forward 12 607 8 588
63 760 64 429
Provisions and deferred taxes 46 106
Non-current liabilities 63 758 85 587
Current liabitities 26 293 22 461
Total equity and liabilities 453 858 172 583

Abbreviated non-consolidated income statement

Million euro 2018 2017
Operating income 1369 2 169
Operating expenses (995) (1 308)
Operating result ey 861
Financial result 2482 (734)
Result for the year available for appropriation 2856 127
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Glossary

AGGREGATED WEIGHTED NCMINAL TAX RATE
The aggregated weighted nominal tax rate 1s based on the statutory corporate income tax rates applicable in the vanous countres

COPEC
Colombua, Peru and Ecuador.

DILUTED EPS
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev dwided by the fully diluted weighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY and restricted SHARES
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares, adjusted by the effect of diutive share options and restncted stock urits

EBIT
Profit from cperations.

EBITDA
Profit from operations plus deprecation, amortization and impairment

EMEA
Europe and Afnca

EPS
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares

FVOCI
Fair value through other comprehensive income

FVPL|
Fair value through other profit or loss

FTE's
Full-ime empioyees on a permanent or temporary basis, exciuding outsourced personnel

INVESTED CAPITAL
Includes property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investments in associates and equity secunbies, working capital,
provisions, employee benefits and deferred taxes

MARKETING EXPENSES

Include all costs relating to the support and pramotion of the brands They include among others operating costs (payroll, office costs,
etc ) of the marketing department, advertising costs {agency costs, media costs, etc.), sponsonng and events, and surveys and market
research.

NET CAPEX
Acquisthons of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets, minus proceeds from sale

NET DEBT
Non-current and current interast-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts, munus debt securhes and cash and cash equivalents

NON-RECURRING ITEMS
Items of income or expense which do not occur reguiarty as part of the normal activiies of the company

NORMALIZED

The term “normalized” refers to performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) befare non-recurming items and
profit from discontinued operations. Non-recurring items are items of income or expense which do not oaccur regularly as part of the normal
activihes of the company and which warrant separate disclosure because they are important for the understanding of the underlying results
of the company due to their size or nature AB InBev believes that the communication and explanation of normahzed measures is essentiab
for readers of its financial statements to understand fully the sustanable performance of the company Normalized measures are additional
measures used by management and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the
company's performance.

NORMALIZED DILUTED EPS
Diluted EPS adjusted for non-recurnng items and profit from discontinued operations

NORMALIZED EBIT
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recurnng items.

NORMALIZED EBITDA
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recurring tems, plus depreciation, amortization and impairment.

NORMALIZED EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Effective tax rate adjusted for non-recurnng items.

NORMALIZED EPS
EPS adjusted for non-recurnng items and profit from discontinued operations
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NORMALIZED PROFIT
Profit adjusted for non-recurring tems and profit from discontinued operations

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recurmng items.

PAY OUT RATIO
Gross dividend per share multiphied by the estimated number of ordinary shares outstanding at the dwvidend record date, divided by
normalized profit atinbutable to equity holders of AB InBev.

RE-MEASUREMENTS OF POST-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Compnsed of actuanal gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceilling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets {(excluding
net interest).

REVENUE
Gross revenue less excise taxes and discounts

SALES EXPENSES
Include all costs retating to the selling of the products They include among others the operating costs (payroll, office costs, etc ) of the
sales department and the sales force

SG&A AND SELLING, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Sales, marketing, distnbution and administrative expenses

SCOPE

Financials are analyzed eimmating the mpact of changes In currencies on translaton of foreign operations, and scopes A scope
represents the impact of acquisiions and divestitures, the start-up or termination of activities or the transfer of actvities between segments,
curtalment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in accounting estimates and other assumptions that management does not
consider as part of the underlying performance of the business The impact of adopting hypeninflation accounting in Argentina effective 1
January 2018 1s presented as a scope change

UNDERLYING EPS

Profit before non-recurnng items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market losses on certain derivatives related to the hedging of share-
based payment programs and hypennflation impacts, atinbutable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary and restncted shares,

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY and restricted SHARES
Number of shares outstanding at the beginaing of the period, adjusted by the number of shares cancelled, repurchased or issued during
the period multiplied by a ime-weighung factor

WORKING CAPITAL
Includes inventories, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, both current and non-current
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The below UK subsidianies have sought and received a parental guarantee from AB inBev SA/NV under Sections 479A, 394A-C
and 448A-C of the UK Companies Act 2006 which has allowed tham to be exempt fram filing subsidiary audited financial
statements

Unaudited tinancial statements will be filed with the UK Companies House in the course of 2019 except for dormant

companies which are exempt from preparing or iling financial statements.

COMPANY NAME REGISTERED NUMBER
AB Inbev {(Safar) 04834191
AB Inbev Africa Holdings Il Limited 09930929
AB Inbev Afnca Holdings Limited 04982953
AB Inbev Africa Investments Limited 04117358
AB Inbev Amenca Holdings Limited 08922107
Al Asia Holdings Limited [ _._.__,__‘@19_15)2‘
(AB Inbev Australia Holdings Limited i 08926994,
:EI Inbev Austraiia Investment Holdings Limited 11642354
AB Inbev Capital UK Limited 07466437
AB Inbev Corporate Services Limited 08575040
AB Inbev Finance SA Limited 08924308
AB Inbev Finance South Africa Limited 11666154
AB inbev Finance South African Moldings Limited 11641110
AB Inbev Global Business Services Limited 08685907
AB Inbev Harmony Holdings Limited 07906062
AB Inbev Harmony Limited 08236561
AB Inbev Holdings Europe Limited 04763363
AB Inbev Holdings Limited 04185128
AB Inbev Hoidings SA Limited 07817960
AB Inbev Holdings SH Limited 07816420
AB Inbev Honzon Limited (6868068
AB InBev Intemational Brands Limited 05511456
AB Inbev Investments Holdings Company 2 bimrted 11642142
AB Inbev SAF Limited Q7780722
AB Inbev S| Limited 08924644
AB Inbev Southern Capital Limited 07816628
AB InBev Southem Investments Holding Limited 11654135
AB Inbev Southern Investments Limited 05820066
AB InBev UK Finance Company Limited 09492207
AB InBev UK [nvestment Company Limited 09482211
ABI Australia Beverage Holding Ltd 10394356
ABI Australia Investment Ltd 10395165
ABI Euro Finance Services Limited 10535822
ABI Inbev Investment Holding Company Limited 11640882
ABI Mexico Holding | Unlimited 10506521
ABI Mexico Holding Il Limited 10517930
ABI SAB Group Holding Limited 03528416
ABI Southern Holding Ltd 10394354
ABI Southern Investment Ltd 10394347
ABI UK Holding 1 Limited 10377840
ABI UK Holding 2 Limited 10414368
AFC Finance Lirmited {in Liguidation) 09852512

ALE Finance Services Limited 10379989




Anglemaster Limited
Anheuser-Busch Europe Limited
BFC Finance Limited

Bourse du Vin Limited

Brewman Group Limited

Carlton and Unnted Brewenies Holdings (UK) Limited

DFC Finance Limited (in Liquidation)
Dreamgame Limited

East West Cnental Brewing Company Limited

FBG Brewery Holdings UK Limited
FBG Holdings (UK) Limited

FBG International Limited

FBG Treasury {UK) Limited

Foster's Brands Limited

HFC Finance Limted

Kangaroo Ridge Wines Europe Limited
Pilsner Urgquell Company Lirmited
Pilsner Lrquell International Limited
Pirate Life (Eurcpe) Limited

SAB Australa Beverage Holdings LLP
SAB Limited

SABMiller Asia Capital LLP

SABMiller Financing Southern LLP
The Wine Exchange Limited

Tibsco Limited

00072114
02398274
09852426
00042015
00546912
07543569
09852407
01960627
00027959
02565926
02037446
00028707
02129189
06425007
09852273
00040742
02688496
038950016
10376567
0C369103
03640804
0OC365431
0OC369350
00071565
00036973



